
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

September 21, 2023 
6:30 P.M.  

Bradford County Courthouse 
945 North Temple Avenue 

Starke, Florida 32091 
 

AGENDA  
 

1. Chair to call meeting to order. 
 

2. Public Hearing – Enactment of Ordinances – Randy Andrews, Zoning Director 
 

A. Consider approval of CPA 23-02 (BoCC) – Amendment to the Text and Future 
Land Use Plan Map of the Bradford County Comprehensive Plan. (Second 
Reading – Ask for Public Comments; Ask for Motion and Vote) 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE 
BRADFORD COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; RELATING TO AN 
AMENDMENT TO THE TEXT OF THE BRADFORD COUNTY 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, PURSUANT TO AN APPLICATION, CPA 23-02, 
BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, UNDER THE 
AMENDMENT PROCEDURES ESTABLISHED IN SECTIONS 163.3161 
THROUGH 163.3215, FLORIDA STATUTES, AS AMENDED; FOR 
AMENDING POLICY i.2.2 OF THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT TO ADD 
SOLAR FACILITIES AS A USE PERMITTED WITHIN THE AGRICULTRUAL 
LAND USE CALSSIFICATIONS AND BY EXCLUDING SOLAR FACILITIES 
FROM THE ELECTRICAL POWER GENERATING FACILITY LAND USE 
CLASSIFICATION IN THE RURAL AREAS OF THE COUNTY; PROVIDING 
SEVERABILITY; REPLACING ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

B. Consider approval of S230811A (Murray Capital Investments, LLC.) – Land Use 
Change for Bradford County Parcel Number 04747-0-00000. (Ask for Public 
Comments; Ask for Motion and Vote)  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE 
FUTURE LAND USE PLAN MAP OF THE BRADFORD COUNTY 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, AS AMENDED; RELATING TO AN 
AMENDMENT OF 50 OR LESS ACRES OF LAND, PURSUANT TO AN 
APPLICATION, s230811a, BY THE PROPERTY OWNER OF SAID 
ACREAGE, UNDER THE AMENDMENT PROCEDURES ESTABLISHED IN 
SECTIONS 163.3161 THROUGH 163.3248, FLORIDA STATUTES, AS 
AMENDED; PROVIDING FOR CHANGING THE LAND USE 
CLASSIFICATION FROM AGRICULTURE-2 (LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 

ACTION 



DWELLING 1 UNIT PER 5 ACRE, EXCEPT AS PROVIDED FOR IN POLICY 
I.2.2) TO COMMERCIAL OF CERTAIN LANDS WITHIN THE 
UNINCORPORATED AREA OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA; 
PROVIDING SEVERABILITY; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES IN 
CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

C. Consider approval of Z23-04 (Murray Capital Investments, LLC) – Zoning 
Change for Bradford County Parcel Number 04747-0-0000 (Ask for Public 
Comments; Ask for Motion and Vote) 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE 
OFFICIAL ZONING ATLAS OF THE BRADFORD COUNTY LAND 
DEELOPMNET REGULATIONS, AS AMENDED; RELATING TO THE 
REZONING OF TEN OR MORE CONTIGUOUS ACRES OF LAND, 
PURSUANT TO AN APPLICATION, Z 23-04, BY THE PROPERTY OWNER 
O SAID ACREAGE; PROVIDING FOR CHANGING THE ZONING DISTRICT 
FROM AGRICULTURAL-2 (A-2) TO COMMERCIAL, INTENSIVE (CI) OF 
CERTAIN LANDS WITHIN THE UNINCORPORATED AREA OF 
BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA; PROVIDING SEVERABILITY; 
REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

D. Consider approval of Z23-05 (Edith Mattox & Karen Mattox) – Zoning Change 
for Bradford County Parcel Number 05420-0-00300 (Ask for Public Comments; 
Ask for Motion and Vote) 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE 
OFFICIAL ZONING ATLAS OF THE BRADFORD COUNTY LAND 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS, AS AMENDED; RELATING TO THE 
REZONING OF LESS THAN TEN CONTIGUOUS ACRES OF LAND, 
PURSUANT TO AN APPLICATION, Z 23-05, BY THE PROPERTY OWNERS 
OF SAID ACREAGE; PROVIDING FOR CHANGING THE ZONING 
DISTRICT FROM RESIDINTIAL, SINGLE FAMILY-1 (RSF-1) TO 
COMMERCIAL, INTENSIVE (CI) OF CERTAIN LANDS WITHIN THE 
UNINCORPORATED AREA OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA; 
PROVIDING SEVERABILITY; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES IN 
CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
3. Public Comments 

 
 Three (3) minutes per speaker; 
 Comments will not be accepted after the meeting begins; 
 State your name and address into the record before addressing the board; 
 Address your questions to the bours, not county staff; 
 Refrain from demands for an immediate board response; and 
 No boisterous behavior, personal, impertinent, or slanderous remarks. 



 
4. Approval of Consent Agenda 

 
A. Regular Meeting Minutes from August 1, 2023 
B. Regular Meeting Minutes from August 17, 2023 
C. Workshop Meeting Minutes from August 17, 2023 
D. State Aid to Libraries Grant Agreement 
E. Certification of Hours, Free Library Service and Access to Materials – Part of the 

State Aid Grant 
F. First Amendment to Three-Party Agreement between Bradford County and 

University of Florida for Services of Medical Examiner, University Physician 
Support, University Non-physician Support, and Facility Use. $45,909.48 
Annually (Increase of $12,165.12 from 22-23 Fiscal Year) 

G. Approval of Dual Certification – Request from Tax Collector 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA PROVIDING FOR THE EXTENSION OF 
THE 2023 ASSESSMENT ROLLS PURSUANT TO SECTION 197.323, FLORIDA 
STATUTES AND SECTION 193.122, FLORIDA STATUTES; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

H. Approval and Acknowledgement of Presentation by the Bradford County Tax 
Collector of those Bradford County Tax Certificates which are Eligible for Tax 
Deeds. 

I. Used Fire Engine Purchase ($50,000 from unused Grant Match Funds) 
J. Approval of Contract between Bradford County Board of County Commissioners 

and State of Florida Department of Health for Operation of the Bradford County 
Health Department, 23-24 Fiscal Year ($82,500) 

K. Approval of Agreement between Bradford County and NCFRPC for Annual 
Monitoring of Hazardous Waste Generators ($7,882) 

L. Northeast Florida Economic Development Corporation Contract for Bradford 
County EDC Funding from Bradford County Development Authority funds 

M. Retroactive Approval of George Roberts Insurance Invoice 230360 for Renewal 
of General Star Indemnity Policy 

N. Public Works 2023 Hamm HD70i VV Double Drum Asphalt Roller ($139,400 
from Gas Tax Funds) 

O. Response Vehicle (F150 4X4) (Cost not to exceed $50,000) 
 

5. Website Design Quotes 
 

A. Approval to move forward with website design and hosting contract. Three quotes 
provided per purchasing policy. 

 
6. Year 5 LOA MCO 

 

ACTION 

ACTION 

ACTION 



A. Year 5 Intergovernmental Transfer for the MCO/PEMT program. Transfer 
amount is $300,763.93, but we will be receiving $715,423.25 in return, resulting 
in a Net profit of $414,659.32. 
 

7. Dedication of SR 230 as the “Dr. Peter J. Gianas Memorial Highway” 
 

A. A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA, ACKNOWLEDGING AND HONORING 
THE LIFE AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS OF DOCTOR PETER JOHN GIANAS, 
MD, AND DECLARING THE HONORARY DESIGNATION OF A PORTION 
OF STATE ROAD 230 IN BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS THE “DR. 
PETER J. GIANAS MEMORIAL HIGHWAY” 

 
8. Clerk Reports – Denny Thompson, Clerk to the Board and Clerk of the Circuit Court 

 
A. FY21/22 Audit Report, presented by James Moore & Co 

 
9. Sheriff Reports – Gordon Smith, Sheriff 

 
10. County Manager Reports – County Manager, Scott Kornegay 

 
A. Consider Approval for County Manager to Engage Bryant Miller Olive Law Firm for 

Professional Services Related to Development of a Fire Assessment Program and 
Updating Existing Impact Fees 

B. Approval of Agreement between Bradford County and NCFRPC for Local 
Government Comprehensive Planning Services ($23,500) 

C. Solid Waste Window Decal 
 

11. County Attorney Reports – Richard Komando 
 

A. A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA, CLOSING AND ABANDONING A ROAD 
THIRTY FEET IN WIDTH; PROVIDING DIRECTION TO THE CLERK; 
PROVIDING DIRECTION TO THE COUNTY MANAGER; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
12. Commissioner’s Comments 

 
13. Chair’s Comments 

 
NOTICE: 
Pursuant to Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, notice is hereby provided that, if a person decides 
to appeal any decision made by the Board of County Commissioners of Bradford County, 
Florida with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he or she will need a 
record of the proceedings, and that, for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a 
verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence 
upon which the appeal is to be based. 

Information 

ACTION 

ACTION 

ACTION 





















































Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET (AIIS) 
 
 
DATE OF MEETING:  September 21, 2023  
    
AGENDA ITEM_         Regular Meeting Minutes from August 1, 2023. 
 
DEPARTMENT:    Clerk’s Office   
 
PURPOSE:   Approval of minutes.  
 
ASSOCIATED COSTS:   N/A  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 



 

Page 1 of 5 
 
 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
August 1, 2023 

9:30 A.M.  
Bradford County Courthouse 

945 North Temple Avenue 
Starke, Florida 32091 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:   Commissioner District 5 – Chair Diane Andrews  
      Commissioner District 1 – Vice-Chair Carolyn Spooner  

Commissioner District 2 – Kenny Thompson   
      Commissioner District 3 – Joseph C. Dougherty 
      Commissioner District 4 – Danny Riddick  
        
PRESS PRESENT: Bradford County Telegraph  
 
STAFF MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE: County Manager Scott Kornegay; Executive Assistant Amanda 
Brown; County Attorney Rich Komando; Clerk of Court Denny Thompson; Chief Deputy Clerk Rachel 
Rhoden; Finance Director Dana LaFollette; Sheriff Gordon Smith; Tax Collector Teresa Phillips; and Public 
Works Director Jason Dodds. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Andrews called the meeting to order at 9:30 A.M.  
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS.  
 Susan Laraway 

- In response to Ms. Laraway's remarks about flooding at a retention pond near her home, 
Commissioner Riddick requested that the board consider collaborating with Ms. Laraway to 
provide aid in mitigating flooding. 

 Paul Still 
- Chair Andrews called on Public Works Director Jason Dodds to respond to Mr. Still's 

comments on the Cypress Run Boat Ramp Project. According to Mr. Dodds, depending on 
funding, some design elements might change during construction. He added that there are no 
plans to dredge a new canal and that the current canal is intended to be dredged. 

 Carol Mosely 
 

3. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS: 
A. RATIFICATION OF PAYMENT REGISTER(S) FROM 05-19-23 THROUGH 07-17-23.  
B. REQUEST TO REFER DELINQUENT EMS ACCOUNTS IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$61,507.19 TO NATIONAL RECOVERY AGENCY FOR FURTHER COLLECTION 
EFFORTS.  

C. MEETING MINUTES FROM JULY 6, 2023. 
D. APPROVAL OF AVMED CONTRACT FOR 2023-2024 FISCAL YEAR.  
E. INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE BRADFORD COUNTY SCHOOL 

BOARD AND THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD, FLORIDA.  
 

 



 

Page 2 of 5 
 
 
 

It was MOVED by Commissioner Thompson and SECONDED by Commissioner Dougherty to approve 
the consent agenda.  
 
Discussion: none.  
 
Chair Andrews Conducted A Roll-Call Vote: 
Chair Andrews: Aye 
Vice-Chair Spooner: Aye 
Commissioner Dougherty: Aye 

Commissioner Riddick: Aye 
Commissioner Thompson: Aye 

 
Motion Carries 5-0 
 

4. CLERK REPORTS – DENNY THOMPSON 
A. PRESENTATION OF A PROPOSED UNBALANCED BUDGET FOR FISCAL-YEAR 

(FY) 2023-2024. 
 
Clerk Thompson introduced Finance Director Dana LaFollette who presented the board with a before balancing 
budget and an after balancing budget. Both budgets condense all anticipated revenue and expenditures for FY 
2023-2024 and include revenue at 10 mills. Currently, the county has anticipated revenue of $28.9 million 
dollars and expenditures of $45.7 million dollars – all restricted funds are balanced using available fund 
balance.  
 
Ms. LaFollette advised that without restricted funds, the board has anticipated unrestricted revenue of $27.1 
million dollars and anticipated expenditures of $33 million dollars. Based on last years practice, all estimated 
fund balances as of 09/30/2023 were used to help balance the FY 2023-2024 budget leaving the board with a 
deficit of $2.5 million. Ms. LaFollette explained that the board’s actual deficit is $1.8 million dollars because 
she will exclude state funding of $703,000.00 reflected in fund 106. The board may balance its deficit with 
transfers from the general fund.   
 
With respect to fund 106, Ms. LaFollette advised that the sheriff’s 2023-2024 budget cover letter reflected a 
total budget of $8,433,898.66, which includes $110,821.82 for EM and 703,000.00 in state funding. She advised 
that she excluded the amounts of $110,821.82 for EM, as has been the board’s practice since the sheriff took 
over EM operations, and $703,000.00 for state funding since those are pass through monies – as soon as the 
board receives the monies, finance sends it to the sheriff. 
 
Ms. LaFollette advised that if the county considers a 5% employee raise, it will cost approximately $140,000 
(amount does not include benefits and is only for board employees).  
 
After balancing all funds with estimated fund balance and general fund transfers, the board may expect an 
estimated general fund reserve for contingency of $13.5 million.  
 
Discussion: 
 Questions about the amount that should be kept in an unrestricted reserve balance for emergencies. 
 Remarks made that the county’s financial position is looking better; however, it could look better with 

budget cuts.  
 
 



 

Page 3 of 5 
 
 
 

 Questions about the budget impact of grants. Ms. LaFollette advised that the grants would increase the total 
budget amount; however, since those funds are in and out, she did not include those figures in today's 
budget discussion. 

 Questions on reimbursement on the design phase of the Cypress Run Boat Ramp project. Mr. Kornegay 
advised that his office is still waiting on DRMP to finalize the design component before they can seek 
reimbursement.  

 Remarks made on the need to secure recurring revenue sources.  
 Questions on engaging Bryant Miller and Olive (BMO) to explore a fire assessment and impact fee study. 

Mr. Kornegay advised that he expects to receive an engagement letter from BMO this week. Consultant 
will build fee into assessment.  

 Remarks on millage rate revenue between counties with higher property values versus counties with lower 
property values.  

 Comments in support of pursuing a franchise fee.  
 

5. SHERIFF REPORTS – GORDON SMITH 
A. APPROVAL OF EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT 

(JAG) PROGRAM CERTIFICATE OF PARTICIPATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022.  
 
It was MOVED by Vice Chair Spooner and SECONDED by Commissioner Dougherty to approve the  
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant.  
 
Discussion: none 
 
Chair Andrews Conducted A Roll-Call Vote: 
Chair Andrews: Aye 
Vice-Chair Spooner: Aye 
Commissioner Dougherty: Aye 

Commissioner Riddick: Aye 
Commissioner Thompson: Aye 

 
Motion Carries 5-0 

 
6. COUNTY MANAGER REPORTS – SCOTT KORNEGAY 

A. AUDIT UPDATE 
 
Mr. Kornegay reported that the county's audit company, JamesMoore, contacted his office and the clerk's office 
to provide an update on the status of the 2022 audit. JamesMoore is tentatively scheduled to present the 
county’s 2022 audit on 9/21. The auditors report that they have finished their audits of four of the constitutional 
officers, while the sheriff audit is still in its first stages. Staff will continue scheduling follow-up meetings with 
the auditors for bi-weekly progress reports. 

 
B. BUDGET REQUESTS FROM OUTSIDE ORGANIZATIONS. 

 
Mr. Kornegay recommended that the board maintain the level of funding from the previous year (fiscal year 
2022-2023), as shown in packets. 

 
It was MOVED by Vice Chair Spooner and SECONDED by Commissioner Thompson to approve at last 
year’s level.  
 
Discussion: none.  



 

Page 4 of 5 
 
 
 

Chair Andrews Conducted A Roll-Call Vote: 
Chair Andrews: Aye 
Vice-Chair Spooner: Aye 
Commissioner Dougherty: Aye 

Commissioner Riddick: Aye 
Commissioner Thompson: Aye 

 
Motion Carries 5-0 
 

C. BOCC PAY RAISES.  
 
Mr. Kornegay asked the board for guidance on whether to include raises in the FY 2024 budget that ranged 
from 2% to 5%. 

 
It was MOVED by Commissioner Riddick and SECONDED by Commissioner Thompson to approve 
raises at 5%.  
 
Discussion - none 
 
Chair Andrews Conducted A Roll-Call Vote: 
Chair Andrews: Aye 
Vice-Chair Spooner: Aye 
Commissioner Dougherty: Aye 

Commissioner Riddick: Aye 
Commissioner Thompson: Aye 

 
Motion Carries 5-0 
 

D. APPROVAL OF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT (CBA) BETWEEN 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS (BOCC) AND PROFESSIONAL 
FIREFIGHTERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY FOR OCTOBER 1, 2023 – SEPTEMBER 
30, 2026. 

 
Mr. Kornegay presented the CBA for board approval. 
 
It was MOVED by Commissioner Thompson and SECONDED by Commissioner Dougherty to approve 
the Collective Bargaining Agreement. 
 
Discussion: 

 Current CBA reflects a 6% step increase for the first 4 years; new negotiated CBA reflects a 2% step 
increase per year.  

 
Chair Andrews Conducted A Roll-Call Vote: 
Chair Andrews: Aye 
Vice-Chair Spooner: Aye 
Commissioner Dougherty: Aye 

Commissioner Riddick: Aye 
Commissioner Thompson: Aye 

 
Motion Carries 5-0 
 
Chief Carter, his team, and the Union leadership were thanked by Mr. Kornegay for their efforts in the CBA 
negotiations. 

 



 

Page 5 of 5 
 
 
 

E. APPROVAL TO MOVE FORWARD WITH FDEP RESILIENT FLORIDA GRANT, 
FOR $300,000 FOR A VULNERABILITY ASSESSMENT.  

 
Mr. Kornegay reported that the county received a grant from FDEP in the amount of $300,000 and the board 
will now need to approve it.  
 
It was MOVED by Vice Chair Spooner and SECONDED by Commissioner Dougherty to move forward 
with the grant as stated by the county manager.  
 
Discussion: 

 Questions on county match requirements. Mr. Kornegay responded that a match is not required.   
 
Chair Andrews Conducted A Roll-Call Vote: 
Chair Andrews: Aye 
Vice-Chair Spooner: Aye 
Commissioner Dougherty: Aye 

Commissioner Riddick: Aye 
Commissioner Thompson: Aye 

 
Motion Carries 5-0 
 

7. COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS – RICHARD KOMANDO – No comments.  
 

8. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
 

Vice Chair Spooner: 
 HUB moved back to community center on Old Lawtey Road. 
 Encouraged citizens to use Career Source Center.  

 
9. CHAIR COMMENTS – None.  

 
ADJOURN: There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 10:25 a.m.  
 
 
        BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
        BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
               
        DIANE ANDREWS, CHAIR 
ATTEST: 
 
        
DENNY THOMPSON, CLERK TO THE BOARD 
       
MINUTES PREPARED BY:           
     RACHEL RHODEN, CHIEF DEPUTY CLERK 
 
 
Minutes approved by the BOCC during a scheduled meeting on:       



Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET (AIIS) 
 
 
DATE OF MEETING:        September 21, 2023  
    
AGENDA ITEM_       Reg. Meeting Minutes from August 17, 2023. 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Clerk’s Office   
 
PURPOSE: Approval of minutes.  
 
ASSOCIATED COSTS: N/A  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 



 

Page 1 of 7 
 
 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
August 17, 2023 

6:30 P.M.  
Bradford County Courthouse 

945 North Temple Avenue 
Starke, Florida 32091 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:   Commissioner District 5 – Chair Diane Andrews  
      Commissioner District 1 – Vice-Chair Carolyn Spooner  

Commissioner District 2 – Kenny Thompson   
      Commissioner District 3 – Joseph C. Dougherty 
      Commissioner District 4 – Danny Riddick  
        
PRESS PRESENT: Bradford County Telegraph  
 
STAFF MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE: County Manager Scott Kornegay; Executive Assistant Amanda 
Brown; County Attorney Rich Komando; Clerk of Court Denny Thompson; Chief Deputy Clerk Rachel 
Rhoden; Finance Director Dana LaFollette; Tax Collector Teresa Phillips; Emergency Management Director, 
Lt. Brad Witt; Public Works Director Jason Dodds; and Fire Rescue Chief Ben Carter.  
 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Andrews called the meeting to order at 6:30 P.M.  
 
Chair Andrews announced that there would be two amendments added to the agenda that would be addressed 
under county manager reports: 1) a letter acknowledging the board’s obligation to fund the tax collectors salary; 
and 2) a draft letter to the citizens regarding a proposed increase to the solid waste assessment.  

 
2. PUBLIC HEARING – ENACTMENT OF ORDINANCES – RANDY ANDREWS, ZONING 

DIRECTOR.  
 
Items 2 A-B were deferred during the planning and zoning meeting and were not addressed during the 
commission meeting.  
 

A. AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE PLAN MAP OF THE 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, RELATING TO AN AMENDMENT OF 50 OR LESS 
ACRES OF LAND, PURSUANT TO AN APPLICATION, S230613A (J. 
GETZEN/PARCEL NUMBER 02827-0-00000), BY THE PROPERTY OWNER 
CHANGING THE LAND USE CLASSIFICATION FROM RESIDENTIAL, LOW 
DENSITY (LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 2 DWELLING UNITS PER ACRE) TO 
INDUSTRIAL. 

B. AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING ATLAS OF THE LAND 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS, RELATING TO THE REZONING OF LESS THAN 
TEN CONTIGUOUS ACRES OF LAND, PURSUANT TO AN APPLICATION, Z 23-03 
(J. GETZEN/PARCEL NUMBER 02827-0-00000), BY THE PROPERTY OWNER OF 
SAID ACREAGE; PROVIDING FOR CHANGING THE ZONING DISTRICT FROM 
RURAL RESIDENTIAL (RR) TO INDUSTRIAL, LIGHT AND WAREHOUSING (ILW). 



 

Page 2 of 7 
 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS.  
 Paul Still 
 Carol Mosley  

 
4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS: 

A. REGULAR MEETING MINUTES FROM JULY 20, 2023. 
B. WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES FROM JULY 20, 2023. 
C. PROCARE SERVICES STRYKER RENEWAL AGREEMENT FOR EMS STRETCHER 

MAINTENANCE. SERVICE TERM: JUNE 18, 2023 – JUNE 17, 2024. ASSOCIATED 
COST: $14,349.75 

D. BILLBOARD – BRADFORD COUNTY TOURIST DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
ASSOCIATED COST $7,200. 

E. LETTER OF REQUEST FOR FDEP TO CONVEY STATE-OWNED DOUGLAS 
BUILDING PROPERTY AS A GIFT FOR THE GREATER BENEFIT TO THE PUBLIC 
UNDER RULE 18-2.018(3)(B), FAC ITEM 1C. 

F. NFEDC $10,000 FUNDING FOR PROJECT DOUGLAS.  
G. PROPOSAL FROM SCARLET CYBERSECURITY FOR A ONE-TIME IT CYBER 

SECURITY AUDIT SOLE SOURCE. ASSOCIATED COST $20,427.64. 
H. SIGNATURE BY BOCC CHAIR FOR SMALL PROJECT COMPLETION AND 

CERTIFICATION FORM REGARDING HURRICANE IAN (DR-4673). 
I. EXTENSION OF AGREEMENT FOR IT SERVICES WITH AVENU ENTERPRISE 

SOLUTIONS (SOLE SOURCE) FOR FLORIDA CASA SPECIAL ASSESSMENT 
SOFTWARE FOR OCTOBER 1, 2023 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 - $8,168.04). 

 
It was MOVED by Commissioner Dougherty and SECONDED by Commissioner Thompson to approve 
consent agenda.  
 
Discussion: none 
 
Chair Andrews Conducted A Roll-Call Vote: 
Chair Andrews: Aye 
Vice-Chair Spooner: Aye 
Commissioner Dougherty: Aye 
Commissioner Riddick: Aye 
Commissioner Thompson: Aye 
 
Motion Carries 5-0 
 

5. MUNICREATIVE/THE NET GROUP ONLINE PRESENTATION – NATHAN THORNTON.  
 
Mr. Thornton, shared a PowerPoint presentation of website design work performed with various clients 
including the Bradford County Sheriff’s Office; Clerk of Circuit Court; City of Starke; Town of Brooker; and 
City of Hampton.  
 
Discussion: 

 County website could be designed with links that connect into other county pages and community 
agencies.  



 

Page 3 of 7 
 
 
 

It was MOVED by Commissioner Dougherty and SECONDED by Commissioner Thompson to approve 
moving forward with Mr. Thornton and his services.  
 
Mr. Kornegay advised that the agenda item is for presentation and discussion purposes only, it is not meant for 
action. He further advised that staff is seeking direction from the board on whether it would like for staff to 
move forward with engaging the group.   
 
It was MOVED by Commissioner Dougherty and SECONDED by Commissioner Thompson to withdraw 
the motion and move forward with engaging the group.   

 
6. CLERK REPORTS – DENNY THOMPSON 

 
Before the clerk's office completes and prepares the tentative budget for fiscal year 2023–2024 to be presented 
at the first budget hearing, Clerk Thompson asked the board if there were any budget matters that needed to be 
discussed. The board responded in the negative.  
 
Discussion: 

 The clerk's office, and specifically Finance Director Dana LaFollette, were thanked for their efforts in 
preparing the budget. 

 
7. SHERIFF REPORTS – GORDON SMITH 

 
Chair Andrews recognized Emergency Management Director, Lt. Brad Witt to present agenda items 7 A-C.  
 

A. REQUEST TO COMPLETE THE PARTICIPATION REQUEST FORM FOR 
BRADFORD COUNTY TO PARTICIPATE IN THE FLORIDA RECOVERY 
OBLIGATION CALCULATION (F-ROC). 

 
Lt. Witt asked for board for approval to join the F-ROC program with the state. The state will collaborate 
analyze and score the county’s recovery policies and procedures in order to get a share of funds in the event of a 
disaster. 
 
It was MOVED by Vice Chair Spooner and SECONDED by Commissioner Dougherty to move forward 
with the F-ROC application.  
 
Chair Andrews Conducted A Roll-Call Vote: 
Chair Andrews: Aye 
Vice-Chair Spooner: Aye 
Commissioner Dougherty: Aye 
Commissioner Riddick: Aye 
Commissioner Thompson: Aye 
 
Motion Carries 5-0 
 

B. REQUEST BOARD DIRECTION ON THE DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS RECEIVED 
IN HURRICANE IAN PUBLIC ASSISTANCE CLAIM - $13,332.73. 

 



 

Page 4 of 7 
 
 
 

Lt. Witt asked the board for guidance on how the county should deposit FEMA funds in the amount of  
$13,332.73 (now in a FLAIR account) from its Hurricane Ian public assistance claim. The sheriff's office 
generated $7,111.27 and the public works department generated $6,221.46 of the total FEMA claim amount. 
 
It was MOVED by Vice Chair Spooner and SECONDED by Commissioner Riddick to deposit funds into 
the general fund. 
 
Chair Andrews Conducted A Roll-Call Vote: 
Chair Andrews: Aye 
Vice-Chair Spooner: Aye 
Commissioner Dougherty: Aye 
Commissioner Riddick: Aye 
Commissioner Thompson: Aye 
 
Motion Carries 5-0 
 

C. REQUEST TO SIGN A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) BETWEEN 
BRADFORD COUNTY AND FEEDING NORTHEAST FLORIDA. 

 
Lt. Witt asked the board to enter into an MOU with Feeding Northeast Florida so that they can be included in 
emergency plans and meetings and be readily available to setup distributions centers in the county after 
emergency situations to provide commodities to citizens. This partnership is free to the county. 
 
It was MOVED by Vice Chair Spooner and SECONDED by Commissioner Dougherty to enter into an 
MOU between Bradford County and Feeding Northeast Florida.   
 
Discussion  

 Comments on the productive work Northeast Florida provides.  
 
Chair Andrews Conducted A Roll-Call Vote: 
Chair Andrews: Aye 
Vice-Chair Spooner: Aye 
Commissioner Dougherty: Aye 
Commissioner Riddick: Aye 
Commissioner Thompson: Aye 
 
Motion Carries 5-0 
 
Vice Chair Spooner provided comments encouraging cooling stations. Lt. Witt advised that his team, at the 
direction of Sheriff Smith, is working on a plan, that is county supported through emergency management, to 
address cooling stations.  

 
8. COUNTY MANAGER REPORTS – SCOTT KORNEGAY 

 
 AMENDMENT TO THE AGENDA – ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF TAX COLLECTOR 

SALARY.  
 



 

Page 5 of 7 
 
 
 

Mr. Kornegay advised that the first item to be addressed as an amendment to the agenda is an acknowledgement 
letter that the board acknowledge its obligation to fund a portion of the salary of the tax collector until such time 
that the tax collector returns the funds to the board.  
 
It was MOVED by Vice Chair Spooner and SECONDED by Commissioner Dougherty to acknowledge 
the salary.  
 
Discussion – none.  
  
Chair Andrews Conducted A Roll-Call Vote: 
Chair Andrews: Aye 
Vice-Chair Spooner: Aye 
Commissioner Dougherty: Aye 
Commissioner Riddick: Aye 
Commissioner Thompson: Aye 
 
Motion Carries 5-0 
 

 AMENDMENT TO AGENDA – NOTICE TO INCREASE SOLID WASTE ASSESSMENT.  
 
Mr. Kornegay advised that the second item to be addressed as an amendment to the agenda is a notice to the 
citizens of the county’s intent to increase the solid waste assessment. A letter will be mailed to all residents, as a 
notice requirement, before proceeding with a resolution to enact the increase. Mr. Kornegay advised that the 
current rate of $75.00 was established in 1987 and has not changed until now, it reflects a 67% increase (less 
than 2% a year between 1987 and 2023). 
 
It was MOVED by Commissioner Thompson and SECONDED by Commissioner Dougherty to move 
forward with the notification letter.  
 
Chair Andrews Conducted A Roll-Call Vote: 
Chair Andrews: Aye 
Vice-Chair Spooner: Aye 
Commissioner Dougherty: Aye 
Commissioner Riddick: Aye 
Commissioner Thompson: Aye 
 
Motion Carries 5-0 
 

 Mr. Kornegay recognized Public Works Director Jason Dodds to present a PowerPoint slide of roads 
being paved in-house. The presentation showed images of the S.E. 48th road across from Wal-Mart and 
repairs made to S.E. 2nd Avenue in the Keystone Gold Country Club. Mr. Dodds reported that he has 
found a vendor that can now provide the quantity required to pave roads. Mr. Dodds spoke about how 
knowledgeable his workforce has become with respect to paving roads and thanked other departments – 
solid waste and maintenance – for their support in keeping roads and county right-of-way areas 
maintained as well.  
 



 

Page 6 of 7 
 
 
 

 Mr. Kornegay recognized Fire Rescue Chief Ben Carter to present a PowerPoint slide of a Bradford 
County Rescue Unit meeting with a UF Health Alachua County Mobile Stroke Treatment Unit (MSTU). 
The MSTU is equipped with a CT scanner; they can begin stroke therapy and IV treatments. Mr. Carter 
reported that his team partnered with Shands and Alachua County Fire Rescue (ACFR) for utilization of 
this unit on August 5, 2023 and since that time there have been 2 stroke activations. In those situations, 
Mr. Carter reports that due to the capabilities of said unit, the patient’s symptoms were resolved prior to 
arrival at the ER. Mr. Carter advised that this is the first unit in the state of Florida, and Bradford is the 
first county, besides Alachua, that has access to it. Lastly, Mr. Carter provided stats on fire and EMS 
calls.  
 

 Chair Andrews advised the board that she and Mr. Kornegay met with Clay Electric recently to discuss 
engagement of a franchise fee agreement. She informed the board that Clay Electric claims that they are 
unable to participate in a franchise fee agreement because they are governed by their members, and 
according to a survey with their members, more than half indicted they are not interested in taking part 
in a franchise fee.  

 
Discussion:  

 Comments not accepting the position of Clay Electric. Interest in obtaining the survey results.  
 Comments on the number of surveys sent to customers (between 2,000 and 5,000) and responses 

received (approximately 200).  
 

 According to Mr. Kornegay, the Legislative Delegation Hearing is anticipated to take place on 
November 1, 2023, most likely at 1:00 pm or 2:00 pm. The finalized schedule will be reported once it 
has been confirmed. 

 
9. COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS – RICHARD KOMANDO – No reports.  

 
10. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

 
VICE CHAIR SPOONER  

 Announcement of townhall meetings in Brooker and Lawtey.  
 Announcement of America Program.  
 Announcement of CareerSource Program for employment services.  
 Thanked everyone for birthday wishes.  

 
11. CHAIR COMMENTS  

 Announcement of Wal-Mart Wellness Days for free health screenings - Saturday, August 19, 
2023.  

 
Chief Carter announced the funeral services for Rusty Sullivan, a long-time Fire Chief at the Theressa Fire 
Department.  
 
ADJOURN: There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:25 p.m.  
 
 
 



 

Page 7 of 7 
 
 
 

        BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
        BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
               
        DIANE ANDREWS, CHAIR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
        
DENNY THOMPSON, CLERK TO THE BOARD 
       
 
MINUTES PREPARED BY:           
     RACHEL RHODEN, CHIEF DEPUTY CLERK 
 
 
 
Minutes approved by the BOCC during a scheduled meeting on:       



Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET (AIIS) 
 
 
DATE OF MEETING:         September 21, 2023  
    
AGENDA ITEM_       Workshop Meeting Minutes from August 17, 2023. 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Clerk’s Office   
 
PURPOSE: Approval of minutes.  
 
ASSOCIATED COSTS: N/A  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 



August 17, 2023 
BoCC Workshop Meeting Minutes  
 

Page 1 of 3 
 
 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
August 17, 2023 

5:00 P.M.  
Bradford County Courthouse 

945 North Temple Avenue 
Starke, Florida 32091 

 
WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES 

 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:   Commissioner District 5 – Chair Diane Andrews  
      Commissioner District 1 – Vice Chair Carolyn Spooner 
       Commissioner District 3 – Joseph C. Dougherty 
      Commissioner District 4 – Danny Riddick 
             
BOARD MEMBERS NOT PRESENT:  Commissioner District 2 – Kenny Thompson 
       
PRESS PRESENT: None  
 
STAFF MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE: County Manager Scott Kornegay; Executive Assistant Amanda 
Brown; County Attorney Rich Komando; Zoning Director Randy Andrews; and Chief Deputy Clerk Rachel 
Rhoden. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Andrews called the meeting to order at 5:00 P.M.  
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 Paul Still 

In summary, Mr. Still suggested that the board develop separate policies for mining and borrow pit operation.  
 Tim Hollingsworth (employee of Chemours)  

In summary, Mr. Hollingsworth provided comments of Chemours dedication to the environment.  
 Carol Mosley 

In summary, Ms. Mosley provided information on various mining operations and impacts.  
 Joanne Trembly 

In summary, Ms. Trembly was present to represent Our Santa Fe River Organization indicating that the group is 
adversely affected by mining activities in Bradford County.  

 Beth Moore 
Ms. Moore asked the board to provide guidance on whether it wants to prohibit all mining activities that 
impacts wetlands and surface water. She advised that Chemours respectfully requests that the board answer no 
for the following reasons. First, certain types of mining like titanium mining that Chemours does has a 
temporary impact to wetlands and can be restored, potentially to better conditions. Second, by prohibiting 
mining activities that impacts wetlands, the county will be treating mining activities differently than other 
development activities that are allowed to impact wetlands. There is an existing regulatory process in place with 
the state to allow a property owner to impact wetlands on their property. Third, prohibiting mining impacts in 
wetlands could effectively make future mining in the county not viable.  
 



August 17, 2023 
BoCC Workshop Meeting Minutes  
 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 
 

 Kristin Rubin  
In summary, Ms. Rubin was present to represent the Sierra Club in support of mining regulations.  
 
Chair Andrews recognized Zoning Director Randy Andrews who acknowledged that the purpose of tonight’s 
workshop was to discuss objective i.3.1 – a broader definition of wetlands and surface waters, and buffer zones 
to be placed on mining operations. 
 
Discussion:  

 Mr. Andrews asked Scott Koons, Executive Director with the North Central Florida Regional Planning 
Council (NCFRPC) to provide clarification on wetland definitions. Mr. Koons responded that the 
board’s existing Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Regulations has detailed definitions of 
wetlands and surface waters. He advised the board to look at the definitions and advise if further 
refinement is necessary. He stated that it addresses what is included and excluded in those activities.  

 Buffer recommendation. Mr. Koons advised that the proposed 500-foot buffer is intended to protect 
wetlands and surface waters based on 73 studies and peer reviews; however, the board may modify the 
recommendation before they adopt. Mr. Andrews advised that he recalled that the HPS mining 
application may have had a 200-foot buffer from the New River.  

 Surface water. Mr. Koons stated that the proposed regulations would not have a significant impact on 
silviculture.  

 Remarks that the board should not add additional layers of regulation to matters that are already covered 
by regulations from other agencies. 

 Comments in support of proposed regulations from the NCFRPC.  
 Shawn (last name inaudible) representing Rayonier was called to the podium to speak on the matter of 

surface water. She advised that the board meet with FDEP to discuss the proposed regulation and have 
measures in place to hold agencies accountable.   

 Beth Moore advised that Chemours needs to look carefully at the definitions because they may differ 
from the state. She advised that she believes they can work with the county on the buffers and would be 
interested in reviewing the 73 studies that were used to support the recommended buffer. Ms. Moore 
asked the board to provide clarification on what document the group is working from? Chair Andrews 
confirmed that the board is working on the proposed definitions that Mr. Koons presented.    

 Paul Still made remarks that mining regulations do not apply to timber operations and reminded the 
board that what is before them concerns mining operations.  

 
ADJOURN: There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 5:49 p.m.  
 
After the meeting adjourned, Commissioner Riddick wanted to know what would happen next. Mr. Andrews 
suggested that the county conduct additional research and postpone plans for another workshop. Chair Andrews 
advised that the board would let everyone know when the next meeting is scheduled. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



August 17, 2023 
BoCC Workshop Meeting Minutes  
 

Page 3 of 3 
 
 
 

        BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
        BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
               
        DIANE ANDREWS, CHAIR 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
        
DENNY THOMPSON, CLERK TO THE BOARD 
       
 
MINUTES PREPARED BY:           
     RACHEL RHODEN, CHIEF DEPUTY CLERK 
 
 
 
Minutes approved by the BOCC during a scheduled meeting on:       



BOARD OF COUNTY COMNTISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FI.ORIDA

AGE,ND.\ ITENI INFOR}IATION ST IEEI'

DA"IE: 9-21-2023

AGENDA ITEM: Sute Aid to Libraries Grant Agreemenr

DEPARTMENT: Public Ubrary

PURPOSE: Seekins permission to aooh' for the Srate fud ro Libraries Grant

ASSOCIATED COST(S): N /A

BUDGBTLINE (G/L #): N/A

Page 
.1 of 1



24-ST-39
Bradford County Public Library

STATE AID TO LIBRARIES GRANT

AGREEMENT BETWEEN

THE STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF STATE

ANI)

Bradford County Board of County Commissioners for and on behalf of Bradford

County Public Library

Thb Agreenrrr b by ad b€tween the State ofFlorila Departnrrn ofstate, Divbbn of Lhary ard trtronrntbn Servbes, hereirnffer reftned to

as ttr 'Divisior!" ad the Bradbrd Coufy Board of Cowty Cormissiorrersfur ard on behaf ofBradfind Corrry hrblb LiLrrary, hercinafter

re€ned tn as tle 'Crrartee-"

The Crrarree tus submitted an applicattrn ard has rrrt all efub ity requirenrrns ard tns been awarded a State Ai1 to t brarbs Crrarn (CSFA

45.030) by the Divisbn in tlre amut sp€cifed on the 'Fiscal Year 2023-24 State Ail to Ljbrarilr Final Cirarts" docrrrEnt (\ ftbh is

irEorporated as part ofthb Agreenrrn ad ertitbd Atackrrn B). The Divbbn bas the aldnrity to adrinbter thb Brarf in ac.ordarce $dh

Ser,t;nn251, Florida Srar?res. By refercrre, tir appltatbn ard any approied revbbrr are hereby nade a part ofdrb agreenErfi"

In corsileration of0r m-tul corerwfs ard prorises contained hererl tlre parties agree as folkrws;

I Grarf Purpose. 'llis grarf sball be used e)ctrsi\€ly fu tlle 'State Ail to Librarbs Crrart " ttr pubb pupose fir u.trbh these flrds were

appmpriated.

a) The C'rartee shall perbrm the filbwirg Scope of Work:

In accorrdarre witlr Septurr25l .17-257 .18, Florila Stah-tes, *E C.,rantee shall receiw a gran arrDurf that is cabulated and

based rpon bcal f-rds eperded during tlrc second precedirg ftcal lear for tlre operatbn ard nairrernrre ofthe fibrary. For thb

gmr( t}r bcal experdiffies slull harc been nnde dung ttrc period October l, 202 I - Septerber 30, 2022.

In orrder to be eligbb to receiw tlre grarr flrding the C,rartee shall nanage or coordirnte tee lbnry servbe to the resdents ofits
bgal service area for t}rc peri:d October I , 202 I tro4h Jwr 30, 2024. T1p Crartee stnlt

" IIarre a smgb adninistcatire trcad enpbled fl tirrr by the library's goveming body
o Provirle tee library service, irchding kranng nnterials alaiabh tn circubtion fee ofclnrge ard provding refererre ard

ffinmtbn sewices fee ofclnrge;
o PmviCe access to nateriah, irdbrnntion ard servbes for all resiCents of t}r area serrrd; ard
o [Ia\€ at bast orE library, brarrh library or nrnber hbrary open,10 hous or nnre each week (e:rchdmg holidap or

enrrgurcbs; bet*een Suday tlrough Satr:rday, on a schedub detemirrd by ttr fibmry qsterr] dwng t]E bogfh oft]E
ag€enEn.

b) The Cnarree agrees to provile the frlbwing Deliveraues rehted to the Scope ofWork br payrerrs to be awarded.

Paprrn t, Deliraerabh/Iask :

State AiC to Llrrades Ciant Agreerrcnr (FormDLIySAm)

Orapter I82.01 1(2Xa), F/ orida Adninistrat ive Code. Efrecti\e 6-2023

Page: 1



Payrcrn will be a l ed price in the annut of I 00% ofthe grant award for the perbd Octobff I , 202 I tkough Jurr 30, 2024.

The Grartec will

o Flare epended flrds to pmvile tee hb.ary seruice duirE tlE perird October l, 2021 - Septenber 30, 2022:

o Proviie an Ery€nditrne Report ard cenifcatbn ofLocal OpeBtirg Frperdifies 6r tle perird October I , 202 I -
Sqtenber 30, 2022 only

o Pmvile docrrrrrratbn showing that at bas orr library, brarrh fibrary or nrn$er tbrary is open4O horrs or nnre each

week (excldirg holidals or enErgerci?s; between Suday tlnougfl Saurday, on a schedub detemirpd by the fibmry

slstem) dr.riry tlE hgth of the agreenrnt;
o Provile tre Certifcatbn ofCredertbb 6r the Singb Adninistrathe Head; ard
o Provide a Certifcatbn of Hows, Free Lfurary Service and Access to Materhh.

Crrarr fi.uds slall be tsed fur ttr operation ad nnirternrrce ofthe library. The albwable budget categori:s are: Persorrrl
Servbes (sahrEs, wages, ard rehted enpkryee berrfs provded for all persom uployed by tle reportig ertrity *lrcther on firll
tinE, part-tim, tenporary, or seasonal basis); Operatirg Eqrerses (experdih.u:es fur goods ard services rntrbh prinnnly bereft
drc currerf perird ard are rnt defird as persornl servbes or capital or.tbys); NoFFixe<l Capital Orfhy (or{hy.s ftr the

acqubition ofor addition to fted assets); ard Other (otlrr opcratrg ery€dfrue categorbs n ttr fibrary hdget).

c)

)

3

4

IJIgth ofAgreerDnL This AgeerrErf corers ttr peri:d ofOctober l, 2021 to Jr[E 30, 2024, mbss teminated in accordarrce with

ttre provbbrs ofSectbn 28 ofdris Ag€errErf. ltb perird begim with the start ofthe Crrartee's secord preceding fscal year (October l,
2021) ard corchdes with tlE erd ofthe State ofFhrila's crrrert fiscal year (JuE 30, 2024).

Expediturt of Gnm Fhds. C,rad lirrds will be rsed to reinbrrse a portbn of lrcal lirds expended by th C,r'artee durng tlreir

secord precedirg fucal lear (October l. 2021 - Septerrber 30, 2022) for th operatbn ard nnirternrpe ofa htrary ard shall mt
exceed tle anmrrt specifed in AfiachrEr( B.

Contract Adninistration The partbs are bgalty borrd by ttre requirereffs ofthb agr€:enErr. Each party's cortract rrnnagcr, rnnrd
below, udl be resporsbb for nnnitorirg is perbrnnrrce wder 0ris fureenrrr and udl be t]re oficial cor(act tr each party. Any

rntice(s) or other conrruricatbrs regarding thb agreenrcrr shall be diected !o or delivered to the other pards conh'act n-anager by
rt nirg tlE ffimBtion bebw. Any clnnge in the cortact ffirnntbn bebw shouE be submitted in writtg to the corhact nErBger within

l0 dap ofthe ctnnge.

For the Division of t-ibrary and Inforuution Scrviccs:

TomPetu, Grant Prcgmns Srpervbor

Fbrkla DepartrrEd of State

RA Cray hrldrg
Ma Stabn # 9D
500 SouI &omwh Steet
Talhlussee, FL 3239-0250
Phorr: 850.245.6620

Ernit thonas.pern@dos.myfl orila.com

For the Grantee:

Robert Perorr

State Aid to Ijbrades Crant AgreenEnt (Form DUYSAo2)

Ctapter 182.011(2Xa), Flo rido Adrninistrative Code, mecrive 05-2023

Page:2



5

Bradford County Public Library
456 West Pratt Street Starke Florida 32091-3153
Phorc: 9M.368.3920
Frrnit rperorc@rcflinorg

Grant Paprnts, The total grard a*Brd shall mt exceed tbe alml[fi specified on tbe 'Fbcal Year 2023-24 State Ail to Ubrades Fiml
Cjrads" docurErfi (Attackrrrr B), wibh slnll be pail by ttr Divbbn in corsileratbn for tb Grartee's ninimm perbnrnrre as set

fixth by the terns and corditbrs ofthb AgreenEfi. PaynEr( rvill be a fted price in tlE anDu[ of I 00% ofthe grad award as specifed

in Afiachrrrt B. PayrrEtr will be nade in accordarrce with tbe mnpbtbn of the Deliwnbhs.

E€ctlonic hynEnts. The Crrarree can choose to r6e ebctonic 6-[rds Ealsftr (EFl) to recei\€ grarfi palnsts. All gradees wbhirg to

receie thet anard tkoug! EFT mst subnit a Verdor Dirert Deposit Ar-rlnrizadrn Form (firmnnrber DFS-AI-26F. rev 32022),

irrorporated by reftrerrce, to the Florila DeparfirErfr ofFinarcial Sewices. IfEFT has aheacly been set lp for yolr orgariztbq you do

mt rEed to submit arptlrr autnrizaoon firm unkss you have ctranged bank accorrrs. To downbad this form visit

rm{orilacb.conridocs-s0accowtirE-ard-arditinefibraries\ardorsArcrdor-rehtiowdB-al-26e-direct-deoosit-rendors.odfl

sfrrsreeff/28cf I 6. Tb fom abo irr[des tooh ard irtrornatbn tlnt albw ]ou to check on pa]rrEnfs.

Florida Subetihrte Form W-9. A conpbted Sr,bstitr.re Form W-9 is required fom any emity that recei\€s a paynErfi tom the State of
Fbrita tlnt nny be subject to 1 099 rcporting; The DepartnErt of Finrcial Servbes (DFS) nrst harrc the conect Ta.rya1er Idarifuatbn
Nwrber (IN) ad otlrr rehted ir6nmtbn in order to repod accurate tax inftrnBtbn to the Intennl RevenE Service (lRS). To regster

or access a Fbri:la Stbstin-rc Form W-9 visit flr,erdor.mvforiiacb.com A copy of the C,rantee's Florida Substitute FonnW-9
mrst be subtritted by tte Grafiee to the Division before or with the executed AgreerEnl

Frnamial Comequemes. The DepafirrEfi strall app! t}re filkrwrg ftnrrcial comeqrerces ftr Afrne to perbm tlre ninimrn bvelof
sovices required by thb Agreerrrn in accordare with Sectbrs 215.971 art287.058, Florida Statutes:

Chdit IirEG) to Ackm\rle@e Grant Flmdiry. Tle Division rcquires publb ackrnwledgerrrrr of State Aid to l-brares Crr-arn findrg
6r actirzitl:s ard pubhatbrs srpported by grart flrds- Any arrnwrcenerb, ffirnntioq press rcbases, pr,trlbatbru, broctmes, vdeos,

webpages, prograns, etc., created as part ofa Sta& Ail to I-furades Crr:ant project mst incide an ackmu4edgrErt &at State Ail to
Libraries C,rarf fuds were used to ffeate tbem

Use the blbwing te*:

"Ihb project has been flrded uder the provbbrB oftbe State Ail to Librarbs Cnarn prognr4 adninistered by the Florila Deparffi
of State's Divbbn of Library and Iffinmtbn Servi:es."

10. Graft Expelditures. The Garfee agrees to eryerd a[ grarf fi]rds receirred urder thb agreenur sobly fir t]re purposes ftr u.trich they

were arrlnrired ard approprhted Epeditues shall be in conpliarce with the state guilelires for allo*abb project costs as oulirBd in

the DepartrrEr ofFirErEial Services' Refrrerre Grile 6r State @rdih.res (as ofoctober 2022), ircorporate-d by reftrerrce, ulich

6

7

8

9

Sote Aid to Lb.aries Gatrt AgreenEnt (Form DtlySAo2)
Chapter I82.01 I (2Xa), F/o rida Admin istrutive Code, mecdve 05-2023

Page: 3

The DepaxtrEr( stnfl require t]re return ofttre award in a prorated armurt based Won t]E p€rcerrage oftirrE tnt the [brary A&d to
perbrm the ninim-rn lerel ofservbes. The prorated redrrttrn udll be in the sarE percentage as the percerfage oftinE ttBt tlE fibrary was

rnt provilirg ninimnn br.rl ofservices.



are a\aihbb onlirE at r.r{orilac6.corrldocs-sflaccoufing.ard-auditirE.fibrarLystate-amncbs/reererEe-gulle-ftr-slate-

ooerdi0res.pdfl sfusrFMcc3337 2.

Grad fnds nDy mt be r6ed fu the prtrcltsse or comtrtrctbn of a library bu)dirg or hbrary quarten

11. Tiavel ExFrrses. The C,rartee rrust pay any tra!€l oiperses, fomgtart or kcal nntchirg f.rds, in accordarce to t}r provisiors of
Sertbn 112.061, Florido Statules.

12. UnoHigrted ard Urearrcd Firn& and AllonaUe C-osts. In accordarce with Sectbn 215.971 , Flori&t Statutes, te C,rartee shall

ref,nd to the State ofFbrila any bahrce ofunbligated fl.rds r,hich has been adrarped or pail to tlt C,rafiee. In addilbr\ frds paiJ in

ercess ofthe armus tc u&hh tl)e recipirr b ertitH uder the tenrs ard cordtiors ofth agreermft rllst be refi[ded to t]E state

agercy. Furtler, the rec[Lrt nay eperd fuds only ftr albwabb costs resuhirg from obligtiors irrcured duirg the specifud ageerrrr
perbd EJgerditrnes ofstate frErEial asstslarEe rn6t be in mrpliame with ttre hws, nrles ard reguhtbm apphabb to experdinres of
State firds as odlined in the DepartrErf ofFimrcbl Service's ReftrerEe Grile br State trperdrrres (as ofOctober 2022)

rvforllacfir.corddocs-sflaccoutirE:ard-auditirE-bharieVstate-agerrbvreftrerce-sude-fur-state-e)orerditues.pdfl

sfusrrMcc3337 2. ircorporated by refererce.

13. Repalmnt AII refirds or repayreffs !o be rmde to the DepartrErt urder thb agreenerr are io be nnde payable to the order of
'DepartrErd ofstate 'ard nEiled directly to tte blbwirg addrcss: Fbrila Departrrrrt ofstate, Altetrbn Thonns Peia" Divbbn of
Lbrary ard Infurnntbn Services, 500 Sorf,r Brornugh Sb:eet, Ma Statbn #9D, Talhlnssee, FL 32399. In accordarrce with Seabn

215 .34Q), Florida Statales, ifa check or otlEr draff b renrred to the Departrrnt for colbctbr! Reciph shal pay to the Departrrnt
a servbe fre of$15.00 or fi\€ perceff (5%d ofthe fice annunt olthe rchnrEd clEck or dmt, *fiicherer b greater.

14. Siryl€ Audt Act Each Crrarree, ot'rrr tlnn a C,rartee that b a State agercy, slBll subrit to an atdit pusrwr to S eabr.2l5.97, Florida
S/arlres. See AfiachlErf A ftr additbrnl inbnrntLrn regardir€ thb requirenEnt Ifa C,rarfee b rnt rcquired by bw to cordrct an audit

in accordarce widr tlre Fbrila Sirgle Adit Act becatse it dll rcl experd at hast $750,000 in sate frrarcialassitarce, it rn,lst sr,bnit a

Firnrcial Report on ib operatbm pwsuart to Sec{nn218.39, Floritla Statdes wilhin nirr rmrdrs of the ckrse of its ftcal par. Adie
m.rst be submitted on fu mS Crrarts Slstem at dosgrants.com

15. Retention of Accoumirg Recolt. Firnrrial records, srpportrg docmerts, statbti:al rccords ard all other records, irrhdng
ebctonb slorage rrEdb pertirEr[ to fu ftojec! shall be retairrd frr a perird offtr (5) ftcal ].ean after 0r ckrsmrn ofiiE grart ard

rebase ofthe audil Ifany litigatbn or audit b initiated or chim rrade bebre ttr epiratbn ofttr frr-year perbd, the records shall be

retaired br fire ftcal lean after ttr litigtkrq audit or chim has been resohied.

1 6. Olrigrtion to Prcvile St te Access to Grant Records. The Crrartee nrst rmke all grad records of eryerdinnes, copies of repors,

books, ard rcbted docrrreffatbn araihble to ttr Divlbn or a dr& arrlnrizd rcFesefiatile of tlE State ofFbrila ftr impectnn at

reasornble tines for the prrpose ofnnkirg audis, exarirntbrs, excerpts ard trarsffbts.

17 . OlJigation to Provide hrHic Access to Grant Recort. The Divbbn resen€s the righ to uihteralv canc€l tlis AgreenEl[ in the

evert that the GraDtee rcfses public access to all docr.rrnrts or other rBteriah llnde or rcce ed by the Crantee that are subject to the

provisbrE ofchapter ll9, Florida St atutes, Wnwn as tte Florida Public Records Act. Tte C:rarnee mrst irrrrrcdiately corract tle
Divisbrls Cor$:act Mamgu br assistarce ifit receires a publii records reqEst rehted !o thb AgrcrerrErtr.

18. Norcon$iance. Any G"ntec that b mt followir8 Florila Statrtes or nrles, thc term ofthe gral agrcenErfr, Florida Dcpaffisf of

Slate Aid lo fibraries Gaot AFeerEnt (Forrn DUS/SAo2)

Orapter I82.01 1(2Xa), F/o rida Admin isrrat ilJe Code, Effective 05-2023

Page:4



State (DOS) pohbs and gudalre, bcal pobbs, or other applbabb hw or that has mt subritted rcquired reports or satisfud other

adniniso:atiw requirenrrrs 6r other Divbbn ofl;bmry ard Inbrnntbn Services grafis or graffs fom any other DOS Dlivbbn *dl be in

rnrrconpliarce stahs and subject to tre DOS Crarrs Corrpliarrce Procedrre. DOS Divbbrs irrchde the Division of Ars ard Cutue, tte
Divisbn ofEbctbrs, the Divbbn ofHbtorbal Resources ard the Dir.rsbn ofl-bmry ard Infornatkrn Servi:es. Crrarn conpliarrce bslEs

mst be resohred betne a g"rt awad agreenErt nry be execrtred ard before gmd pa),nEfis br atry DOS grart nny be rebased.

19. AccoufirE Requk€nEfts. TIE C.,rar{ee mrst naintain an accourng s}slem ttBt provdes a conplete record oftlre rse ofall grarn

fi.nds as 6lbws:

a) TIE accoutmg s)6tern nust be able to lpecifcally iile@ and prorrde audit t:aih tllat face the recebt, rmirfenarEe and

expendinre of state firds;

b) Acmutng records mst ade+Etely dediry tiE sources and applbation of iflls fur all grarr acd\iifks ard nust classi$, ard

deffi! gruf fuls by rsirg tlE sanr brdget categories that were appmred in t]r grart appbatbn If Grartee's accourirg

slstem accuruhtes data in a difierert funrat t]nn t]r orr in lhe grart appli:atbq sr.rbsiiary records mst docr.rrrrr ard

recorrcile the anpur s shown in t}p Crrantee's accoufirg records io those armwfs reported to the Divisbtt

c) An imerest-bearing ctEckirg accout or accouss in a state or ftdera\ clnrtered irstitr.tbn nny be tlsed for rerrernrs ard

eperses descnbed in the Scope ofWork ard detaibd in tlrc Estirmted Project Btdget:

d)

e)

0

The nanr oftlB accow(, rmst irrhde tlle grarr award rnnbeq

The Crrantee's accorrfirg records mxt lqra effectirc corfol o\er ard accoutabitty frr all fi:rds, property ard other assetsi ard

Accourtirg records mst be $pponed by source docurrnratbn ard be in $-ffcbrf deta to alhw tr a proper pre-audit and

post-audit (srch as invoirs, b ls ard carrebd checks).

20. Availatility of State Fb&. The State of Florila's perbrnnrrce ard obligtbn to pay uder thb AgreenEr[ are coffingeft rpon an

armralappropriatbn by tbe Fk rila I-egbhtue. In the ewrfr tlnt the state fl.uds pon wtrbh thb AgreerrErf b dependert are witldrawrt

ft[ fureenern *dl tre adonntically teminated ard t]r Divbion stnll hare m firther liabfty to the Crrartee beyord dnse armrrns aheady

eryeded prbr to the temirBtbn date. Srrh teminatbn rdl mt aftct the rcsporst fty oftle Cu'arn{)e r.rder this Agreenrr as to ttDsc

finds previouly dbtrtn-ted. In the evert ola state reianr shorth[ the total grart nlay be reduced accordingly.

2l . I-ot hyiry. The Crrantee w l mt Ise afly grarf fuds br bbbyng the state legsbfine, thc state jdicial brarrh or arry state agcrEy.

22. Independed Corfactor StatE of Grartee. TtE Crarte€, ifmt a state agerEy, agrees tttst its offcels, agprfs and enpkryees, in

perfxrnrre ofthb Agreenrrr, sh2I act in the capacity ofirdeperdefi contraclors ard mt as offcels, agents or erpbyees ofthe state

Tbe Crarree is mt entitbd to accnE arry berEfls ofstate efipbyfiErr, irchdirg rctirenrrr berrfts ard any other rigfos or prrrdeges

corccted with enpbyrerr by tlE State of Florila.

23. Grartree's Subcoffracton.The Crrarree shaltbe resporsbb 6r all wort perbrnrd ard all eryerscs imned in mrrpctkrn with &b
Agreersx" TIE Gradee rray subcorirac! as rEcessary. to perbrmthe services and to provile conrroditbs required by thb Agreen-rm.

The Divisbn slrall rnt be liabb to any subcontracto(s) fir any experses or liabfths irrurred urder the C,rantee's subcoflrac(s), ad tlE
CJrarnee shallbe sobly lhbb to ib subcorlracto(s) frr all expemes ard lhbftbs ircurrcd uder its subcorn'act(s). The Crramee rn6t take

the rEcessary steps to erBrre 0Et each of its srbcortracton wdl be deered to be ideperderf corfactols ard wdl rpt be comirlered or
penritted to be agents, senarts, joirf \aertwers or partrcn oftlre Divisbn

State Aid to tjbrari€s Cratrt ASreerrcDt (Form DUSSA02)

Onpter 182.011(2Xa), F/orido Administrative Code, Efective 0t2023

Page: 5



z4 Liabfity. Tlrc Divbbn will mt assurE any liab ity br the acts, orhsbns to act or rFgligerce ofdre Crrarte€, its agerfrs, senarffs or

orphpes; mr rnay the Crrantee exchde liability fur its orm acts, omissbrs to act or rrcgligerre to the Divbbn

a) The Crrarfee shall be respomble fur chinr ofany ram:e, irr[dirg ht rnt linited to i4iury, deattr ard propelty damge a*ing od
ofactivitbs rehted to tfris fureenrrr by ttr C.rramee, its agerts, serrrants. enpbpes ard subconnactors. The Cr:arfee shall

irdermi& ard tnh tlle Divbbn inrnbss from arry ard all chins of arry rratl.tre ard slBll h\,estEate all srrh chin.s at is own

eryerse. If the Crrarnee b gorenrd by Secmr,768.28, Florida Stalraes, it stnll only be obligted in accordarre widr thb

Sectbn

b) Neitber the state mr afly agercy or subdivbbn ofthe state wai\€s ary defrrse of sorareign inrnrrity or irrreases tle limits of its

lbbility by emcrutg inio tbb Agreerrrrt.

c) The Divbbn strall mt be lhbb fir attorrEy Ees, irteres! bte clrarges or servbe ftes, or cost ofcollectbn rehted to thb

AgeerrEfi-

d) The Crrartee shall be resporsftrb 6r all work perbrnrd ard all srpemes irrcu:red in corrpctbn wi$ the project. The Crrartee

rny subcodract as rEcessary to perft,m the servirs set furtlr in ftb fureenert, irrchdirg ertering irro subcorr'acts with rzerdon

6r services ard conrmditbs, provkled that swh subcorfract lns been approrred in writirg by tlE DepartrErd prkrr to its

exec$bn ard proviled that it is udentood by the Crrarree thx ttr DepartrrEd shall mt be liabb to tlE subcoriractor ftr any

e4erses or liabfrlies ircured uder ttE subcorfi?ct ad that the Crrartee stnll be sobly liabb to the subcortracior for all

experses and lbbilitirx irrcl[r€d uder ttE subcorfact.

25. Strict Confrlience with lam. The Crrarree shall perbrmall acts required by thb Agreenrrr in stit contrmity with all applcabb hws

ard regulattnn oftbe bcal, state ard Gderal hw. For corseqwrces ofrnrronpliarrce, see Sectbn 18, Norronpliarre.

26. No Discrhirntion The Crrartee nBy mt diecrininate agarst any enphl,ee enpbled uder tib Agreenrrn or agaiNt alry apptcant fir
enpk yrErl became ofmce, cobl religioq gerdcr, rntiornl origq age, lnrdbap, pregrrury or rmdtal stahs. The C'rantee shall imert a

simlar provhbn in all of ih subcoriracts ftx servbes uder thb Agrearerr.

27 . Breach of Agreenrtu The Divbbn udl dermrd the ren-rn of gmrt fuds aheady receiwd u.{l wit}rtnh subsequt pa}nrrrs andlor

udl temirde thb agr€enrrt ifthe Cr-arree inproperly epenls ard nraruges grart fiDds; fifr to gepare, preserrt or srrrerder recorG

rcquired by thb AgreerEnq or otherwbe vblates 0ris AgreerrErt.

28 Temination of Agreenrnt The Divbion \ldl terrrirnte or erd tib AgreenErt if tlre Crrartee frib to ftffiI is obl@tbrs herein [n Srrh

ewr4 the Divisbn r,rdl provile the Grarree a mti;€ of its vbhtion by buer and shafl gi\,€ t]E Ca'artee fifteen (15) cabndar dap fiom ttrc

dat€ ofrecebt to cr[e is vbbtbn If tr vbbtbn is mt crred within the stated perbd. the Divbbn \4ill temimte drb Agr€errEd- TIE

mtbe ofr.robtbn lener slnll be delirrcred to the C'rantee's Corn'act Marngo, penonalty, or nBH to hbtEr specified address by a

nrthod that proviles proofofrecefut In the ewn tttst the Divhbn teminates thb AgreenEnt, the Crrartee shall be conpercated fur arry

work conpbted in accord,rEe with thb Ag€errrm prbr to the mtiftatbn of temiratbn iftlE Divbbn deens this reasonabb urder the

circErsarces. C'ranl furds prevbrsly a&arced ard mt expended on work conpbted in accordare with this Agreenrrf shall be

rctrrrEd to the Divbio4 with ifreres! wi&in thirty (30) days affer terminattrn of this Agreercrf. The Divbion does mt waire any of is
rights to addnbd damges if grant ftrds are returrEd rrder tlis Sectkn

29. Preservation ofRenrcdies. No dehy or ontsbn to exercis€ any riett, powcr or renrcdy accn:irg to eitiEr party Lpon breach or

vbhtbn by eit}Er party uder thb AgreerEfi stnll inpair any srh rgit, power or renrdy ofeit]rr party mr shall srch dehy or ontsbn
be corsaued as a waiwr ofarry srch breach or dehuh or any sinrbr breach or defiut-

State Aid to lilr.des Crant AgrcenEnt (Form DLIS/SA02)

Ctaprer 182.011(2Xa), F1o rida Administrative Code, mective 05-2023

Page: 6



30. NorAssign[Errt of Agreenrnt The Crartee rrny mt assign, sr-rblicerse or otherwL'e trarsftr is rights, dtie's or obtgatbrs uder drb

AgreenErt witlnt tlE prbr wdtten corserfr ofthe Divisior! \ltich stafl rnt wreasonably be witttEkl TtE agreerrErt trarEferee mst
de[Drsfale corpliam€ with tl)e requirenErfs oftle project. Ifthe Divbbn approres a trarsfrr ofthe Crrartee's obligtiors, tlre Crrantee

stull rermin liable fur all work perbrned ard all eryerses imrred in co[Ection witl thb AgreerrEd. h ttE ewrt ttr trgshtue
rarE€rs tlE rigtts, drix ard obl@tbrs of the Divhbn to amtEr gownnrrral emity, pusuar 6 S{tbn20.06. Florida Statutes or

otberwise, the rglxs, dties and obligtbrs wder tlis AgreerrErr sldl be t:alsGlred to tE $rceeding gorrcnrrrrtal agercy as if it was

the origirnl party to thb AgreenEm

31. Requind hocurenrnt hocedrcs for ObainirB C,oo& and Services. The Grartee shall provide rrarim,Inopen corpetition u.trn
procurg goods ard servres related to the grut-assisted project in accordarre w h Section 287 .057 , Flonda Stalutes.

a) Procrrenprf ofC-nods and Servbes Not Exceeding $35,000. TIE Grarilee mrst use tE applicabb procuenrcrtr rrrthod

descrbed bebw:

l. Pr.rctnses tb to 52,500: Procuenrrt ofgoods ard services *trere irdivdrnl ptrctrases do mt exce€d $2,500 do rpt
require conpetitbn ard rny be cordrcted at the Crrartee's discretion

2. Purclnses or Corrract &muts Between 52,500 and $35,000: Cnods ard sewi:es costirg between 52,500 ad $35,000

require i6rnal mnpetit'nn ard nay be procued by prclnse order, acceptarce ofwndor proposab or otter
approprbte procrrerrErf docurEr{.

b) Procurenrrt ofC,oods and Serviies kceeding 535,000. C,oods ard servbes costirg orer $35,000 nny be procued by eitlrer

Fonrnl bvitation to Bil, Re$Est frr koposab or lfivitation to Negotiate and nay be procured bypu:chase order, acceptarEe of
rrerdor proposah or other appropriate procurerrErf d(xurErt.

32. Crnflicts of Intercsr The Crrantee hereby certifes tlnt it s cognizrfr ofthe prolnbitbn ofcorffbts ofirrerest descabed in Sectbrs

1 12.3 I I tlrowh I 12 .326, Florida Statutes ad affnm tlBt it wjl rDt erfer inio or rmiDtain a buiress or odrr relationshf with any

erpbyee oftlE DeparftErt ofstate tlnt wouh vbhte tlbse provisions. The Crramee firtlrr agrees to seek artlprization fom the

C'errral Cousel 6r dr DepartnErf ofstate prbr to efiermg irto any bsiness or otlrr rehtkxshf with a DepafinErn ofstaie Erpk yee

to aroil a poterfial vbbtbn of0nse statues.

33. Bfudirg of Sucesson. Thb fureerrrt shall bird the swcessors, assigrs ard legal rcFesqfati\,Es ofthe Crrartee ad ofany legal errrry

tat srrcceeds to the obligtbm ofth Divisbn of l.rbrary and Inbrnntbn Servbes.

34. En+lo),nEnt of Unauthorired Aliens. The enployrEr[ ofwar.ttnrired alers by t]r Cn'ar*ee b comilered a vbhtbn ofSectbn 2744
(a) of t}le Inrrigratnn ad NatiorBlity Act (8 USC I 324(a) (as ofApr 20 I 9)), irrorpomted by refuerce. Ifite C,'rartee knwingly
enphls rnar.tlnrired albm, strh vkrhtbn shallbe carse 6r u: ateral carcelhinn ofthb Agreerrerr.

35. S€veratility. If any term or provbbn of ttE AgeenErn is burd to be bgal ard uneffirceabb, the renaMer will rennin in ftll force and

effect, ard $rh termor provisbn shallbe deerrpd stricken

36. Anrricars with Disatilities Act AII prognns ad frcftbs related to thb AgreenEff rrust nEet tlE staldards ofsectiom 553.501-

553.513, Florida Star /er ard the AnEricars with Disabfties Act of 1 990 lrula. rov (as ofJaruary 2020)), irrorporated by rcferencc).

37 . C,overnirg t-aw. Thb fureennrt shall be corstnrd, perfurn.rcd arrl enforced in all respects in accordarrc€ with the hws ard nrbs of

State Aid to tjbnrbs Crant ASrEenEnt (FormDUgSAo2)

Olapter lPZol l(2Xa)..F/o rida Adrninistrative Code, mecdve 0t2023

Page:7



Fbrila. Venrr or bcatbn br any bgal actbn rbrg uder thb AgreenEr( will be in t eon Courry, Fbriia.

State Ail to Ubrades C.rant Agreenrnt (Form DLIS/SAo2)

Chapter 182.01 l(2xa),4/orida Administratire Code, Blective 0t2023

Page: {i



38. Entire Agreemnt The atire Agreerrrrn ofthe partbs corstts ofthe blbwrg docurrrts:

a) Tlis fureenrcnt
b) Florkla Single Audit Act Requirenrrh (AttacM A)
c) FiscalYear 2023-24 State Ail to tjbmras FirnlGrants 16fi2s1alEn 

g1

The Grantee hereby c€rtifies that th€y havc rcad this entLe Ageerpnt ard rdll cor y Bith all of its requireflrfr.

Grantee: Department of State

By, By

Ctnt ofCowmrg Body or Chief Execr,riw Offcer

Daane Andrews, Chairperson
Bradtord Coutty Board of
County Cotrmissioners

Amy L. Johnson, Director
Division of Library and Information Services
Department of State, State of Florida

Typed name and title

Date Date

Clerk or Chief Firwrial Offcer

Dana Lafo 11e tt e

Finance Director

Witness

Date Date

State Aid to Libraries Crant Agreerrcnr (Form DUS/SA02)

Grapter I82.01l(2Xa), FIo rida ldministrutive Code, Effective 05-2023

Page:9



ATTACHMENT A

FLORIDA SINGLE AUDIT ACT REQUIREMENTS

The adninistratbn ofresor.rces awarded by tlE DepartrErf ofstate to tiE Crrantee nBy be subject to audits ard/or nnnitorrg by the

DepartrrEr[ ofstate as descnbed in t]is Adderdwn to t]p Crrant Award Agreenrnt

Monitoring

In additbn to revb*s ofaudib cordrrcted in accordarre with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requireneffs, ad section 215.9'1 , Florida
Stqtutes (F.5.),asrci,r,ed (see Adits bebw), rmnitoring procedures nay irchde, brtrrntbe limited to, orrsite vbis by Depart[Err ofstate

stafi linital scope ardits as defued by 2 CFR 2 $200.425, or other procedu:es. I ertering irto thb agreenst, tlE recipbrt agrees to conply

ard cooperate wifh ary rmnitodng procedrEvprocesses deenrd appropriate by the Departrem of State. In tlE e\€Ifr tlE Departrrrt ofSate
deterrirEs tat a linted scope ar.rdit ofth recbbt is appropriate, tlr recbietu agrees to conply with arry additbrnl irsmrtbm proviied by tir
DepartxEr[ ofstate stafto trc recipbrr regardirg srrh audit. The recpierr fl]rther agrees !o conply and cooperate wittr any impectbns. revbws,

inrest@tkrrs or audis deenrcd recessary by tlr Chbf Finalrial Offcer (CFO) or Aditor Gerrral

Audits

Part I: Federally Funded

Thb pafi b applicabb ifthe recbiefi t a state or bcal gorenrrrrt or a mrproft organiztion as deftpd in 2 CFR $200.m, $200.64, ad
$200.70.

1. A recipiern that expends $750,000 or nnre in fueral awards in ih ftcal )ear mrst have a sirgle or prograrrrspecifc ardit cordtrttd in

accordarce with ttr provbbm of 2 CFR 200, S$part F - Adit Requirenuts, Exbit I io thb agreerer lsts the lideral resources

awarded tlrougfr ilrc Departrrrt ofState by ftb agreerrrrn. In deternuing tlE ftderat awards experded in its ftcal par, the recipien shan

cors er all sou'ces of Gderal awards, irrhding tderal resou'ces recefued tom the Departrent of State. Ttr determinatbn of amrnts of
tderal awards eryended sbouH be in accordarrce with tlr gullelirEs estabbhed by 2 CFi 200.502-503. An audit oftE recbl'rt
mnduted by the Auditor Crerrral in accordane with the provbbrs of2 CFR 200.5 I 4, w l rrEet the requirerEr[ ofthb Part.

2. For the ardit requirenrrcs addrcssed in Part l, paragraph 1, tbe recpiern shll f,rlfll the requirenrrfrs rehtive to auditee resporstrfties as

proviled in 2 Clq'R 200.508-512.

3 . A recbhr$ that experds hs ftan S750,000 in Ederal awards in its ftcal )ear b mt rEquired to lnrr an ardit cordwted in accordarce

wirh the provbbrs of2 CFR 200, subpart F - Adt RequirenEfis. Ifttr recpbnt eryends bss ttran $750,000 in Gderal awards in its

flscal lear and ebcs to har.e an audit conduted in accordarce with tlp provbbls of2 CFn 200, subpart F - Audit Requirerrcts, tle
m$ ofthe aldit nrst be pail fom mnffieral resor.rces (ie., the cost of swh an audit rnst be pail tomrecipien resou:ces obtairrd

tom other tinn Gderal emitis).

Part II: State Funded

Siate Aid to Libraries Crant AgreErrEnt (Form DLMA02)
Gupter 182.01 l(2Xa), F/orida Administrurive Code. Effeclive 05-2023

Page: l0

AUDIT REOTJIREMENTS



Thb part n apphable ifthe recipiert b a mrstate erlity as defned by section 2 I 5 .97(2) F. S

l. In ltE e\€ri ttrlt the recliert eryerds a total armut ofstate frnrEhl assilarEe e+Bl to or in excess ofS750,000 in arry ftcal }ear ofsrrh
recipirrr (6r frcal years erdirg Jrrc 30, 2017 and tEreafler), the rccbienf mat tB\,e a state sirgle or projecrspecifc audt br srrh ftcal

)ear in acmrdarce widr Sectbn 215.97. flS; Rub Ctnpter 691-5 f'.,4. C, State Finarcial Assbtarre; ard Clapters 10.550 (bcal

go\EnnErral erfitb$ ard 10.650 (mrproft ard br-proft orgarizafons), fuihs ofthe Auditor CTeTETaL EXHIBIT I to this agre€nErt

indi:ates state ftwrial assistarre awarded tkorgh the Depannern of State by ftb agreenrrl- In detenrhirg the state fuamial assistarce

elperded in its ftcal lear, tbe recbbn slnll mmiler all souces of stale ftwrcial assistame, irr[dirg state ftwrial assbarrce receired

fiom the Deparffi ofstate, ottEr state agercies, and other mnstate efiti:s. Stale frE rial asskErEe does mt hchde frderal direct or

pass-tkoqh a*ards and rcsouc€s recei\€d by a mrsate emity 6r Gderal plogram nntcbing requirenErrs.

2. For tbe adit rcquirererts ad&essed in Part II, paragraph l, the recipbrt slnll ersue that tlE adit corplies wilh the requirenErrs of
Sectbn 215.97(8), F.S Tht irrhdes sbnirsbn ofa ftwnbl reportirg package as deftred by Sectbn 215.97(2) F..L, ard ClEpters

10.550 (bcal gowrnErial errilts) ad 10.650 (mrproft and br-proft organiatbrs), Rules of ttr Aditor Crrrral

3 . IftlE recbieft experds less tffr $750,000 in state &wrial assistarEe in its ftcal lear (ftr ftcal yeats erdirg JrrE 30, 20 I 7 ard

thereafter), an ardit condrrted in accordarre with the provhbrs of Sectbn 2 I 5 .97, F..i. , b mt rcquired. In tlE eve that the rccbbd
eryerds bss ttun $750,000 in state ftrarrial assbtarre in its fiscal )ear ard elects tro ha!€ an audit cordrcted in accordarce with tle
provbiors ofSectbn 215.97, ES., tlE cost ofthe ardit rnst be pail tom tlr mrstate er*ity's resouces (1e., the cost ofsrrh an audit

mst be paii fomth rccipb's resouces obtairrd fomother ttm Strte errtl?s).

TlE Irfenrt web addresses lbrcd bebw wil assist r€cblrfs in bcatirE doqrErfs reFrerEed in tE Ef oftrb agreenrr ard tlE uferytetatbn

of conpliarce isrrs.

Sgte ofFbrida DepaftrEm Finarcial Servbes (ChbfFirnrrcial Oficer)

ho /&rlv.rVf oritac6.mrd

State of Fbrila t egbht-Ee (Stat-tes, bgbhtion rehtirg to the Fbrita Singh Adit Ac0
tntp//wu.rv.legstate.f-rd

Paft III: Report Submission

Copls ofnportirg packages 6r audis cordrrted in accorrdarrce with 2 CFR 200, SLbpart F - Ardit Requirerrerls, ad rcquircd by
PART I ofihb agreenEd stnll be s*nritte4 utrn requirrcd by 2 CF'R 200.5 12, by or on behafofth recfubrt directly to each ofthe

6[owirg:
A. TtE DepartrErt ofsbte via fu mS Cnarts Slstem at tqs///dosgrarrs.com

B. TIE Federal Audit Cbarrghoue (FAC) as pmviled in 2 CFR 200.6 ard secinn 200.512

The FAC's website prides a data erry qstem ard required ftrns for subnittrg tir sirgb ardit reponig package. Llpdates to the

bcatbn oftbe FAC ard data enty slctem nny be 6rrd at ttr OMB website.

2. Copies offtnrrial reporting packages required by PART II ofthb agreerrerr slnll be snnitted by or on behatroftr recbht directly to

each oftle 6[owirg;

A. Th€ DeparfiErt ofstate vb *E mS Crrafis Sysemat hos'///dosgrarts.com

Stste Ail to Ubrades Gsnt A8r€elrEDt (Form DUySAO2)

Chapter 18201 l(2xa), F, oida Administrat ive Code,Ffie.l.Ite 05?02j

Page: I I



B. Th Auditor Gerrral's Ofte at tr filbwirg address:

Atditor Crercral

tocal Go\€rrrErr Ardin/342

Chr"ie Pepper B.rldirE, Room40l

I I I West Madbm Street

Talhhassee, Fkxila 32399 - 1450

3 . Arry repors, nrungenrrr btter, or other infurnntbn required to be ubnined !o the DepartrEft of State pursrnrr to ths agreenrcrr shall

be subnired tinely in accordarce witr 2 CFR 200.512, section 215.97 F.S. ard CtBpten 10.550 (bcal gownrrrrral erritl:s) and

I 0.650 (mrproft and fir-proft organizatbm), Rr:les oftbe Ar:dfuor Crrrcn[ as applbabb.

4. Recipieffs, \dEn sr$nining ftnmbl reportirg packages to the Departnrnt ofState tn audits dorr in accordarre with 2 CFR 200,

Subpart F - fudn Requirernts or Chapters 10.550 (local go\€nnErtal ernitbs) ard 10.650 (mlprol and br-proft organbtbm),
Rubs ofih Audilor Cspral, shoun irdfoate the date that ttE repoftirg package was del rrul to tlE recbbrt in correspondence
accompanying the reporting package.

Part IV: Record Retention

The recipient shall retain sr-ffcbrr records derrnrshatirg its conpliarce with 0r tenrs of the award(s) ard thb ageerrErt fur a perbd of
fle )€an fom the date tE ardit report b isflEd ad stnll allow ttr DepartrErf of State, or its desigree, ttr CFO, or Arditor Csrral
ac€ss to srrh r€cords rpon rEqLEsL The rcciplrt slall ersrre that adt workirg papen are rmde araihbb to tiE DepartrrEd ofstate, or

is daignee, tir CFO, or Arditor Crrpral Won re+Est for a perild of at bast thee )€an from ftE dal€ tE audit report b is$Eq urbss

oderded in wrting by the DeparfrEff ofstate.

State Aid to lrtr.ries Gant ASreenEnt (Form DLI9SA02)

Ctapter I &2.01 I (2Xa), FIo rida Adnin istrot ive Code, med ive 05-2023

Page: 12



EXHIBTT - 1

FEDERAL RESOURCES AWARDED TO THE RECIPIENT
PT]RSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT CONSIST OF TIIE FOLI,OWING:

Not applicable.

STATE RESOI.]RCES AWARDED TO TIIE RECIPIENT
PI,]RSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING:

MATCHING RESOT]RCES FOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS:

Not applicable.

SIJtsJECT TO SECTION 215.97, FLORIDA STATUTESZ

Florida Department of State, State Aid to Libraries;
CSFA Nunbcr. 45.030
Award Amount: See Attachment B.

COMPLIANCE REQI]IREMENTS APPLICABLE TO STATE RESOI,IRCES AWARDED
PI.]RSUAI{T TO THIS AGREEMENT ARE AS FOLT,OWS:

State Aid to Ubraries C{ant AgreenEnt (Fo.m DU9SA02)

Olapter 182.011(2Xa), Eorida Adninistrotiye Code, mective 05-2023

Page: I3

Not applicable.

COMPLIANCE REQT]IREMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE FEDERAL RESOT]RCES AWARDED
PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT ARE AS FOLI-,OWS:

The compliance requirements of this state project may be found in Part Fow (State Project Compliance
Requtements; of the State Projects Compliance Supplement located at https //apps. fldfs.com/fsaa/.



ATTACHMENT B

Fiscal Year 2023-24 State Aid to Libraries Final Grants

Stare Aid to Lbrarhs Gant AgrE€nEnt (Form DLI9SA02)

Orapter 182011(2Xa). F/orida Administrattve Code, Efective 05-2023

Page: 14



BOARD OF COUNIY COI{N{ISSIONERS OI.'BR,\DFORD COUN-TY, FI,ORID,,\

AGENI)A ITEN{ INFORN{ATION SHE,ET

DI'TE:9-27-2023

AGENDA ITEM Certification of hours, Free Library Service and Access to lMaterials - Pat of the

State Aid Grant

DEPAR flrlEN'I: Public l.ibran'

PURPOSE: Seeking signature from the Chair-person - required as part of the State Aid Grant

ASSOCIATED C()S I(S): N/,\

BUDGET LINE (G/L #): N/A

Page 1 of 1



FI-ORIDA DDARTMM\IT OF STATE

DIVISION OF UBRARY AND INFORMATION SERVICE.S

STATE AID TO LIBRARIES GRANT APPUCATION

C-ertification ofHous, Free library Service ard Access to Matedals

The Bradbrd Courry Board ofcowsy Conrrhsnrers, gownrirg body fir tlre Bradfinl Coury hbh Library hereby certfes tlBt the

folhwirg statenErts are frw for the tirr peri:d Ociob€r I , 202 I trough Jme 30, 2024:

o Provides fiee brary servte, irrldirg baniry nateriab arrailable for circuhtbn fee ofclnrge ard provdirg re&rerre ard
inbnratbn servi:es fee ofcharge;

. Prcviles access to nnteriab, ffinraion ad ssrvirs fu alresileds oftbe area serr€d; ad

. Has at bast orE library, bmrch hbrary or nrnber fibmry open 40 hous or rmre each'*eek (exchdmg holidap between Suday
tkorg[ Sanrday, on a schedub daemined by the ]bmry systen!.

Signatule

Char, fjbrary Crorenrg Body

Nare (Typcd)

Page: I

Date



Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET 
 
 
 
DATE:     September 21, 2023     
    
AGENDA ITEM First Amendment to Three-Party Agreement between 

Bradford County and the University of Florida for Services of 
Medical Examiner, University Physician Support, University 
Non-physician Support, and Facility Use. $45,909.48 
Annually (Increase of $12,165.12 from 22-23 Fiscal Year) 

 
DEPARTMENT:    County Manager  
 
PURPOSE: Agreement for Medical Examiner and Cremation Services 
 
ASSOCIATED COST(S): $45,909.48 Annual/ $3825.79 Monthly 
 
BUDGET LINE (G/L #): 106-35-527-34610-00 
  



  UF #621698 
 

 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
THREE-PARTY AGREEMENT AMONG 

BRADFORD COUNTY  
AND 

THE UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
AND 

THOMAS M. COYNE, M.D., PH.D. 
FOR DISTRICT MEDICAL EXAMINER SERVICES, 
UNIVERSITY PHYSICIAN SUPPORT SERVICES, 

UNIVERSITY NON-PHYSICIAN SUPPORT 
SERVICES AND FACILITY USE 

 
THE THREE-PARTY AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), made and entered into the 1st 

day of October, 2023 (“Effective Date”), by and among BRADFORD COUNTY, a political 
subdivision of the State of Florida, by and through its Board of County Commissioners, 
hereinafter referred to as the “County”, and THE UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES, hereinafter referred to as “University”, FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE 
DEPARTMENT OF PATHOLOGY, IMMUNOLOGY AND LABORATORY MEDICINE, 
COLLEGE OF MEDICINE, UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA, and THOMAS M. COYNE, 
M.D., PH.D., hereinafter referred to as the "District Medical Examiner", is hereby amended 
effective the 1st day of October, 2023 (“Effective Date”) by this First Amendment, and the 
parties heretofore named agree as follows: 

 
1. Section 3 of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with a new 
Section 3 to read: 
 
 3. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and 
remain in full force and effect through September 30, 2024, unless first terminated or amended by 
the parties as provided herein. 

 
2. Section 8 of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with a new 
Section 8 to read: 
 
 8. Annual Budget.  No later than July 1, 2024, the District Medical Examiner, with 
the assistance of UNIVERSITY, shall submit to the Board of County Commissioners an annual 
budget for the next ensuing fiscal year October 1, through September 30.  The District Medical 
Examiner's budget for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 as submitted to County is attached to this 
Agreement as Attachment A and is incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
3. Section 10 of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and a new Section 10 is 
established to read as follows: 
 

10. Compensation by County.  THE DISTRICT MEDICAL EXAMINER 
EXPRESSLY RECOGNIZES THAT ALL FEES AND COMPENSATION PAID TO 
UNIVERSITY PURSUANT TO THIS SECTION CONSTITUTE THE ENTIRE 
OBLIGATION OF THE COUNTY, AND FURTHER, NEITHER THE DISTRICT 
MEDICAL EXAMINER, NOR ANY MEMBER OF HIS STAFF, WILL RECEIVE 
COMPENSATION DIRECTLY FROM THE COUNTY FOR SERVICES PURSUANT TO 
THIS AGREEMENT.  As compensation for the District Medical Examiner’s services and 
UNIVERSITY’s Faculty Physician support services, non-physician support personnel services 
and for facility usage, the County shall pay UNIVERSITY an annual amount equal to Forty-Five 
Thousand, Nine Hundred Nine Dollars and Forty-Eight Cents ($45,909.48).  Payment shall be 
made to UNIVERSITY in twelve (12) equal monthly installments of the sum of Three Thousand 



  UF #621698 
 

 

Eight Hundred Twenty-Five Dollars and Seventy-Nine Cents ($3,825.79), the first of which shall 
be paid forty-five (45) days after the commencement of the term of this Agreement. In addition, 
the County shall separately pay UNIVERSITY for autopsy and related services in accordance 
with the fee schedule attached hereto as Attachment C. UNIVERSITY shall provide County 
with a detailed monthly invoice indicating all autopsies performed up to the date of the invoice.  
A copy of the death certificate for each autopsy will be provided with the invoice.  After review, 
and if properly supported, County shall pay invoiced fees within forty-five (45) days of receipt of 
the invoice.  All invoices shall be sent directly to: 
 

Bradford County Commission 
Attn: Accounts Payable 

Shannon Jackson 
P.O. Drawer B 

Starke, FL 32091 
 

4. Attachment A to the Agreement is hereby deleted and replaced with the revised version 
of Attachment A that is attached to this First Amendment and is hereby incorporated into the 
Agreement by reference. 
 
5. Attachment B to the Agreement is hereby deleted and replaced with the revised version 
of Attachment B that is attached to this First Amendment and is hereby incorporated into the 
Agreement by reference. 
 
6. Attachment C to the Agreement is hereby deleted and replaced with the revised version 
of Attachment C that is attached to this First Amendment and is hereby incorporated into the 
Agreement by reference. 
 
7. In the event of a conflict between the terms of the Agreement and this First 
Amendment, the terms of this First Amendment shall control. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this First Amendment to be 
executed for the uses and purposes therein expressed on the day and year first above-written. 
 

THE UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES, FOR THE 
BENEFIT OF THE DEPARTMENT 
OF PATHOLOGY, IMMUNOLOGY 
AND LABORATORY MEDICINE, 
COLLEGE OF MEDICINE, 

BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA   UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA 
 
 
 
By:___________________________9-21-2023_       By:_____________________________ 
 Date          Colleen G. Koch, M.D., M.S., M.B.A.   Date 
Name:  Diane Andrews____________________           Dean, College of Medicine 

      Chair, Board of County Commissioners            University of Florida 
 
 
DISTRICT MEDICAL EXAMINER 

 
By: ________________________________ 
      Thomas M. Coyne, M.D., Ph.D. Date 







DocuSign Envelope lD: C76E326C-6385-498S-g9BE-DD7491 2503A6

THREl-P.rR1\ {(,Rt[.\t1\I \1!(r\(, ltR\Dt()Rt](([ \I]
\\ l)

l H r t \ t\ t R\t T\ ()t Ft.( rR[] \ M) {Rt) ()}- TRl ST l f \
{\l)

T Ort 1S \t. ('()l \ t.. '[.t).. I'H.D.
t()R l)tsl-Rt( t \tt Dt( AL t \ {} \t R st.Rl t( t\.
t \t\ t.RstTl pHl \t( I r\ sl t,p()RT st.R\ t( t \

t \t\ t R\t I \ \()\-PH\ \t( t {\ \l PI{)RT
stRrlct\ r\l)t.\( -tfl I \t

llll tln, I t,\RI\ \(,tU I \lt \t
, r.- .. , lil{\t)l()t{l)l t}t \t\

, ". \:l ,.'l tr ' .rl

' ir. ,...':r .rr .. lllt t\l\ll{\ll\()t tl()Rll)\ ll()\lll)0t Iltt\ltl\ --
t()l{ Illl lll \tlll()l Illl l)ll'\lll\ll\l (,1 l'\lll()t((,\

l\l\ll \()l ()(,\ \\l)l\8r)lt\lr)lt\ \ I I I ) l( I \ I . ( r ) I I I ( , I ()l \ll lll( l\l. ( \l\ I lt\ll \
()l llr)ltll)\.,.: lll()\l\\\l (()\\1.\ll,.l'll.l) . .l

1.,r,,

\A I T \ I \ \ f I H:

r HfRf,AS- prrsuant lo Ch lcr 406. Florida statuler &c C.ovem{x oI $c slalr o[ ] lorida l\
chaged *ith apgoiming disrrtt mcdical rxaminei\ I'o. cach of Fkrida's m€dical eramio€. districts aod, li).
Disllicl t. lhc C,ovemor or de$i$€e has appoinrcd Ihomas M. Co) ne. M.D. Pll.D.. a l;NMRSITY
ernplolte and l-acuh) member in thc f)ep6nmi:nt ot'Patholog). lmmunology altd l.aboratu-1 luerricinc. a\
thr Dist $ Medical L\aminer: and

sHf,Rf,AS. 6 Discri'r Medicrl E\aminer. Dr Cqvn€ is chargrd lrih FTfffming crnain
pofioloE$ scrt'ices for thc Count-v and ir iD rced otcetuin srrypo.l -ftices in o(der lo fullili hr\ {illuloD
obligatitns: ard

WHERE.AS. I-|\IVERSITY has on irs l-dul+ a board{enilied palhologitt $ho is qualifierj to
suppofl lhe Disfiicl Medical Exarniner in his performancc ofcenair parholog! left iccs and t.:ni\r'6il)
\\i*les kr Fro!ide suppo leftices ro rhe Districl Medicsl Eramincrand to Counq: and

wHERf,As. UNlVt.RSl I Y also has arailablc non-phlsicran supporr pe.sonnel and a laboraloD
ald omce frilit) to supoon thr District Medical Examincr in performing his statutoq obligalioos and

Unilerrin lsishes lo make such resources a\ailable to thc District Medical t-raminer and to Courq. snd
th. Disricl lltcdical Examiner and lhe CoonN dssirE to ulilir€ such Uniyersit\ r$ources: and.

\\ l ti l \\

\\ III RI \\

Wtlf,Rf AS. t-jni\ersiq. pursuattt to Resularidr o.oI 7, slate trni\e6if S1slrm oI I lorida &>anl
of Got(.mo.!. and in t'unherancc of ils edu{:ation. rmining. and service respoflsibilitic! aulhori/6 ils
prufessirxral facuhy arxl staff. !s ar integlral pan of their ucq.lcmic acli! iliqi and thcir emplol mcnt a'
facul$ and staff. ro pmvide health. rttedical. ard dfilal care and lreatmcnt lo parienlr includinS patr('nts al
independ€lt hospirals. other insritulions. and various othcr clinical sites: fie College ol'Mrdicine is

authoirad. puEuant to said Rrgulalion q 0l 7. to dr\ elop and maintain a faculD [rsclice plar for thc
orderl) colL'ctirin ond diqributbn ol fees and income ucnerared l'rum such fmulq practice ac!i\ ilic\: thc
College ol Merlicine has c\tubli5hcd and mainlain\ surh u litcuk] pIacticc plan. Lnl,rr n a\ thc '('ollest ol
\lcdiri0e taculq hactice Plan":

thgc I ul 6 , \:



Docusign Envelope lD: C76E326C-6385-498$998E-DD74912503A6

\0\\ I It,ll l('Rt

l- ScoFand hroce. As sfekd *ore. diirifl mcdicalc\amiErs arc apIrointetl b\ the Goternrrr
and chzged with tht rEspoosDilit! of FnNiding c6trin palholoa! s.Tr ices. Dislrifl medtal .\amine.s- in
thc pcrformam of such palholoQ x'ft iccr. yrmetimcs ,rqui.e thc assistance of othcr patholosrEr- nor'
physiciat suppon 6rsmnel, and aplnpriare focilities kr profrrl:- lErfrxtn $eir st ukrn uhligari{ros.
Unirctsil) has lveibble u qprupicell qualifi€d f&suhr.. phtsicia (-liruh) Pithologisl-) ro pI()ride
suI?on !.fr i!-rs lo lhe Di$ric! Medical E\aniner dld asrcss to mlle irs FerlD ParhohBilt ar dilat'le to
rll€ Dasricr Mcdical Ertniner and tlle (-oun\.-, tor rhc provisron of stlch nlppon s.r.\ict-t lurvrant lo rllc
tcrms of this Agterntnt- -crllch facuh Pr$olotsi$ shall rtot be conlid.rcd an -Asxtarr Ved}cal
Exettin€r- as drd le Er i5 &ftrled h I t (;- l -Of )1. t-lori{b Adminisrrarivc Codc. llniler.iiD nlso ha\
aveilabh mrpftysician supon personml and ar 4pro{riate lacilitl to funher wppon dB Dislrkt Medical
Eramirr ad the Cour$ in tlr priirrmancc ot c(rain padrolog) i€n ic6. .rs ma) bc required. As $Eh.
E Fnies *ish ro c er inlo thb AgrE€rlcor to sd fmh erh FErl;.,'s rcspeflire dutbs. {*{igalins- and

responsibilitis to etts|m rhe rdffh adrinisardifi of this AgrBrm.nt.

ii- i.,.:, !,, ii,.. .,,r .,...,,. \()l\\llll\l \ \ I ) I \ ( , t \ I \ I la \ I l\'\
PLo\l5l()\()f \ARl{)t\\t PI{)RI \f R\ l( E\ tO.fHt Dl\IRl( T\ll.ltl( \l t.\\Ul\tlt
.1\D1()(01 \rl.'lHt. PART|t.st \t)lRsl {\t) A\t)A(.RIt. l Al Illt lI\IRl( I
\tl.Dl( {1. E\{1ll\t]R 4.\l},()R ( ()t \ t\ \Rf Rt.\P()\\lBl.t {l \t-l- TlllE\ t(}ll Ttlll
PR()P[R Tta{\\l'()lt1 {Tl(}\. P()\\f\\l()\. {\l) Dl\Fo\lTl()\ ()l lt()l)lt\ \\ll
\Pf( tuf \\ t\ {( ((tRD\\( t \rl t ( \PTr R 106. F1.(rRll) \ \T{ l t It \. \\t}( }l \r'r t R

I t(,. t t_()RtD{ \t)lt t\ l\TR {Tt \.8 ( ()l)}.. \\t} t \tl ERslT\ \ll rl.l,. t \I)} R \()
( tR( t \t\rA\( 1_\. BI.AR 

^\t 
Rt.sl{)\\[rl- \ f ()R l]lr. lRA\sl{)Rl \l l(}\.

1.()\\t \\t()\. {\D,()R I)t\l\)\t It()\ ()t B{)l)l} \ \\D ()R sPt-( lul \\ t \l\ rR\111
\H{1.t. \()T Bt Df F\trDT().r\\t \tt \\\ t-t{a .tTl FoRTHt t( l\.()\ll\\l()\\ l()
\( T ()R \t:(;t-lct.\( t' ()t' aHl t)l\ I Rl( r \lF.l)l( .\t. t \ \\tl\FR lt llE\ Pl Rt()R111\('
ltt.t)t( {l E\{1lt\ER\f R\ l( t.\.(rRlll\ \(;t.\T\.sER\{\l\{\l)()RlltPt-{)\r.r\
\\l) ()R(()t \ll {\l) lls {(,1\l\.\[R\ \\l\ {\l)()R}\lPl.()tll.\.

-1. TeIm ofAg]terrcrl!. This ABltt{nent shall tate ellecr on the Etlectivc Date lir( sl.t l'cnh abort-
ard dull remtio in elTctl u il S€Fcmber 10. 20?-1. unhss othenr isc lerminsEd b,v thc panies as pot ided

hcrrin.

{. Dislnctllsdrsd EIaDlrcr Sglt tcc!- Ite Dislrict luedicsl Euminershsli sene the Coun! in

accodance *irh rhe Fovisims of Chupu.106. Ftorida Statures, ind the provisions of Chapter I lG. Florida
Adminisrrslivr Code. Such scrviceri includc. but are not limiled to. the lbllorving:

(a) Aulopsies. ('\aminations. 8nd hrenigalions as rtquirtrl \ applicable I lorida srntules and

(b) Co.nmlnit) edralioo ad rmining of lalr cnforcement offrcers and public safetl
petsonnel withh Countl :

5. Comp€[ssrion fo. DME Scrvices TIre ponies underst{d attd agrcc that thc District Medical
l\omincr shrll b€ p!i, t^ifi rhat portioo of the toal funds Univcrsiq- r€ceives fiom Couni)- that the Dinrict
Mcdical Exlminer eams bostr! qr the Disrict Mcdical Lrallriner s.rvices prorideil pursuant to lhe lerm\ o[
this Agrq€me[1. $rch unount shall ]eFesenr the fair marliet talue of fte Disrrict Medicdl txanlincr's
s.rvices. tjNlvERSlTY rrill nor usc funds receivcd from the Count-y to offsel lhc co6t of scn ices that Dr.
Corne [rovi&s as a t]nive6ir]- f*ult1 membcr. which ere i..parate l'rorn his role as Disrict Medical
Examiner.

Ir.lla'ol-tl



Docusign Envelope lD: C768326C-6385-1985-99BE-0D7491250346

r, I rtr\ (t-\tt\ \i.r\ !.-

(a) Fnculh FdrhobEist Slotxxt S{TrrcBs. l.rni}e.sil\'s Fculty Pathologists shall suptr)rl rhe
Di$rict Mcdi"al Lxaminer rn his perfocnancc ofparholog) :cn ices- tlniversitr's F ult) Pathologist shall

Fovide such suptxr.t services Jxrrsoaot to a schedule muruall'' agtEed to bv fic Distrid Mrdical I ramincr
and Unirersig'- Ho$eaer. .ll th. panics lo this Agreeotem undemand and agree lhal trni!'fsitt's Facull}
Palhologists stlau. d all dltler rt{nain undcr thc erclusive lptrrisiofl ald cmtrol oft;ni\rrsio ard &.
Disrricr Mcdirzl Examin€r shall €rcisc aro coltrol orff Unive6it_v s t-acult_r Prtholoar't s prulessioral
judgrnent-

(b) Nm-Ftrlsiriut $tloofl Ptrsoonsl. l-tniversrrl- also slull rrale available rarious non-
p[lskian support pcrsourl to etEblr thc Dislrkt Medical Examin€r ro poper[ pedorm his dtnics Such
ru4hysician support Frsdr|el slrall, at lll timts- rcmain rmder $c dittct supcNision ald coolml uf
Unirersiq-.

(r) Laborion Flciliti€s ad Equip.rrd. Unirersiq shall malc arailable an apgropriate
olfice spoc! aDd laboratql f ilirl l"Facilit) -) lE-at.d at if 17 Sw {7' Avenue. Gain*r illt. Florirla
llo0E. io dE Diseicl Medical [.x8miner and to Cornq. t]oirrrslt! shdl full) eqtlrp and fumish the
Faciliq atd marntain $'halcvsr re6on&h sutDlics alt nerrkd b rhe t isrrict Medical Eramincr.
llnirersr)- shsll provile seruril} and jmitorial s.eniccs to tll€ Facilit-v. t,niv(fsit! shall be ielponsibh fc
mlinrcnance and operarion ofthe ftril$-, including esrahlishilg stmdad opentinB p.rrcedures and
labqatoq ln rScmcnl. and shall mainlain sll l'umishings, ctluipmeflt and supplici in gord ctrrxlition
Acccsrs to the failiq $ill b€ arnilable t(r luh.ri7rd Co$q. Disrrict Medical f-ralnincr and I oirtnttl
pr'rsonne I on o 24-horr bis fq dtt FrrFxe of picling up and delirering bodi.!

7. ln&Fr&ll Cqrualo.s. Ite ponier e{prtssl} inlcod rhat \r irh rsgrd lo thc Fot isions and

rBspcclitt rrspoosibilili€5 of &i! AgIcrmenl $id pantrs ilre inrlcpcrxlnt c(xtlrkrs arxl nt, panl heruo
shall Eceive rn! orher bc|ltftls bcsi{rcs tlror crprrssly pmtired lo( h€rein. funher. il is the e\ptcss inlenl
of Ue pdties hffEto thrl no.geot. sryarl. Goolrsto.. or ernplo]ec rssigred b1 Llniversir].. lo fullill
University's obligations dcscribcd herein shall be deemed an agert. s.rtatr. coorsclor. or emplolet ol an)

orhcr pan)'. Regardless of anlrhing clse contained io r implird from rhis Agr*menI. ony emplol et' of
Univcrsity rrho may bc perfrxming Ore Univer,iitl sl'rvicrs lxrcin rlcrcribctl shall rmain al emplolct of
universit-r subjeci at all times to ljnilsniit]'s F)licies and prNcdures. and in no *a1 sh8ll such emplo! et
br deerned an anployee ofrn! odrcr pan!. t hi\r'r.jit! assumes complsle adminislralile and ptofessional

BsFmsibility for tjnireBity's employ'ees in pcrforming Uoiyersily functions. including the Fovisiqn of
rrrrrten' comFnsation and other crnplo) menl reloted insurance as ma1 be required ftom lime to lime b)
stutr (r ollEr hn or ]tgulatioo. Whib rsndcring servicnr punrua to $is AgrL'(mcnt. all employees ol
tlnivcrsiq shrll !.et picrurc idcntil-rcarion bodges thar $all clearl) denoae their emplole( status \,rth
Univeciq. ard will funhcr identi[ thernselves ll heoe\ er app.opriatc as UniYersil] emplol ces.

E. Annual Budrcr. No htcrthu Jull ll.l()ll. thr. District M€dical Examine.. rr ith the assislance of
l]nivffsit\. shall suhllir ti, thr l]r6rd otCount!, C{lmttli5si(xler.j ofCountt !n annual bud8u lor lht ncrl
ensuing liscal ) e![ October I lhrough Seprember ]0. I hr District Medical L.r.arnine/s budgel lix I iscal
Yesr 2021 20:3 as subminri lo Cou y is anach.{ to tiis AgrEcment as Aabclttctrl A aft, is inco.pqdcd
]le rio b! this .el-ereoce.

9. lNutelce. The Disrict Mcdical Erarninrr shall pnx'ure and maintain insurdncc firouShoul lhc
cntirB lcrm ofihis Agrc€metll of rhc tlprsard in thc minimum amounls detailed in Altrchmcnl B. lhe
DisFicr Medical Errmin.r shall praridr ro UnircIsit) ll ccfliticare of insurance cridcrring thc aforesaid
covefage.

l', ( .,flU.( r\.rtr(,n l,\ !r'urr\ lllt l)l\lRl( 1\ltl)l( \t t\{\ll\ll{t\l'Rl\\l\
R[((X,\lll\lll\l\lll.lt\\\l)({)1ll'l\\1 (}\Prll}l(,t\l\tlt\ll\l'lli\l\\l



DocuSign Envelope lD: C76E326C{3854985-998E-DD74912503A6

l() llll\ \l( Il(l\{0\\|IIIII llll I \ l il (|BIIr,\II()\()t lt { ()l \l\ \\tl
I I t( II l{. \t l tt I)!\ IR tr I \lt l)ti \t t \ \\ \l t{. \oti \\\ \ \lljt li ( 'l lit.
\l\ll \\llll.U( ll\l ( 1)\ll,t \\ \ l ltl\ t) U ( ll\ I ltlr\1 (()t \l\ lt)li\! lt\lr t\
IIl{\l \\l I() Illl\ \r ,li I I \ll\l

' \l''r!'r'!: (

Brrdfod Coultr Co mh$iot
Artn: .{cc('!ntr PrJsHe

P-O. Drencr B
Srerke. Fl- J!O!ll

I l.ol Ddauh .ld TcImindin. Ihe failwe of any parq to compl]- with ar] Fqvision of this
Agrt{rncnr r ill phoe fid p ,* in dcfrrh. Prio. to teminaling the Agresrenr. the non-d€fauking paflies
\,rill nuib $c dcfluhing panl in *riting. Thir ttolificaliolt $ill male sp<cifrc rct'ersnc.lo thc Furision
drd gtve dss lo thc dcfauh. Thc nocdeliulioB panies vill gile the defaufting pafi.v seven (7) days lo curc

rhe dcfaut. lf he defiuh situalion is nol ctxrcstid vlhhio !e alloned dme, the nondefauhing panies are

authffizrd to proride final tcrmindioo Doaicr to rhs dcfauhing pan1. Ary pany to lhis Agrnement may

lctmillate fic Agleemeol $.irholn cause b) firs| proriding ar leasl $in! ( lO) days srineo notice to lhc dhcr
panics. lf funds to linaocc $is A8tEement become unavailabk. thc Counq ma1 lerminalc the AgecnEnl
urih no less than twenty-four (2{) hours notice in *titing to lh€ Di$rid Medicsl L\aminer and Unirersiq.
The Counry n ill be the fmal sulhori$ as to drc availabiln of funds. The Couflt) $ill ps! fte District
Medical Erminer and tlnitersiq fff all tro completed prkr to an1 noticc of teninatirx.

I l.Ol AssiEnment. An! rights or oblitsuions under this Agrcemcnt shall nu be rssigntrl rr ithuut the

prior trrinfl coossnt of$e noo-assigning porlies.

I 1.03 Modificatioos. An1 modification of $is Agrcemtrtt or rEre*al hecof shall be reiuctd ro r riting
,rd s{hltinrd to dlc pnri€s for rheir writtcn approval.

ll.(X Nolices- t\cepl as odern ise provided herein. an! ndict. rcqucg- or apProval ftom atu patn lo
any ofter prny ihdl bc in rvriting. cenilied mail. Ietum rEcciF r€questcd. and shall be deemcd to harc
becr rcreived when eith6 depo6itd in a t,nied Slales Po$al Service mailbox- or personalll delirrred uirh
signed proofofdeliveq. The names and addrcscs ofth€ Counq's.Epres€ sriee. LJni\€rsiI)'s
iEprEsenlatire and rh€ District Medical Exam iner and rtprls€nrdir c arE:

Counl)

Brodlord ('ount] Manager
S.on liorncga)
P.O. Dra\rer B
Starlie. Fl. 32091

( op) to

l'.lrc .l (,1 h



DocuSign Envelope lD: C76E326C-6385-4985-99BE-DD7491 250346

I n r\ (r.rI \ Jetuif€r L. Hur. M-D- M-Ed.
Clni. Dcpetnent of rdtr,r.a$-. tmmumhgy ad
l-.b{riq} Medicine

P. O. Box lml75
GlirEsYilh. f hrida 126I04?75

Thanas M. Colft. M.D.. Ph.f,
OfFre of Medkal lirahirEr
fll? S\l .l7rh Avenuc
Gaincsvill*, Fl ll60t

ll.O5 Noo-Waiver, The l'ailure of ary grrl.* to cxercise Eny righ slull nor ht consirlered a \.ai!ff ol'
such right in rhc qvenl of an! fudher defsuh (r non{omplian.:c.

11.06 ScygAultv. lfary provtsixls of this Agrcrment shall be dcclarcd ill.gal yoid or une]ll-orccable.
ths dtl€ Fur isisos sllall nor be affecred bur shall rcmain in full forcc md effect.

I t.O7 EndtE AsrECmcnL This Agrrrm.nr cootsins all dle rcrms !d conditins eyecd upon b thc
p.di!

I l.Ot eollusio!|, 81 signiry this ogrrrmcol fic prries drshrG lhi fiis Agrrrnc i! mare u itlx{t lur\
yrwious urdcrstanding. rgrrrmflit. or conn€crios *ith any Jerwni Digricr [lcdicel [tarninen r"
cqpolrtixls ad dld thi! Agr€'rnenr is fiir- atd m!d\' in gffd ttirh u itlwut ur1 ousidc conrol. collusion.
or fiud.

I l.0o Cod[ic!_q]Llr[e. rtst. Thc partics rach rrarant lhal rchhs. it nor an! of its emplo]ecs havc an]
linancial q personal inteGsr nhich conflicts ra ith thr ectllion of this Agrc€m€nt. Sh$kl ao! (rnflict ol
intere$ rrisa du ng rhe lerm ofthis Agleemeor, the psry t(ith lhe cmrlict of i eBSr shall immediarel)
ftnil} the orhcr pdies of such trrnflict oI interest due to an1 other cli!'ot!''.'ortr ts. or pnrpenl intercst'

ll.l0 No lbid hr0 Bcneficiarics- This Agre<ment rfur--i not Grcate ant rclationship nith. o.an! right\
in fav<r ol. any thid pany.

I l.l I Govcminp l.ar apd Veouc. Thi5 Agrocmenr is govcrned in accordance $ irh the lar ! of thc Stalc
of l'loridr venue b in Alrhua County.

I L I I Successors and Assigm. The pafiies bind each othrr and rheir rtspectire succ*srxs and assigns in

all rcspccts to all ofthc lerms. condilions. covcnants. ord pror isions of this Agreement.

ll.ll l-Evs & Rceulstions. tte l)istricr Mcdical l-\amincr '.r ill comply *ith all la$s, odinanccs.
rtgulations. urd building code requirements applicabl!. ro dlc worli nauired by this AgrB€rne . The
Digrifl Mciical E\aminer is Fesumed to be fmilio. \A ith all sute and lcral lans. ordinancts. ctrdr rules
and Eguhtiofls ihat ma1. in any lxa1 aiTe( the ri od( outlinrd in this Agffimorr. lf the Dislrict Medical
EufiiDGr is oot l'amiliar !.! ith state md kxal la\r !. ordinanrB. c(xJc .ules and regulstions, thc Diurict
Medical l-raminer remains lrabh ,or any violation and all subsequent damages (x lines.

ll14 Prcie'ct Rc€ords. The District Medici Erarnincr u ill ruain all records relatinE to this Agrreemcnr
for rhrct years aftr the compktion of all $ort is perftrrmcrl. Thc District Medical Eraminer $ ill make
arailablc to the County ard to Univcrsitl arl] atld all rcco.rJs rehting to this Agrwmcnl for cop! ing ard
inqnrti(nr ulnn \rrinen reqLEst ofthe ( ount) or llniversity. lunh€more- fte Disrricl Medical L\amincr
\rill male an! r$ords relating to this Agrremenr a\ailahle to an] state. fcderal or regulatol authoriries
who ms) \rish to retiew. inspect or cop,lv these records.

Pagt' ! of6



DocuSign Envelope lD: C76E326C-6385-4985-998E-DD74S12503A6

I l.15 Consnxrion. Itis Agranncnr shall o(x br cfisou.d morE sictlf aSainst ooe palq thaa _aeainst
rhr oah.rs mcrEb b! tinueoffie lafl thlt it mar hare bcen Fepared I ooe ofthc potkr. h brccognizd
fisl 8ll pstas hlre sulruniallJ csrtrit uted tr) lhe Ji.elE-arion of rhis agre€menr

ll.16 ArE|IpGnts" All anrtmors atrhcd roth8.{grcqncl|t ae irxorpq-asd inro arl nEde p.ri uf
this Agr€eflrnr b-r Efcrcrlcs.

l\ \\ ll\l \\ \\ lll l(l trl

ItR \llt()lil) ( ()l \ l\.ll0R )\

THf t \tvf &stTt of ft-oRrDr a0ARn
OF TRT'STff,S T{}R IHf Bf\IFIT
OF THf, DEPARTMIXT OT PATHOL(X;I.
Ilt$t T\OL(rc}- A\D LABORATORT
urDtcr\f. coLLt_Gf 0F uEDt(t\f.

t \rIfRstTl oF Fl-oRtD{

ll\ ll . Ur
tazuv;w\wt,tO, fi sl4l2o23 | 2:s1 PM EDr

Diane Andrr s Dorc
Chair
Borrd of Corm$ Conrm i$ioncf,s
Br.dford Cmlnt), Flsida

For Collesn C- Koch. M-D.- M.S.. M.8..{
Dean
C:ollegc of Medkioe
Universig" of Florida

t)l\TRt( t \tt:l)t( {t. t \ \\ll\1 R

llt 1/3/2-3
I honr.r\ \l t o\ nr. l) 1,,1, I hrr



Oocl]sign Envelope lO C76E326G6385-49B'99BE,ODZl9r2503Ao

.{ttechment ".{"
IIIEDICAL EX{\Intf,R Distri.l t Bcdgcl

Efrccth-t Oclobcr l, 2022 - Sepacubcr 30, 202J

*t 
O,flsal by UF lor strn pa$olooisb

b 2 Adnhbtrrlirrr Fcc of 5.r5 idud6 Hirrl{r Rc6qrccs, Pllrcfi.siB d Firl{rci.lServi:.3b I DOC opratip rrpcrlse po.lixr adrided h ltxcd icc par c.sc cmt'.clb t Rofussirnal tccs r! terniaEd h Atbdmart 'C'

otrsctr lPro 5.u" ,*Or..O lo UF [o. Sd{bs)
S€.va?s Faciklies (Reco.ds sto."age. Birtazad)

elegtrqE. Po6LgE, E F.Eilrrl
rdv€UlileetiEs {Wqk ReldedlCMErcEU Rrqdc.rEtts)

{rd Mahtenance (Eqrixn€it vehijes}
Processrtg (ht€.net ad bacf Lp)

StAdEs (AutopE ed Ofic.)

t Rep.odJ&t
Liatility a.d Auto

Subsc.iptims. Lfra.y
(Uriiie6. Fuel)
Fcc2

$

$
$
6

s
$
6
$
$
$
t

5

734.100
(182,0m

35,(m
r0.000
r 5.0(x)
75 (m

3r2.m)
3.(m
9.500
4.(m

'r2,500

1.(m
42.(m
92.500

Net Cost ,l
1

Moithry
AssassmentAssessrnert

s36

35
25
ll()
29
&t
t4
9l

62_8%

a.19a
2.995
4.7%
3.{9a
9.St6
1.694

10.79a

73).7rO.84
47.m7.56
33.214.36
54,689. r6
39.562.r1i1

1121,032.76
18.617.6ir

124.505.16

s
t
s

5
$
s

60.895.07

3.975.(x}
2.812.(B
4,557..r3
3,m.87
9,502.73
r.551.47

r0.375.43o, hirrs!
otal

600.00Cosl Totd Valrdato.r Ched
l\ldtcoar€clirls casa avlr{E par rrlontr
AW. ODeraliiq Cost Per Casel 1.361"85$

DOC ALL 100.00% t r0.375 43124.505.16 5

124.505 16 10.375.43s
Rourd/rq A4i6trrert S

OOC Assess.rEnl Total Valiiati,l Ched( - '12,1.505.16

w

f 
-r'5r,-Edl-f, 

f g5qfl 

-E@

G-tr.?lEt

DEticl 8 @r.ting Cct Ascsst!€nt Total
Prof?ssional Sa.vitg Cas€s Eslinab
{Vari.blc Fr c.s.) Fee'

a

I

1.1dt.600

1,110,94)Tolal
To UF to. Drs
Io UF for Drs
To UF fo. Drs
To UF tu( Drs
To UF lof OrFCall
To UF/DRL
To UF/DRL
To UF ior Processins

AutlF6y
Exie{IC Ererindirn
lnvEtigalive Or{y Repo.t
l r6ti.Ftidr (AI Cas.s)

5

s

$
$

$
$

$
$
$

613
2X

15
854

835
835

3,573

800
250
175
175

190
't 75

30

490.400
56,500
2.625

149.49)

r 58.650
146,125
t07.1s0

Ioxinlogy - routirE
Histqlogy - rodine
C."malbn Alprov.l

2.663I Total Cost case $

Total Budget

Latest Update 5i:V2022

and Eeneltts

t
3
t
s

$

1$
cas€ avrage per

Case:

85 I 1m.00%fot.l



DocuSign Envelope lD: C76E326C-6385-4985-998E-DO74912503A6

ATTACHNGNT ''BI'
Ft'22-2J

INSIR.L\CE RfQt'IRfD

A. Professional Liability - Coverage must be afforded. under an "occurence"

forur policy or "clainrs nrade" form. in linrits o61 lqss than $5o0.fi)o. Il is
required thrt ProGssional Liability Insuraoce coverape be provided for all
acts and ooissions that occur duritrg dre temr of the egreemeot. If this
coverage is wrineu on a claims made form- proofofextended reporting
period coveragr is required.

B. The District Medical Exanfrer shall povide a Certificate of Insuraoce to the

Comty with a sixty (60) day notice of cancellation.

Updated: 5/3/2022



Docusign Envelope lD: C76E326C6385-4985-998E-DD7491 2503A6

ATTACII}IENT IICTT

Ft'22-23

Variable Expense Fee Lisl
Proicnriooal Fc6:

CfirpbEArbpsy
Exbmal Ex nirdbn Only
Repod of lnv€stigalin
Expert Wihess Fee per Hour (s€e ne 1)

Tcchnic.l FeGs (s€e mte 2):

Iissue PrEpa-atbn for Miroscopb ex n (.odiE case)
Toxbdogy Labdab.y (rcdire t€6ling)
Cremalbn Fee
Body Transport by ATS or lnve.iligEtds for tlomi:ilelSusgirrbs tleatr

$ 800.00
s 250.00
s 17s.00
$ 300.00

$ 175.00
$ 190.00
s 30.00
I 190.00

]{obr:
(1) i,lo dEgps wl axr, ftr pre-tid corlsdtdidr d! diniral 6€s h 8lh Jrididd Circd

(2) Co6ts for t-ansportatbn of hunan rernains, specaal lab tests, specaal toxicobgy followup testing,
radktogy. odontology, anthropology. ad specialized consultatons unco.ylmmly required will be bill€d per
case as cfiarges are recei\red and pail by the ltiledi=l Exarniner Offce.

Updated 5/3/2022



Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET 
 
 
 
DATE:     September 21, 2023  
    
AGENDA ITEM Approval of Dual Certification – Request from Tax Collector 
  

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, 
FLORIDA PROVIDING FOR THE EXTENSION OF 
THE 2023 ASSESSMENT ROLLS PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 197.323, FLORIDA STATUTES AND 
SECTION 193.122, FLORIDA STATUTES; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 
DEPARTMENT:    Tax Collectors Office 
 
PURPOSE: The Tax Collector requests the Board of County 

Commissioners to authorize and direct the VAB and the 
Property Appraiser to certify and extend the 2023 tax rolls 
prior to the completion of the VAB hearings pursuant to 
section 197.323 Florida Statutes. The final tax rolls will be 
recertified following the conclusion of the VAB hearings in 
accordance with section 193.122, Florida Statutes. 

  



RESOLUTION 2023 – _____ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD 
COUNTY, FLORIDA PROVIDING FOR THE EXTENSION OF THE 2023 ASSESSMENT 
ROLLS PURSUANT TO SECTION 197.323, FLORIDA STATUTES AND SECTION 193.122, 
FLORIDA STATUTES; AND PROVIDING AND EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, Section 193.122, Florida Statutes, sets forth provisions for the certification of the 
ad valorem tax assessment rolls and directs the Value Adjustment Board to certify each assessment 
roll upon order of the Board of County Commissioners; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 197.323, Florida Statutes, the Board of County 
Commissioners by a majority vote may, upon the request by the Tax Collector, order the ad valorem 
tax assessment rolls to be extended prior to the completion of the Value Adjustment Board 
hearings, if completion thereof would otherwise be the only cause for delay in the issuance of tax 
notices beyond November 1st; and  

 WHEREAS, the Bradford County Tax Collector, by letter dated September 21, 2023 – a 
copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference – has requested that the 
Board of County Commissioners of Bradford County, Florida order the ad valorem tax assessment 
rolls be extended prior to the completion of the Value Adjustment Board hearings; and  

 WHEREAS, the completion of the Bradford County Value Adjustment Board hearings for 
the 2023 tax year will delay issuance of tax notices beyond November 1, 2023; and 

 WHEREAS, a delay in the issuance of tax notices may result in a disruption to the 
operations of the Bradford County taxing authorities; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Bradford County, Florida finds that it 
has, with respect to the consideration and adoption of the resolution, complied with the 
requirements of Chapter 286, Florida Statutes, and other relevant provisions of Florida law with 
respect to the allowance for the public input and comment prior to taking action by the adoption of 
this resolution; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Bradford County, Florida finds that 
the extension of the 2023 ad valorem tax assessment rolls, as accomplished by adoption of this 
resolution is in the best interest of Bradford County, Florida, and its citizens. 

 NOW THEREFORE be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Bradford 
County, Florida as follows: 

Section1.  Adoption and Incorporation of Recitals. 



 The Board of County Commissioners of Bradford County, Florida adopts the above-
outlined recitals and incorporates them herein as part and parcel of this resolution. 

Section 2.  Purpose and Authority for Resolution. 

 This resolution is adopted for the purpose of extending the 2023 ad valorem tax assessment 
rolls and is adopted pursuant to the authority granted by Section 197.323, Florida Statutes. 

Section 3.  Extension of Ad Valorem Tax Assessment Rolls. 

 Pursuant to Section 193.122, Florida Statutes; the authority granted by Section 197.323, Florida 
Statutes; and based upon a request by the Bradford County Tax Collector dated September 21, 2023, 
the Board of County Commissioners of Bradford County, Florida orders that the 2023 ad valorem 
tax assessment rolls be extended to the completion of the Value Adjustment Board hearing and 
again after the conclusion of all hearings. 

Section 4.  Effective Date of Resolution. 

 This resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption by the Board of County 
Commissioner of Bradford County, Florida  

 

 RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of County Commissioners of Bradford 
County, Florida, with a quorum present and voting, this 21st day of September 2023. 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
 
BY: DIANE ANDREWS, its 

Chairman 
 

ATTEST: 

 
_______________________________________ 
BY:  DENNY THOMPSON, as 

Clerk to the Board 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 

 

___________________________________________ 
BY: RICH KOMANDO, as 

County Attorney 







Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET 
 
 
 
DATE:     September 21, 2023  
    
AGENDA ITEM Approval and Acknowledgement of Presentation by the 

Bradford County Tax Collector of those Bradford County 
Tax Certificates which are Eligible for Tax Deeds 

 
DEPARTMENT:    Tax Collector 
 
PURPOSE: Tax Deeds for Bradford County Parcels 
 
  





Column1 Column2 Column3 Column4 Column5 Column6 Column7 Column8
ACS Tax Collection System                        BRADFORD COUNTY
09/13/2023  16:20:56         List of Land Sold          TC720R     S  COVERPAGE
Report Selection:
Tax Roll(s) of Certificates being Listed . . . R
Certificate Year(s) being Listed . . . . . . . 1980 - 2021
Sequence . . . 6  (Property, Year)
Print Confidential Information. . . . . N
List County Held Certificates . . . . . O
List Certificates were Purchased  . . . N
List Paid Certificates. . . . . . . . . N
Show Payments Made Against Certificates N
Show Social Security Numbers on list. . N
Print Report on . . . . . . . . . . . . STANDARD PAPER
Run Instructions:
  Jobq Banner   Copies Form Printer Hold Space  LPI  Lines CPI
    L             01           PJ    Y     S     6    066   10
                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE    1
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                                                                            
     12  ****00160-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999              12
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0038000               500 0006          8.20         52.44  18.00                               
        MATHIS JESSIE                                         Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        807 E QUAIL ST                                            .25      .42    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        PERRY, FL  32348-4932                                                                 STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        24 6S 20                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        LOT 6 OF BLK 16 IN TOWN OF                              16.00                                                       
        NEW RIVER                                                                                                           
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
     13  ****00160-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999              13
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0038100               500 0006          8.03         52.25  18.00                               
        MATTHEWS MATHIS JESSIE                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1109 KELLER ST                                            .24      .41    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091-4932                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        24 6S 20                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        LOT 6 OF BLK 16 IN TOWN OF                              16.00                                                       
        NEW RIVER                                                                                                           
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
     16  ****00160-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999              16
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0038300               500 0006          7.91         52.16  18.00                               
        MATTHEWS MATHIS JESSIE                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1109 KELLER ST                                            .24      .41    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091-4932                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        24 6S 20                                              OnlineTS                                                      



        LOT 6 OF BLK 16 IN TOWN OF                              16.00                                                       
        NEW RIVER                                                                                                           
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
     13  ****00160-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999              13
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0038800               500 0006          7.83         52.09  18.00                               
        MATTHEWS MATHIS JESSIE                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1109 KELLER ST                                            .23      .40    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091-4932                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        24 6S 20                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        LOT 6 OF BLK 16 IN TOWN OF                              16.00                                                       
        NEW RIVER                                                                                                           
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE    2
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
     14  ****00160-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999              14
          2020 Final Assmt # R 0039300               500 0006          7.74         58.82  18.00                               
        MATTHEWS MATHIS JESSIE                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1109 KELLER ST                                            .23      .40    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091-4932                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        24 6S 20                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        LOT 6 OF BLK 16 IN TOWN OF                              22.00                                                       
        NEW RIVER                                                                                                           
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
     52  ****00420-0-00200                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999              52
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0097900               100 0006          1.63         45.33  18.00                               
        FLETCHER CARRIE                                       Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        8130 SW 50TH PATH                                         .05      .08    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        LAKE BUTLER, FL  32054                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        18 7S 20                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM NE COR OF S1/2 GOV LOT 2.                           16.00                                                       
        RUN S01*05'30"E 780.06' TO POB                                                                                      
        S02*05'30"E 230.55', THENCE                                                                                         
        S88*56'49"W 620.08' TO E R/W                                                                                        
        CSX RR R/W ALSO BEING E R/W SW                                                                                      
        180TH PL, N26*10'17"E 259.27',                                                                                      
        N88*56'49"E 501.31' TO POB.                                                                                         
        BEING PRCL C.                                                                                                       
        EX: PORT LYINE E OF FENCELINE                                                                                       
        CASE #96-140-CA FINAL JUDGMENT                                                                                      
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
     48  ****00420-0-00200                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999              48



          2017 Final Assmt # R 0098200               100 0006          1.60         45.30  18.00                               
        FLETCHER CARRIE                                       Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        8130 SW 50TH PATH                                         .05      .08    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        LAKE BUTLER, FL  32054                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        18 7S 20                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM NE COR OF S1/2 GOV LOT 2.                           16.00                                                       
        RUN S01*05'30"E 780.06' TO POB                                                                                      
        S02*05'30"E 230.55', THENCE                                                                                         
        S88*56'49"W 620.08' TO E R/W                                                                                        
        CSX RR R/W ALSO BEING E R/W SW                                                                                      
        180TH PL, N26*10'17"E 259.27',                                                                                      
        N88*56'49"E 501.31' TO POB.                                                                                         
        BEING PRCL C.                                                                                                       
        EX: PORT LYINE E OF FENCELINE                                                                                       
        ** (LEGAL CONT. NEXT PAGE)                                                                                          

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE    3
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
        CASE #96-140-CA FINAL JUDGMENT                                                                                      
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
     46  ****00420-0-00200                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999              46
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0098300               100 0006          1.58         45.31  18.00                               
        FLETCHER CARRIE                                       Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        8130 SW 50TH PATH                                         .05      .08    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        LAKE BUTLER, FL  32054                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        18 7S 20                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM NE COR OF S1/2 GOV LOT 2.                           16.00                                                       
        RUN S01*05'30"E 780.06' TO POB                                                                                      
        S02*05'30"E 230.55', THENCE                                                                                         
        S88*56'49"W 620.08' TO E R/W                                                                                        
        CSX RR R/W ALSO BEING E R/W SW                                                                                      
        180TH PL, N26*10'17"E 259.27',                                                                                      
        N88*56'49"E 501.31' TO POB.                                                                                         
        BEING PRCL C.                                                                                                       
        EX: PORT LYINE E OF FENCELINE                                                                                       
        CASE #96-140-CA FINAL JUDGMENT                                                                                      
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
     43  ****00420-0-00200                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999              43
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0098900               100 0006          1.56         45.32  18.00                               
        FLETCHER CARRIE                                       Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        8130 SW 50TH PATH                                         .05      .08    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        LAKE BUTLER, FL  32054                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        18 7S 20                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM NE COR OF S1/2 GOV LOT 2.                           16.00                                                       
        RUN S01*05'30"E 780.06' TO POB                                                                                      



        S02*05'30"E 230.55', THENCE                                                                                         
        S88*56'49"W 620.08' TO E R/W                                                                                        
        CSX RR R/W ALSO BEING E R/W SW                                                                                      
        180TH PL, N26*10'17"E 259.27',                                                                                      
        N88*56'49"E 501.31' TO POB.                                                                                         
        BEING PRCL C.                                                                                                       
        EX: PORT LYINE E OF FENCELINE                                                                                       
        CASE #96-140-CA FINAL JUDGMENT                                                                                      

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE    4
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
     49  ****00420-0-00200                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999              49
          2020 Final Assmt # R 0099700               100 0006          1.55         52.13  18.00                               
        FLETCHER CARRIE                                       Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        8130 SW 50TH PATH                                         .05      .08    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        LAKE BUTLER, FL  32054                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        18 7S 20                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM NE COR OF S1/2 GOV LOT 2.                           22.00                                                       
        RUN S01*05'30"E 780.06' TO POB                                                                                      
        S02*05'30"E 230.55', THENCE                                                                                         
        S88*56'49"W 620.08' TO E R/W                                                                                        
        CSX RR R/W ALSO BEING E R/W SW                                                                                      
        180TH PL, N26*10'17"E 259.27',                                                                                      
        N88*56'49"E 501.31' TO POB.                                                                                         
        BEING PRCL C.                                                                                                       
        EX: PORT LYINE E OF FENCELINE                                                                                       
        CASE #96-140-CA FINAL JUDGMENT                                                                                      
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
     53  ****00420-0-00300                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999              53
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0098000               150 0006          2.47         46.24  18.00                               
        BARNES AMY V & JOHNNY L                               Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        PO BOX 108                                                .07      .13    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        WORTHINGTON SPGS, FL  32697                                                           STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        18 7S 20                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM NE COR OF S1/2 GOV LOT 2.                           16.00                                                       
        S01*05'30"E 1010.61' TO POB.                                                                                        
        S01*05'30"E 225.27', THENCE                                                                                         
        N85*25'08"W 31.99', THENCE                                                                                          
        N87*03'53"W 3.65', N84*55'14"W                                                                                      
        196.16', N85*12'55"W 200.12',                                                                                       
        N86*53'48"W 49.82', N86*56'02W                                                                                      
        150.18', N85*27'22"W 23.92',                                                                                        
        N87*18'30"W 73.36' TO E R/W RR                                                                                      
        ALSO BEING E R/W SW 180TH PL,                                                                                       
        N32*35'37"E 191.05', THENCE                                                                                         
        N88*56'49"E 620.08' TO POB.                                                                                         
        BEING PRCL D.                                                                                                       



        EX: PORT LYING E OF FENCELINE                                                                                       
        CASE #96-140-CA FINAL JUDGMENT                                                                                      

                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE    5
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
     49  ****00420-0-00300                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999              49
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0098300               150 0006          2.41         46.17  18.00                               
        BARNES AMY V & JOHNNY L                               Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        PO BOX 108                                                .07      .12    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        WORTHINGTON SPGS, FL  32697                                                           STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        18 7S 20                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM NE COR OF S1/2 GOV LOT 2.                           16.00                                                       
        S01*05'30"E 1010.61' TO POB.                                                                                        
        S01*05'30"E 225.27', THENCE                                                                                         
        N85*25'08"W 31.99', THENCE                                                                                          
        N87*03'53"W 3.65', N84*55'14"W                                                                                      
        196.16', N85*12'55"W 200.12',                                                                                       
        N86*53'48"W 49.82', N86*56'02W                                                                                      
        150.18', N85*27'22"W 23.92',                                                                                        
        N87*18'30"W 73.36' TO E R/W RR                                                                                      
        ALSO BEING E R/W SW 180TH PL,                                                                                       
        N32*35'37"E 191.05', THENCE                                                                                         
        N88*56'49"E 620.08' TO POB.                                                                                         
        BEING PRCL D.                                                                                                       
        EX: PORT LYING E OF FENCELINE                                                                                       
        CASE #96-140-CA FINAL JUDGMENT                                                                                      
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
     44  ****00420-0-00300                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999              44
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0099000               150 0006          2.36         46.18  18.00                               
        BARNES AMY V & JOHNNY L                               Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        PO BOX 108                                                .07      .12    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        WORTHINGTON SPGS, FL  32697                                                           STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        18 7S 20                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM NE COR OF S1/2 GOV LOT 2.                           16.00                                                       
        S01*05'30"E 1010.61' TO POB.                                                                                        
        S01*05'30"E 225.27', THENCE                                                                                         
        N85*25'08"W 31.99', THENCE                                                                                          
        N87*03'53"W 3.65', N84*55'14"W                                                                                      
        196.16', N85*12'55"W 200.12',                                                                                       
        N86*53'48"W 49.82', N86*56'02W                                                                                      
        150.18', N85*27'22"W 23.92',                                                                                        
        N87*18'30"W 73.36' TO E R/W RR                                                                                      
        ALSO BEING E R/W SW 180TH PL,                                                                                       
        N32*35'37"E 191.05', THENCE                                                                                         
        N88*56'49"E 620.08' TO POB.                                                                                         
        BEING PRCL D.                                                                                                       
        EX: PORT LYING E OF FENCELINE                                                                                       
        CASE #96-140-CA FINAL JUDGMENT                                                                                      



        ** (LEGAL CONT. NEXT PAGE)                                                                                          
                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE    6
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                                                                            
     50  ****00420-0-00300                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999              50
          2020 Final Assmt # R 0099800               150 0006          2.33         52.97  18.00                               
        BARNES AMY V & JOHNNY L                               Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        PO BOX 108                                                .07      .12    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        WORTHINGTON SPGS, FL  32697                                                           STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        18 7S 20                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM NE COR OF S1/2 GOV LOT 2.                           22.00                                                       
        S01*05'30"E 1010.61' TO POB.                                                                                        
        S01*05'30"E 225.27', THENCE                                                                                         
        N85*25'08"W 31.99', THENCE                                                                                          
        N87*03'53"W 3.65', N84*55'14"W                                                                                      
        196.16', N85*12'55"W 200.12',                                                                                       
        N86*53'48"W 49.82', N86*56'02W                                                                                      
        150.18', N85*27'22"W 23.92',                                                                                        
        N87*18'30"W 73.36' TO E R/W RR                                                                                      
        ALSO BEING E R/W SW 180TH PL,                                                                                       
        N32*35'37"E 191.05', THENCE                                                                                         
        N88*56'49"E 620.08' TO POB.                                                                                         
        BEING PRCL D.                                                                                                       
        EX: PORT LYING E OF FENCELINE                                                                                       
        CASE #96-140-CA FINAL JUDGMENT                                                                                      
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
     70  ****00513-0-00109                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999              70
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0134000              1450 0006         23.79         69.30  18.00                               
        ALVORD JACK F & DONNA C                               Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        24 WEST AVE APT 3                                         .71     1.23    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        DANSVILLE, NY  14437-1426                                                             STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        ORB-0448 P-0317         .29 AC                        OnlineTS                                                      
        28 5S 21                                                16.00                                                       
        COM SE COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4.                                                                                       
        N02*07'13"E 350', N88*02'00"W                                                                                       
        44.90' TO POB. N88*02'W 305.60                                                                                      
        N02*07'13'W 80.96', S73*11'10E                                                                                      
        315.96' TO POB.                                                                                                     

                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE    7
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



     70  ****00513-0-00109                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999              70
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0134500              1450 0006         23.28         68.75  18.00                               
        ALVORD JACK F & DONNA C                               Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        24 WEST AVE APT 4                                         .70     1.20    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        DANSVILLE, NY  14437-1426                                                             STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        ORB-0448 P-0317         .29 AC                        OnlineTS                                                      
        28 5S 21                                                16.00                                                       
        COM SE COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4.                                                                                       
        N02*07'13"E 350', N88*02'00"W                                                                                       
        44.90' TO POB. N88*02'W 305.60                                                                                      
        N02*07'13'W 80.96', S73*11'10E                                                                                      
        315.96' TO POB.                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
     65  ****00513-0-00109                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999              65
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0134500              1450 0006         22.93         68.40  18.00                               
        ALVORD JACK F & DONNA C                               Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        24 WEST AVE APT 4                                         .69     1.18    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        DANSVILLE, NY  14437-1426                                                             STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        ORB-0448 P-0317         .29 AC                        OnlineTS                                                      
        28 5S 21                                                16.00                                                       
        COM SE COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4.                                                                                       
        N02*07'13"E 350', N88*02'00"W                                                                                       
        44.90' TO POB. N88*02'W 305.60                                                                                      
        N02*07'13'W 80.96', S73*11'10E                                                                                      
        315.96' TO POB.                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
     64  ****00513-0-00109                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999              64
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0135500              1450 0006         22.72         68.20  18.00                               
        ALVORD JACK F & DONNA C                               Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        24 WEST AVE APT 4                                         .68     1.17    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        DANSVILLE, NY  14437-1426                                                             STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        ORB-0448 P-0317         .29 AC                        OnlineTS                                                      
        28 5S 21                                                16.00                                                       
        COM SE COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4.                                                                                       
        N02*07'13"E 350', N88*02'00"W                                                                                       
        44.90' TO POB. N88*02'W 305.60                                                                                      
        N02*07'13'W 80.96', S73*11'10E                                                                                      
        315.96' TO POB.                                                                                                     

                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE    8
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
     65  ****00513-0-00109                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999              65
          2020 Final Assmt # R 0136200              1450 0006         22.45         74.73  18.00                               
        ALVORD JACK F & DONNA C                               Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        24 WEST AVE APT 4                                         .67     1.16    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        DANSVILLE, NY  14437-1426                                                             STARKE, FL  32091             



                                                                                                                            
        ORB-0448 P-0317         .29 AC                        OnlineTS                                                      
        28 5S 21                                                22.00                                                       
        COM SE COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4.                                                                                       
        N02*07'13"E 350', N88*02'00"W                                                                                       
        44.90' TO POB. N88*02'W 305.60                                                                                      
        N02*07'13'W 80.96', S73*11'10E                                                                                      
        315.96' TO POB.                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    268  ****00949-0-00202                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             268
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0355800               500 0006          8.20         52.44  18.00                               
        CLAIMS PREVENTION & MANAGEMENT                        Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        SERVICES INC                                              .25      .42    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        PO BOX 87                                                                             STARKE, FL  32091             
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                                                   
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        24 7S 21                                                16.00                                                       
        THAT PORT OF N165' OF N1/2 OF                                                                                       
        SE1/4 LYING N OF GS&F.                                                                                              
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    253  ****00949-0-00202                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             253
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0356400               500 0006          8.03         52.25  18.00                               
        CLAIMS PREVENTION & MANAGEMENT                        Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        SERVICES INC                                              .24      .41    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        1305 W. RAIFORD RD                                                                    STARKE, FL  32091             
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                                                   
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        24 7S 21                                                16.00                                                       
        THAT PORT OF N165' OF N1/2 OF                                                                                       
        SE1/4 LYING N OF GS&F.                                                                                              
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    245  ****00949-0-00202                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             245
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0357900               500 0006          7.91         52.16  18.00                               
        CLAIMS PREVENTION & MANAGEMENT                        Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        SERVICES INC                                              .24      .41    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        PO BOX 87                                                                             STARKE, FL  32091             
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                                                   
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      

                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE    9
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
        24 7S 21                                                16.00                                                       
        THAT PORT OF N165' OF N1/2 OF                                                                                       
        SE1/4 LYING N OF GS&F.                                                                                              
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    255  ****00949-0-00202                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             255
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0360100               500 0006          7.83         52.09  18.00                               



        CLAIMS PREVENTION & MANAGEMENT                        Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        SERVICES INC                                              .23      .40    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        PO BOX 87                                                                             STARKE, FL  32091             
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                                                   
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        24 7S 21                                                16.00                                                       
        THAT PORT OF N165' OF N1/2 OF                                                                                       
        SE1/4 LYING N OF GS&F.                                                                                              
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    218  ****00949-0-00202                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             218
          2020 Final Assmt # R 0361400               500 0006          7.74         58.82  18.00                               
        CLAIMS PREVENTION & MANAGEMENT                        Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        SERVICES INC                                              .23      .40    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        PO BOX 87                                                                             STARKE, FL  32091             
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                                                   
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        24 7S 21                                                22.00                                                       
        THAT PORT OF N165' OF N1/2 OF                                                                                       
        SE1/4 LYING N OF GS&F.                                                                                              
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    406  ****01650-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             406
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0538700              5000 0006         80.27        130.38  18.00                               
        MATTHEWS MARTHA B (DEC)                               Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % LYNETTE JACKSON-LOTT                                   2.41     4.13    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        2556 CABERNET CIR                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
        OCOEE, FL  34761-5041                                                                                               
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        ORB-     P-            1.00 AC                          16.00                                                       
        25 5S 22                                                                                                            
        S132' OF W1/2 OF SW1/4 OF                                                                                           
        SW1/4 OF SW1/4.                                                                                                     

                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   10
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
    409  ****01650-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             409
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0543400              5000 0006         78.34        128.35  18.00                               
        MATTHEWS MARTHA B (DEC)                               Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % LYNETTE JACKSON-LOTT                                   2.35     4.03    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        2556 CABERNET CIR                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
        OCOEE, FL  34761-5041                                                                                               
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        ORB-     P-            1.00 AC                          16.00                                                       
        25 5S 22                                                                                                            
        S132' OF W1/2 OF SW1/4 OF                                                                                           
        SW1/4 OF SW1/4.                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    478  ****01749-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             478
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0560900               308 0006          5.06         49.04  18.00                               



        LEE ARTHUR MRS (DECEASED)                             Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        C/O BARBARA ADAMS                                         .15      .26    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        711 S WILSON AVE                                                                      STARKE, FL  32091             
        COCOA, FL  32922                                                                                                    
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        ORB-1310 P-0179         .19 AC                          16.00                                                       
        26 5S 22                                                                                                            
        E35' OF S1/2 OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4                                                                                      
        OF NE1/4. BEING .19 ACRE                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    456  ****01749-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             456
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0561300               308 0006          4.94         48.91  18.00                               
        LEE ARTHUR MRS (DECEASED)                             Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        C/O BARBARA ADAMS                                         .15      .25    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        711 S WILSON AVE                                                                      STARKE, FL  32091             
        COCOA, FL  32922                                                                                                    
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        ORB-1310 P-0179         .19 AC                          16.00                                                       
        26 5S 22                                                                                                            
        E35' OF S1/2 OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4                                                                                      
        OF NE1/4. BEING .19 ACRE                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    462  ****01749-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             462
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0563800               308 0006          4.87         48.87  18.00                               
        LEE ARTHUR MRS (DECEASED)                             Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        C/O BARBARA ADAMS                                         .15      .25    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        711 S WILSON AVE                                                                      STARKE, FL  32091             
        COCOA, FL  32922                                                                                                    
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   11
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
        ORB-1310 P-0179         .19 AC                          16.00                                                       
        26 5S 22                                                                                                            
        E35' OF S1/2 OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4                                                                                      
        OF NE1/4. BEING .19 ACRE                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    443  ****01749-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             443
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0566100               308 0006          4.83         48.85  18.00                               
        LEE ARTHUR MRS (DECEASED)                             Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        C/O BARBARA ADAMS                                         .14      .25    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        711 S WILSON AVE                                                                      STARKE, FL  32091             
        COCOA, FL  32922                                                                                                    
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        ORB-1310 P-0179         .19 AC                          16.00                                                       
        26 5S 22                                                                                                            
        E35' OF S1/2 OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4                                                                                      



        OF NE1/4. BEING .19 ACRE                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    376  ****01749-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             376
          2020 Final Assmt # R 0568400               308 0006          4.77         55.61  18.00                               
        LEE ARTHUR MRS (DECEASED)                             Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        C/O BARBARA ADAMS                                         .14      .25    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        711 S WILSON AVE                                                                      STARKE, FL  32091             
        COCOA, FL  32922                                                                                                    
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        ORB-1310 P-0179         .19 AC                          22.00                                                       
        26 5S 22                                                                                                            
        E35' OF S1/2 OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4                                                                                      
        OF NE1/4. BEING .19 ACRE                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    486  ****01794-0-00201                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             486
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0574500              2950 0006         48.42         95.93  18.00                               
        RHUE LYNDA H & TERRY H                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        5914 RIO ROYALLE RD                                      1.45     2.49    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        ST AUGUSTINE, FL  32080-7304                                                          STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        ORB-0890 P-0378         .59 AC                        OnlineTS                                                      
        28 5S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        COM SW COR OF NE1/4 OF SE1/4                                                                                        
        OF NW1/4. S89*25'33"E 122.35'                                                                                       
        TO POB. S89*25'33"E 330', RUN                                                                                       
        S38*44'34"W 108.42', THENCE                                                                                         
        S89*50'45"W 261.89' TO NW COR                                                                                       
        OR807-77, N00*09'22"W 88.58'                                                                                        
        ** (LEGAL CONT. NEXT PAGE)                                                                                          

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   12
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
        TO POB. BEING .59 ACRE                                                                                              
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    462  ****01794-0-00201                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             462
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0574900              2950 0006         47.37         94.80  18.00                               
        RHUE LYNDA H & TERRY H                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        20 BENNETT LN                                            1.42     2.44    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        PALM COAST, FL  32137-8609                                                            STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        ORB-0890 P-0378         .59 AC                        OnlineTS                                                      
        28 5S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        COM SW COR OF NE1/4 OF SE1/4                                                                                        
        OF NW1/4. S89*25'33"E 122.35'                                                                                       
        TO POB. S89*25'33"E 330', RUN                                                                                       
        S38*44'34"W 108.42', THENCE                                                                                         
        S89*50'45"W 261.89' TO NW COR                                                                                       



        OR807-77, N00*09'22"W 88.58'                                                                                        
        TO POB. BEING .59 ACRE                                                                                              
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    470  ****01794-0-00201                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             470
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0577500              2950 0006         46.65         94.05  18.00                               
        RHUE LYNDA H & TERRY H                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        870 VISCAYA BLVD                                         1.40     2.40    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        ST AUGUSTINE, FL  32086                                                               STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        ORB-0890 P-0378         .59 AC                        OnlineTS                                                      
        28 5S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        COM SW COR OF NE1/4 OF SE1/4                                                                                        
        OF NW1/4. S89*25'33"E 122.35'                                                                                       
        TO POB. S89*25'33"E 330', RUN                                                                                       
        S38*44'34"W 108.42', THENCE                                                                                         
        S89*50'45"W 261.89' TO NW COR                                                                                       
        OR807-77, N00*09'22"W 88.58'                                                                                        
        TO POB. BEING .59 ACRE                                                                                              
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    452  ****01794-0-00201                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             452
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0579800              2950 0006         46.22         93.62  18.00                               
        RHUE LYNDA H & TERRY H                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        870 VISCAYA BLVD                                         1.39     2.38    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        ST AUGUSTINE, FL  32086                                                               STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        ORB-0890 P-0378         .59 AC                        OnlineTS                                                      
        28 5S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        COM SW COR OF NE1/4 OF SE1/4                                                                                        
        ** (LEGAL CONT. NEXT PAGE)                                                                                          

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   13
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
        OF NW1/4. S89*25'33"E 122.35'                                                                                       
        TO POB. S89*25'33"E 330', RUN                                                                                       
        S38*44'34"W 108.42', THENCE                                                                                         
        S89*50'45"W 261.89' TO NW COR                                                                                       
        OR807-77, N00*09'22"W 88.58'                                                                                        
        TO POB. BEING .59 ACRE                                                                                              
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    388  ****01794-0-00201                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             388
          2020 Final Assmt # R 0582200              2950 0006         45.67         99.84  18.00                               
        RHUE LYNDA H & TERRY H                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        870 VISCAYA BLVD                                         1.37     2.35    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        ST AUGUSTINE, FL  32086                                                               STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        ORB-0890 P-0378         .59 AC                        OnlineTS                                                      
        28 5S 22                                                22.00                                                       



        COM SW COR OF NE1/4 OF SE1/4                                                                                        
        OF NW1/4. S89*25'33"E 122.35'                                                                                       
        TO POB. S89*25'33"E 330', RUN                                                                                       
        S38*44'34"W 108.42', THENCE                                                                                         
        S89*50'45"W 261.89' TO NW COR                                                                                       
        OR807-77, N00*09'22"W 88.58'                                                                                        
        TO POB. BEING .59 ACRE                                                                                              
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    563  ****02049-0-00101                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             563
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0655200               100 0006          1.63         45.33  18.00                               
        BALIS DONALD S & LINDA                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        723 SE SHADOW WOOD DRIVE                                  .05      .08    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        LAKE CITY, FL  32024                                                                  STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        ORB-0461 P-0284         .02 AC                        OnlineTS                                                      
        9 6S 22                                                 16.00                                                       
        COM SE COR OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4.                                                                                       
        N2*05'W 421.75', S86*28'W 200'                                                                                      
        N02*05'W 40' TO POB. N86*28'E                                                                                       
        20', N02*05'W 50', S86*28'W 20                                                                                      
        S50' M/L TO POB.                                                                                                    
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    523  ****02049-0-00101                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             523
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0655700               100 0006          1.60         45.30  18.00                               
        BALIS DONALD S & LINDA                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        723 SE SHADOW WOOD DRIVE                                  .05      .08    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        LAKE CITY, FL  32024                                                                  STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   14
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
        ORB-0461 P-0284         .02 AC                        OnlineTS                                                      
        9 6S 22                                                 16.00                                                       
        COM SE COR OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4.                                                                                       
        N2*05'W 421.75', S86*28'W 200'                                                                                      
        N02*05'W 40' TO POB. N86*28'E                                                                                       
        20', N02*05'W 50', S86*28'W 20                                                                                      
        S50' M/L TO POB.                                                                                                    
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    526  ****02049-0-00101                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             526
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0658900               100 0006          1.58         45.31  18.00                               
        BALIS DONALD S & LINDA                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        723 SE SHADOW WOOD DRIVE                                  .05      .08    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        LAKE CITY, FL  32024                                                                  STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        ORB-0461 P-0284         .02 AC                        OnlineTS                                                      
        9 6S 22                                                 16.00                                                       



        COM SE COR OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4.                                                                                       
        N2*05'W 421.75', S86*28'W 200'                                                                                      
        N02*05'W 40' TO POB. N86*28'E                                                                                       
        20', N02*05'W 50', S86*28'W 20                                                                                      
        S50' M/L TO POB.                                                                                                    
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    506  ****02049-0-00101                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             506
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0661700               100 0006          1.56         45.32  18.00                               
        BALIS DONALD S & LINDA                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        723 SE SHADOW WOOD DRIVE                                  .05      .08    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        LAKE CITY, FL  32024                                                                  STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        ORB-0461 P-0284         .02 AC                        OnlineTS                                                      
        9 6S 22                                                 16.00                                                       
        COM SE COR OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4.                                                                                       
        N2*05'W 421.75', S86*28'W 200'                                                                                      
        N02*05'W 40' TO POB. N86*28'E                                                                                       
        20', N02*05'W 50', S86*28'W 20                                                                                      
        S50' M/L TO POB.                                                                                                    
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    436  ****02049-0-00101                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             436
          2020 Final Assmt # R 0665600               100 0006          1.55         52.13  18.00                               
        BALIS DONALD S & LINDA                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        723 SE SHADOW WOOD DRIVE                                  .05      .08    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        LAKE CITY, FL  32024                                                                  STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        ORB-0461 P-0284         .02 AC                        OnlineTS                                                      

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   15
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
        9 6S 22                                                 22.00                                                       
        COM SE COR OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4.                                                                                       
        N2*05'W 421.75', S86*28'W 200'                                                                                      
        N02*05'W 40' TO POB. N86*28'E                                                                                       
        20', N02*05'W 50', S86*28'W 20                                                                                      
        S50' M/L TO POB.                                                                                                    
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    588  ****02291-0-00800                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             588
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0722400  HX             0 0006         75.00        124.68  18.00                               
        JACKSON BETSY                    25000                 Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        17917 NW 59TH LOOP                                       2.25     3.86    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        18 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        S198' OF E220' OF W440' OF                              16.00                                                       
        NE1/4 OF SW1/4.                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                            



                                                                                                                            
    600  ****02291-0-00800                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             600
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0725700  HX             0 0006         75.00        124.71  18.00                               
        JACKSON BETSY                    25000                 Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        17917 NW 59TH LOOP                                       2.25     3.86    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        18 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        S198' OF E220' OF W440' OF                              16.00                                                       
        NE1/4 OF SW1/4.                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    573  ****02291-0-00800                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             573
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0728900  HX             0 0006         75.00        124.74  18.00                               
        JACKSON BETSY                    25000                 Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        17917 NW 59TH LOOP                                       2.25     3.86    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        18 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        S198' OF E220' OF W440' OF                              16.00                                                       
        NE1/4 OF SW1/4.                                                                                                     

                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   16
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
    493  ****02291-0-00800                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             493
          2020 Final Assmt # R 0732900  HX             0 0006         75.00        131.56  18.00                               
        JACKSON BETSY                    25000                 Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        17917 NW 59TH LOOP                                       2.25     3.86    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        18 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        S198' OF E220' OF W440' OF                              22.00                                                       
        NE1/4 OF SW1/4.                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    682  ****02400-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             682
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0762300              1000 0005         20.52         65.77  18.00                               
        TRAYLOR BURL JR & PATRICIA N                          Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1025 N TEMPLE AVE #A                                      .62     1.06    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091-2112                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        21 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM AT NW COR OF NE1/4 OF                               16.00                                                       
        SE1/4 OF SW1/4. N89*17'E 240'                                                                                       
        TO POB. N89*17'E 72.93', RUN                                                                                        
        S0*43'E 15', S89*17'W 42.68',                                                                                       
        S1*41"E 132', S89*17'W 30',                                                                                         
        N1*41'W 17', N1*41'W 130' TO                                                                                        
        POB.                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            



    627  ****02400-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             627
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0762900              1000 0005         20.16         65.37  18.00                               
        TRAYLOR BURL JR & PATRICIA N                          Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1025 N TEMPLE AVE #A                                      .60     1.04    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091-2112                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        21 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM AT NW COR OF NE1/4 OF                               16.00                                                       
        SE1/4 OF SW1/4. N89*17'E 240'                                                                                       
        TO POB. N89*17'E 72.93', RUN                                                                                        
        S0*43'E 15', S89*17'W 42.68',                                                                                       
        S1*41"E 132', S89*17'W 30',                                                                                         
        N1*41'W 17', N1*41'W 130' TO                                                                                        
        POB.                                                                                                                

                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   17
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
    649  ****02400-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             649
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0766200              1000 0005         20.67         65.95  18.00                               
        TRAYLOR BURL JR & PATRICIA N                          Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1025 N TEMPLE AVE #A                                      .62     1.06    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091-2112                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        21 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM AT NW COR OF NE1/4 OF                               16.00                                                       
        SE1/4 OF SW1/4. N89*17'E 240'                                                                                       
        TO POB. N89*17'E 72.93', RUN                                                                                        
        S0*43'E 15', S89*17'W 42.68',                                                                                       
        S1*41"E 132', S89*17'W 30',                                                                                         
        N1*41'W 17', N1*41'W 130' TO                                                                                        
        POB.                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    618  ****02400-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             618
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0769300              1000 0005         20.74         66.06  18.00                               
        TRAYLOR BURL JR & PATRICIA N                          Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1025 N TEMPLE AVE #A                                      .62     1.07    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091-2112                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        21 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM AT NW COR OF NE1/4 OF                               16.00                                                       
        SE1/4 OF SW1/4. N89*17'E 240'                                                                                       
        TO POB. N89*17'E 72.93', RUN                                                                                        
        S0*43'E 15', S89*17'W 42.68',                                                                                       
        S1*41"E 132', S89*17'W 30',                                                                                         
        N1*41'W 17', N1*41'W 130' TO                                                                                        
        POB.                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    523  ****02400-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             523
          2020 Final Assmt # R 0773500              1000 0005         20.57         72.70  18.00                               



        TRAYLOR BURL JR & PATRICIA N                          Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1025 N TEMPLE AVE #A                                      .62     1.06    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091-2112                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        21 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM AT NW COR OF NE1/4 OF                               22.00                                                       
        SE1/4 OF SW1/4. N89*17'E 240'                                                                                       
        TO POB. N89*17'E 72.93', RUN                                                                                        
        S0*43'E 15', S89*17'W 42.68',                                                                                       
        S1*41"E 132', S89*17'W 30',                                                                                         
        N1*41'W 17', N1*41'W 130' TO                                                                                        
        POB.                                                                                                                
        ** (LEGAL CONT. NEXT PAGE)                                                                                          

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   18
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    699  ****02476-0-01704                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             699
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0778400              2000 0005         41.06         87.97  18.00                               
        GREEN FRANK EST                                       Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % CARL D HAILE                                           1.23     2.11    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        802 OAK ST                                                                            STARKE, FL  32091             
        STARKE, FL  32091-2340                                                                                              
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        21 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        LOTS 4,5,6 & 7 OF BLK 17                                                                                            
        BEING IN KNIGHTS S/D                                                                                                
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    644  ****02476-0-01704                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             644
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0779000              2000 0005         40.35         87.21  18.00                               
        GREEN FRANK EST                                       Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % CARL D HAILE                                           1.21     2.08    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        802 OAK ST                                                                            STARKE, FL  32091             
        STARKE, FL  32091-2340                                                                                              
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        21 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        LOTS 4,5,6 & 7 OF BLK 17                                                                                            
        BEING IN KNIGHTS S/D                                                                                                
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    663  ****02476-0-01704                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             663
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0782400              2000 0005         41.36         88.33  18.00                               
        GREEN FRANK EST                                       Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % CARL D HAILE                                           1.24     2.13    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        802 OAK ST                                                                            STARKE, FL  32091             
        STARKE, FL  32091-2340                                                                                              
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        21 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       



        LOTS 4,5,6 & 7 OF BLK 17                                                                                            
        BEING IN KNIGHTS S/D                                                                                                
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    633  ****02476-0-01704                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             633
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0785500              2000 0005         41.48         88.49  18.00                               
        GREEN FRANK EST                                       Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % CARL D HAILE                                           1.24     2.14    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        802 OAK ST                                                                            STARKE, FL  32091             
        STARKE, FL  32091-2340                                                                                              
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        21 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        ** (LEGAL CONT. NEXT PAGE)                                                                                          

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   19
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
        LOTS 4,5,6 & 7 OF BLK 17                                                                                            
        BEING IN KNIGHTS S/D                                                                                                
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    532  ****02476-0-01704                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             532
          2020 Final Assmt # R 0789700              2000 0005         41.15         94.95  18.00                               
        GREEN FRANK EST                                       Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % CARL D HAILE                                           1.23     2.12    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        802 OAK ST                                                                            STARKE, FL  32091             
        STARKE, FL  32091-2340                                                                                              
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        21 6S 22                                                22.00                                                       
        LOTS 4,5,6 & 7 OF BLK 17                                                                                            
        BEING IN KNIGHTS S/D                                                                                                
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    534  ****02476-0-02104                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             534
          2020 Final Assmt # R 0790700              1000 0005         20.57         72.70  18.00                               
        GOODSON CONSEIVILLA ET AL                             Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        PO BOX 477                                                .62     1.06    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        MIMS, FL  32754                                                                       STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        21 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        LOT 4 BLK 21 OF KNIGHTS S/D.                            22.00                                                       
        DESC OR 108-274                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    708  ****02495-0-01100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             708
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0782600              2000 0005         41.06         87.97  18.00                               
        KING IDELLA & ZIPPORAH                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        707 SW 75TH ST                                           1.23     2.11    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        APT 104                                                                               STARKE, FL  32091             
        GAINESVILLE, FL  32607                                                                                              
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      



        21 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        COM NE COR OF NE1/4 OF SE1/4.                                                                                       
        S00*21'17"W 327.40', THENCE                                                                                         
        N89*18'36"W 29.46' TO W R/W OF                                                                                      
        OLD LAWTEY RD. N89*18'36"W                                                                                          
        753.51' TO POB. S01*43'54"W                                                                                         
        122.23', N89*41'51"W 75', RUN                                                                                       
        N01*43'51"E 122.29', THENCE                                                                                         
        S89*18'36"E 74.99' TO POB.                                                                                          
        BEING LOT 11 HARUTHA HEIGHTS.                                                                                       
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   20
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
    653  ****02495-0-01100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             653
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0783200              2000 0005         40.35         87.21  18.00                               
        KING IDELLA & ZIPPORAH                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        3827 NE 13TH ST                                          1.21     2.08    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        GAINESVILLE, FL  32609                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        21 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM NE COR OF NE1/4 OF SE1/4.                           16.00                                                       
        S00*21'17"W 327.40', THENCE                                                                                         
        N89*18'36"W 29.46' TO W R/W OF                                                                                      
        OLD LAWTEY RD. N89*18'36"W                                                                                          
        753.51' TO POB. S01*43'54"W                                                                                         
        122.23', N89*41'51"W 75', RUN                                                                                       
        N01*43'51"E 122.29', THENCE                                                                                         
        S89*18'36"E 74.99' TO POB.                                                                                          
        BEING LOT 11 HARUTHA HEIGHTS.                                                                                       
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    671  ****02495-0-01100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             671
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0786600              2000 0005         41.36         88.33  18.00                               
        KING IDELLA & ZIPPORAH                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        3827 NE 13TH ST                                          1.24     2.13    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        GAINESVILLE, FL  32609                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        21 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM NE COR OF NE1/4 OF SE1/4.                           16.00                                                       
        S00*21'17"W 327.40', THENCE                                                                                         
        N89*18'36"W 29.46' TO W R/W OF                                                                                      
        OLD LAWTEY RD. N89*18'36"W                                                                                          
        753.51' TO POB. S01*43'54"W                                                                                         
        122.23', N89*41'51"W 75', RUN                                                                                       
        N01*43'51"E 122.29', THENCE                                                                                         
        S89*18'36"E 74.99' TO POB.                                                                                          
        BEING LOT 11 HARUTHA HEIGHTS.                                                                                       
                                                                                                                            



                                                                                                                            
    644  ****02495-0-01100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             644
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0789700              2000 0005         41.48         88.49  18.00                               
        KING IDELLA & ZIPPORAH                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        3827 NE 13TH ST                                          1.24     2.14    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        GAINESVILLE, FL  32609                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        21 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM NE COR OF NE1/4 OF SE1/4.                           16.00                                                       
        S00*21'17"W 327.40', THENCE                                                                                         
        N89*18'36"W 29.46' TO W R/W OF                                                                                      
        ** (LEGAL CONT. NEXT PAGE)                                                                                          

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   21
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
        OLD LAWTEY RD. N89*18'36"W                                                                                          
        753.51' TO POB. S01*43'54"W                                                                                         
        122.23', N89*41'51"W 75', RUN                                                                                       
        N01*43'51"E 122.29', THENCE                                                                                         
        S89*18'36"E 74.99' TO POB.                                                                                          
        BEING LOT 11 HARUTHA HEIGHTS.                                                                                       
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    654  ****02500-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             654
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0785400              3000 0005         60.50        109.01  18.00                               
        DAVIS WILLIE EST                                      Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % N DAVIS                                                1.82     3.12    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        1139 NE 24TH TER                                                                      STARKE, FL  32091             
        GAINESVILLE, FL  32601-4873                                                                                         
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        21 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        LOT 7 OF BLK 8 OF NORTH-RENO                                                                                        
        S/D                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    539  ****02500-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             539
          2020 Final Assmt # R 0796100              3000 0005         61.71        117.19  18.00                               
        DAVIS WILLIE EST                                      Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % N DAVIS                                                1.85     3.18    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        1139 NE 24TH TER                                                                      STARKE, FL  32091             
        GAINESVILLE, FL  32601-4873                                                                                         
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        21 6S 22                                                22.00                                                       
        LOT 7 OF BLK 8 OF NORTH-RENO                                                                                        
        S/D                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    713  ****02517-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             713
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0787300              2000 0005         41.06         87.97  18.00                               
        FARNSWORTH VIVIAN & BRIAN                             Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               



        2850 SW YANCY ST PMB 219                                 1.23     2.11    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        SEATTLE, WA  98126-2577                                                               STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        21 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        LOTS 2 & 3 OF BLK 17 IN NORTH                           16.00                                                       
        RENO S/D                                                                                                            

                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   22
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
    657  ****02517-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             657
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0787900              2000 0005         40.35         87.21  18.00                               
        FARNSWORTH VIVIAN & BRIAN                             Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        2850 SW YANCY ST PMB 219                                 1.21     2.08    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        SEATTLE, WA  98126-2577                                                               STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        21 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        LOTS 2 & 3 OF BLK 17 IN NORTH                           16.00                                                       
        RENO S/D                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    676  ****02517-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             676
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0791300              2000 0005         41.36         88.33  18.00                               
        FARNSWORTH VIVIAN & BRIAN                             Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        2850 SW YANCY ST PMB 219                                 1.24     2.13    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        SEATTLE, WA  98126-2577                                                               STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        21 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        LOTS 2 & 3 OF BLK 17 IN NORTH                           16.00                                                       
        RENO S/D                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    648  ****02517-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             648
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0794400              2000 0005         41.48         88.49  18.00                               
        FARNSWORTH VIVIAN & BRIAN                             Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        2850 SW YANCY ST PMB 219                                 1.24     2.14    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        SEATTLE, WA  98126-2577                                                               STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        21 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        LOTS 2 & 3 OF BLK 17 IN NORTH                           16.00                                                       
        RENO S/D                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    726  ****02593-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             726
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0795700              1000 0005         20.52         65.77  18.00                               
        COX IVERY L                                           Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        2357 LANTANA AVE                                          .62     1.06    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        JACKSONVILLE, FL  32209-2009                                                          STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        21 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        LOT 20 OF BLK 3 IN GAHAGAN                              16.00                                                       
        S/D                                                                                                                 



                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   23
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
    674  ****02593-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             674
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0796300              1000 0005         20.16         65.37  18.00                               
        COX IVERY L                                           Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        2357 LANTANA AVE                                          .60     1.04    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        JACKSONVILLE, FL  32209-2009                                                          STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        21 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        LOT 20 OF BLK 3 IN GAHAGAN                              16.00                                                       
        S/D                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    689  ****02593-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             689
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0799700              1000 0005         20.67         65.95  18.00                               
        COX IVERY L                                           Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        2357 LANTANA AVE                                          .62     1.06    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        JACKSONVILLE, FL  32209-2009                                                          STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        21 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        LOT 20 OF BLK 3 IN GAHAGAN                              16.00                                                       
        S/D                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    663  ****02593-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             663
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0802800              1000 0005         20.74         66.06  18.00                               
        COX IVERY L                                           Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        2357 LANTANA AVE                                          .62     1.07    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        JACKSONVILLE, FL  32209-2009                                                          STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        21 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        LOT 20 OF BLK 3 IN GAHAGAN                              16.00                                                       
        S/D                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    557  ****02593-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             557
          2020 Final Assmt # R 0807000              1000 0005         20.57         72.70  18.00                               
        COX IVERY L                                           Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        2357 LANTANA AVE                                          .62     1.06    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        JACKSONVILLE, FL  32209-2009                                                          STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        21 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        LOT 20 OF BLK 3 IN GAHAGAN                              22.00                                                       
        S/D                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   24
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
    751  ****02675-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             751
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0806700              2000 0005         41.06         87.97  18.00                               
        THOMAS LEROY JR (DEC) & LEON                          Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        682 SE MONROE ST                                         1.23     2.11    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        LAKE CITY, FL  32025                                                                  STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        22 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM AT SW COR OF NW1/4 OF                               16.00                                                       
        SW1/4 RUN E 960FT, N 430FT                                                                                          
        FOR POB, E 100FT S 130FT, W                                                                                         
        100FT, N 130FT TO POB OR                                                                                            
        129-530                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    699  ****02675-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             699
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0807200              2000 0005         40.35         87.21  18.00                               
        THOMAS LEROY JR (DEC) & LEON                          Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        682 SE MONROE ST                                         1.21     2.08    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        LAKE CITY, FL  32025                                                                  STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        22 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM AT SW COR OF NW1/4 OF                               16.00                                                       
        SW1/4 RUN E 960FT, N 430FT                                                                                          
        FOR POB, E 100FT S 130FT, W                                                                                         
        100FT, N 130FT TO POB OR                                                                                            
        129-530                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    709  ****02675-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             709
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0810600              2000 0005         41.36         88.33  18.00                               
        THOMAS LEROY JR (DEC) & LEON                          Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        682 SE MONROE ST                                         1.24     2.13    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        LAKE CITY, FL  32025                                                                  STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        22 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM AT SW COR OF NW1/4 OF                               16.00                                                       
        SW1/4 RUN E 960FT, N 430FT                                                                                          
        FOR POB, E 100FT S 130FT, W                                                                                         
        100FT, N 130FT TO POB OR                                                                                            
        129-530                                                                                                             

                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   25
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
    681  ****02675-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             681
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0813800              2000 0005         41.48         88.49  18.00                               
        THOMAS LEROY JR (DEC) & LEON                          Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        682 SE MONROE ST                                         1.24     2.14    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        LAKE CITY, FL  32025                                                                  STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        22 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      



        COM AT SW COR OF NW1/4 OF                               16.00                                                       
        SW1/4 RUN E 960FT, N 430FT                                                                                          
        FOR POB, E 100FT S 130FT, W                                                                                         
        100FT, N 130FT TO POB OR                                                                                            
        129-530                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    572  ****02675-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             572
          2020 Final Assmt # R 0818000              2000 0005         41.15         94.95  18.00                               
        THOMAS LEROY JR (DEC) & LEON                          Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        682 SE MONROE ST                                         1.23     2.12    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        LAKE CITY, FL  32025                                                                  STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        22 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM AT SW COR OF NW1/4 OF                               22.00                                                       
        SW1/4 RUN E 960FT, N 430FT                                                                                          
        FOR POB, E 100FT S 130FT, W                                                                                         
        100FT, N 130FT TO POB OR                                                                                            
        129-530                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    769  ****02707-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             769
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0814500              2000 0005         41.06         87.97  18.00                               
        LEE JACK JR                                           Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1520 ESTELLE ST                                          1.23     2.11    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        22 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        S1/3 OF S1/2 OF W198' OF N1/2                           16.00                                                       
        OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4 OF SW1/4                                                                                          
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    721  ****02707-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             721
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0815000              2000 0005         40.35         87.21  18.00                               
        LEE JACK JR                                           Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1520 ESTELLE ST                                          1.21     2.08    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        22 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   26
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
        S1/3 OF S1/2 OF W198' OF N1/2                           16.00                                                       
        OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4 OF SW1/4                                                                                          
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    726  ****02707-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             726
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0818400              2000 0005         41.36         88.33  18.00                               
        LEE JACK JR                                           Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1520 ESTELLE ST                                          1.24     2.13    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                



        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        22 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        S1/3 OF S1/2 OF W198' OF N1/2                           16.00                                                       
        OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4 OF SW1/4                                                                                          
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    697  ****02707-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             697
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0821600              2000 0005         41.48         88.49  18.00                               
        LEE JACK JR                                           Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1520 ESTELLE ST                                          1.24     2.14    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        22 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        S1/3 OF S1/2 OF W198' OF N1/2                           16.00                                                       
        OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4 OF SW1/4                                                                                          
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    585  ****02707-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             585
          2020 Final Assmt # R 0825800              2000 0005         41.15         94.95  18.00                               
        LEE JACK JR                                           Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1520 ESTELLE ST                                          1.23     2.12    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        22 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        S1/3 OF S1/2 OF W198' OF N1/2                           22.00                                                       
        OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4 OF SW1/4                                                                                          
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    770  ****02707-0-00200                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             770
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0814700              2000 0005         41.06         87.97  18.00                               
        WELLMON MILDRED & J E JR                              Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % MAURICE DAVIS                                          1.23     2.11    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        1648 WYNSAM ST                                                                        STARKE, FL  32091             
        PHILADELPHIA, PA  19138                                                                                             
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        22 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        N1/3 OF S1/2 OF W 198' OF                                                                                           
        ** (LEGAL CONT. NEXT PAGE)                                                                                          

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   27
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
        N1/2 OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4 OF                                                                                           
        SW1/4                                                                                                               
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    722  ****02707-0-00200                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             722
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0815200              2000 0005         40.35         87.21  18.00                               
        WELLMON MILDRED & J E JR                              Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % MAURICE DAVIS                                          1.21     2.08    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                



        1648 WYNSAM ST                                                                        STARKE, FL  32091             
        PHILADELPHIA, PA  19138                                                                                             
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        22 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        N1/3 OF S1/2 OF W 198' OF                                                                                           
        N1/2 OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4 OF                                                                                           
        SW1/4                                                                                                               
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    727  ****02707-0-00200                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             727
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0818600              2000 0005         41.36         88.33  18.00                               
        WELLMON MILDRED & J E JR                              Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % MAURICE DAVIS                                          1.24     2.13    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        1648 WYNSAM STR                                                                       STARKE, FL  32091             
        PHILADELPHIA, PA  19138                                                                                             
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        22 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        N1/3 OF S1/2 OF W 198' OF                                                                                           
        N1/2 OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4 OF                                                                                           
        SW1/4                                                                                                               
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    698  ****02707-0-00200                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             698
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0821800              2000 0005         41.48         88.49  18.00                               
        WELLMON MILDRED & J E JR                              Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % MAURICE DAVIS                                          1.24     2.14    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        1648 WYNSAM STR                                                                       STARKE, FL  32091             
        PHILADELPHIA, PA  19138                                                                                             
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        22 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        N1/3 OF S1/2 OF W 198' OF                                                                                           
        N1/2 OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4 OF                                                                                           
        SW1/4                                                                                                               

                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   28
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
    587  ****02707-0-00200                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             587
          2020 Final Assmt # R 0826000              2000 0005         41.15         94.95  18.00                               
        WELLMON MILDRED & J E JR                              Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % MAURICE DAVIS                                          1.23     2.12    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        1648 WYNSAM STR                                                                       STARKE, FL  32091             
        PHILADELPHIA, PA  19138                                                                                             
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        22 6S 22                                                22.00                                                       
        N1/3 OF S1/2 OF W 198' OF                                                                                           
        N1/2 OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4 OF                                                                                           
        SW1/4                                                                                                               
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    771  ****02709-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             771
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0814900              2000 0005         41.06         87.97  18.00                               



        LEE JACK JR                                           Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1520 ESTELLE ST                                          1.23     2.11    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        22 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM NW COR OF SW1/4 OF SW1/4                            16.00                                                       
        OF SW1/4. E672.5', S55' TO POB                                                                                      
        E198', S55', W198', N55' TO                                                                                         
        POB.                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    724  ****02709-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             724
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0815400              2000 0005         40.35         87.21  18.00                               
        LEE JACK JR                                           Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1520 ESTELLE ST                                          1.21     2.08    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        22 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM NW COR OF SW1/4 OF SW1/4                            16.00                                                       
        OF SW1/4. E672.5', S55' TO POB                                                                                      
        E198', S55', W198', N55' TO                                                                                         
        POB.                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    729  ****02709-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             729
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0818800              2000 0005         41.36         88.33  18.00                               
        LEE JACK JR                                           Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1520 ESTELLE ST                                          1.24     2.13    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        22 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   29
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
        COM NW COR OF SW1/4 OF SW1/4                            16.00                                                       
        OF SW1/4. E672.5', S55' TO POB                                                                                      
        E198', S55', W198', N55' TO                                                                                         
        POB.                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    699  ****02709-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             699
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0822000              2000 0005         41.48         88.49  18.00                               
        LEE JACK JR                                           Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1520 ESTELLE ST                                          1.24     2.14    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        22 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM NW COR OF SW1/4 OF SW1/4                            16.00                                                       
        OF SW1/4. E672.5', S55' TO POB                                                                                      
        E198', S55', W198', N55' TO                                                                                         



        POB.                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    588  ****02709-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             588
          2020 Final Assmt # R 0826200              2000 0005         41.15         94.95  18.00                               
        LEE JACK JR                                           Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1520 ESTELLE ST                                          1.23     2.12    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        22 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM NW COR OF SW1/4 OF SW1/4                            22.00                                                       
        OF SW1/4. E672.5', S55' TO POB                                                                                      
        E198', S55', W198', N55' TO                                                                                         
        POB.                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    772  ****02710-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             772
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0815000              2000 0005         41.06         87.97  18.00                               
        WILLIAMS ALVA L ET AL                                 Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        2612 W COOLIDGE ST                                       1.23     2.11    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        PHOENIX, AZ  85017-3747                                                               STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        22 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM NW COR OF SW1/4 OF SW1/4                            16.00                                                       
        OF SW1/4. E672.5', S110' TO                                                                                         
        POB. S55', E198', N55', W198'                                                                                       
        TO POB.                                                                                                             

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   30
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
    725  ****02710-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             725
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0815500              2000 0005         40.35         87.21  18.00                               
        WILLIAMS ALVA L ET AL                                 Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        2612 W COOLIDGE ST                                       1.21     2.08    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        PHOENIX, AZ  85017-3747                                                               STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        22 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM NW COR OF SW1/4 OF SW1/4                            16.00                                                       
        OF SW1/4. E672.5', S110' TO                                                                                         
        POB. S55', E198', N55', W198'                                                                                       
        TO POB.                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    730  ****02710-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             730
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0818900              2000 0005         41.36         88.33  18.00                               
        WILLIAMS ALVA L ET AL                                 Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        2612 W COOLIDGE ST                                       1.24     2.13    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        PHOENIX, AZ  85017-3747                                                               STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        22 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      



        COM NW COR OF SW1/4 OF SW1/4                            16.00                                                       
        OF SW1/4. E672.5', S110' TO                                                                                         
        POB. S55', E198', N55', W198'                                                                                       
        TO POB.                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    700  ****02710-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             700
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0822100              2000 0005         41.48         88.49  18.00                               
        WILLIAMS ALVA L ET AL                                 Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        2612 W COOLIDGE ST                                       1.24     2.14    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        PHOENIX, AZ  85017-3747                                                               STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        22 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM NW COR OF SW1/4 OF SW1/4                            16.00                                                       
        OF SW1/4. E672.5', S110' TO                                                                                         
        POB. S55', E198', N55', W198'                                                                                       
        TO POB.                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    589  ****02710-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             589
          2020 Final Assmt # R 0826300              2000 0005         41.15         94.95  18.00                               
        WILLIAMS ALVA L ET AL                                 Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        2612 W COOLIDGE ST                                       1.23     2.12    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        PHOENIX, AZ  85017-3747                                                               STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        22 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   31
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
        COM NW COR OF SW1/4 OF SW1/4                            22.00                                                       
        OF SW1/4. E672.5', S110' TO                                                                                         
        POB. S55', E198', N55', W198'                                                                                       
        TO POB.                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    773  ****02712-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             773
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0815200              2000 0005         41.06         87.97  18.00                               
        MARSHALL BOOKER T & IRENE P                           Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        2474 MADRID WAY S                                        1.23     2.11    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        SAINT PETERSBURG, FL                                                                  STARKE, FL  32091             
                            33712-3900                                                                                      
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        22 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        COM AT NE COR OF SW1/4 OF                                                                                           
        SW1/4 RUN W 252' FOR POB, S                                                                                         
        226.02', WLY 40', N 223.91',                                                                                        
        E 40' TO POB                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    726  ****02712-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             726



          2017 Final Assmt # R 0815700              2000 0005         40.35         87.21  18.00                               
        MARSHALL BOOKER T & IRENE P                           Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        2474 MADRID WAY S                                        1.21     2.08    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        SAINT PETERSBURG, FL                                                                  STARKE, FL  32091             
                            33712-3900                                                                                      
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        22 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        COM AT NE COR OF SW1/4 OF                                                                                           
        SW1/4 RUN W 252' FOR POB, S                                                                                         
        226.02', WLY 40', N 223.91',                                                                                        
        E 40' TO POB                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    731  ****02712-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             731
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0819100              2000 0005         41.36         88.33  18.00                               
        MARSHALL BOOKER T & IRENE P                           Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        2474 MADRID WAY S                                        1.24     2.13    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        SAINT PETERSBURG, FL                                                                  STARKE, FL  32091             
                            33712-3900                                                                                      
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        22 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        COM AT NE COR OF SW1/4 OF                                                                                           
        SW1/4 RUN W 252' FOR POB, S                                                                                         
        226.02', WLY 40', N 223.91',                                                                                        
        E 40' TO POB                                                                                                        
        ** (LEGAL CONT. NEXT PAGE)                                                                                          

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   32
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    701  ****02712-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             701
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0822300              2000 0005         41.48         88.49  18.00                               
        MARSHALL BOOKER T & IRENE P                           Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        2474 MADRID WAY S                                        1.24     2.14    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        SAINT PETERSBURG, FL                                                                  STARKE, FL  32091             
                            33712-3900                                                                                      
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        22 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        COM AT NE COR OF SW1/4 OF                                                                                           
        SW1/4 RUN W 252' FOR POB, S                                                                                         
        226.02', WLY 40', N 223.91',                                                                                        
        E 40' TO POB                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    590  ****02712-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             590
          2020 Final Assmt # R 0826500              2000 0005         41.15         94.95  18.00                               
        MARSHALL BOOKER T & IRENE P                           Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        2474 MADRID WAY S                                        1.23     2.12    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        SAINT PETERSBURG, FL                                                                  STARKE, FL  32091             



                            33712-3900                                                                                      
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        22 6S 22                                                22.00                                                       
        COM AT NE COR OF SW1/4 OF                                                                                           
        SW1/4 RUN W 252' FOR POB, S                                                                                         
        226.02', WLY 40', N 223.91',                                                                                        
        E 40' TO POB                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    798  ****02784-0-00108                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             798
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0835100               150 0006          2.47         46.24  18.00                               
        CRUM REGINALD B                                       Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1730 RAIFORD RD                                           .07      .13    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        ORB-1248 P-0328         .03 AC                        OnlineTS                                                      
        24 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        COM SE COR SECTION. N0*37'20"W                                                                                      
        938.44', S83*10'50"W 493.16'                                                                                        
        TO POB. S83*10'50"W 7', THENCE                                                                                      
        N06*52'07"W 214.86' TO S R/W                                                                                        
        SR-16, N83*07'53"E 7' ON R/W                                                                                        
        S6*52'07"E 214.86' TO POB.                                                                                          
        BEING .03 ACRE.                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                            

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   33
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                                                                                                            
    750  ****02784-0-00108                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             750
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0835700               150 0006          2.41         46.17  18.00                               
        CRUM REGINALD B                                       Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1730 RAIFORD RD                                           .07      .12    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        ORB-1248 P-0328         .03 AC                        OnlineTS                                                      
        24 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        COM SE COR SECTION. N0*37'20"W                                                                                      
        938.44', S83*10'50"W 493.16'                                                                                        
        TO POB. S83*10'50"W 7', THENCE                                                                                      
        N06*52'07"W 214.86' TO S R/W                                                                                        
        SR-16, N83*07'53"E 7' ON R/W                                                                                        
        S6*52'07"E 214.86' TO POB.                                                                                          
        BEING .03 ACRE.                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    758  ****02784-0-00108                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             758
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0839200               150 0006          2.38         46.17  18.00                               
        CRUM REGINALD B                                       Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1730 RAIFORD RD                                           .07      .12    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                



        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        ORB-1248 P-0328         .03 AC                        OnlineTS                                                      
        24 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        COM SE COR SECTION. N0*37'20"W                                                                                      
        938.44', S83*10'50"W 493.16'                                                                                        
        TO POB. S83*10'50"W 7', THENCE                                                                                      
        N06*52'07"W 214.86' TO S R/W                                                                                        
        SR-16, N83*07'53"E 7' ON R/W                                                                                        
        S6*52'07"E 214.86' TO POB.                                                                                          
        BEING .03 ACRE.                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    726  ****02784-0-00108                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             726
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0842400               150 0006          2.36         46.18  18.00                               
        CRUM REGINALD B                                       Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1730 RAIFORD RD                                           .07      .12    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        ORB-1248 P-0328         .03 AC                        OnlineTS                                                      
        24 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        COM SE COR SECTION. N0*37'20"W                                                                                      
        938.44', S83*10'50"W 493.16'                                                                                        
        TO POB. S83*10'50"W 7', THENCE                                                                                      
        ** (LEGAL CONT. NEXT PAGE)                                                                                          

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   34
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
        N06*52'07"W 214.86' TO S R/W                                                                                        
        SR-16, N83*07'53"E 7' ON R/W                                                                                        
        S6*52'07"E 214.86' TO POB.                                                                                          
        BEING .03 ACRE.                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    613  ****02784-0-00108                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             613
          2020 Final Assmt # R 0846800               150 0006          2.33         52.97  18.00                               
        CRUM REGINALD B                                       Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1730 RAIFORD RD                                           .07      .12    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        ORB-1248 P-0328         .03 AC                        OnlineTS                                                      
        24 6S 22                                                22.00                                                       
        COM SE COR SECTION. N0*37'20"W                                                                                      
        938.44', S83*10'50"W 493.16'                                                                                        
        TO POB. S83*10'50"W 7', THENCE                                                                                      
        N06*52'07"W 214.86' TO S R/W                                                                                        
        SR-16, N83*07'53"E 7' ON R/W                                                                                        
        S6*52'07"E 214.86' TO POB.                                                                                          
        BEING .03 ACRE.                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                            



                                                                                                                            
    871  ****03304-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             871
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0929000              2000 0005         41.06         87.97  18.00                               
        CUMMINGS VICKIE HOLMES                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        PO BOX 1211                                              1.23     2.11    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        28 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        LOT 4 OF BLK 8 IN L T & COS                             16.00                                                       
        S/D                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    824  ****03304-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             824
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0929800              2000 0005         40.35         87.21  18.00                               
        CUMMINGS VICKIE HOLMES                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        PO BOX 1211                                              1.21     2.08    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        28 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        LOT 4 OF BLK 8 IN L T & COS                             16.00                                                       
        S/D                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   35
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
    832  ****03304-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             832
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0933300              2000 0005         41.36         88.33  18.00                               
        CUMMINGS VICKIE HOLMES                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        PO BOX 1211                                              1.24     2.13    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        28 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        LOT 4 OF BLK 8 IN L T & COS                             16.00                                                       
        S/D                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    795  ****03304-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             795
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0935100              2000 0005         41.48         88.49  18.00                               
        CUMMINGS VICKIE HOLMES                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        PO BOX 1211                                              1.24     2.14    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        28 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        LOT 4 OF BLK 8 IN L T & COS                             16.00                                                       
        S/D                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    825  ****03306-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             825



          2017 Final Assmt # R 0930000              3000 0005         60.50        109.01  18.00                               
        JONES CHARLES & ROSA MAE EST                          Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % LEO COLEMAN                                            1.82     3.12    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        221 W NEWELL ST                                                                       STARKE, FL  32091             
        SYRACUSE, NY  13205                                                                                                 
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        28 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        LOTS 2,3 OF BLK 8 IN L T &                                                                                          
        COS S/D EX R/W                                                                                                      
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    796  ****03306-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             796
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0935300              3000 0005         62.21        110.91  18.00                               
        JONES CHARLES & ROSA MAE EST                          Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % LEO COLEMAN                                            1.87     3.20    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        221 W NEWELL ST                                                                       STARKE, FL  32091             
        SYRACUSE, NY  13205                                                                                                 
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        28 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        LOTS 2,3 OF BLK 8 IN L T &                                                                                          
        COS S/D EX R/W                                                                                                      

                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   36
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
    873  ****03310-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             873
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0929700              1000 0005         20.52         65.77  18.00                               
        GHENT CLARA BELL                                      Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % TYRONE BRAZELL                                          .62     1.06    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        8215 N 17TH ST                                                                        STARKE, FL  32091             
        TAMPA, FL  33604-3409                                                                                               
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        28 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        E1/2 LOT 1 OF BLK 10 IN L T &                                                                                       
        COS S/D                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    829  ****03310-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             829
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0930500              1000 0005         20.16         65.37  18.00                               
        GHENT CLARA BELL                                      Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % TYRONE BRAZELL                                          .60     1.04    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        8215 N 17TH ST                                                                        STARKE, FL  32091             
        TAMPA, FL  33604-3409                                                                                               
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        28 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        E1/2 LOT 1 OF BLK 10 IN L T &                                                                                       
        COS S/D                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    837  ****03310-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             837
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0934000              1000 0005         20.67         65.95  18.00                               
        GHENT CLARA BELL                                      Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               



        % TYRONE BRAZELL                                          .62     1.06    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        8215 N 17TH ST                                                                        STARKE, FL  32091             
        TAMPA, FL  33604-3409                                                                                               
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        28 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        E1/2 LOT 1 OF BLK 10 IN L T &                                                                                       
        COS S/D                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    800  ****03310-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             800
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0935800              1000 0005         20.74         66.06  18.00                               
        GHENT CLARA BELL                                      Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % TYRONE BRAZELL                                          .62     1.07    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        8215 N 17TH ST                                                                        STARKE, FL  32091             
        TAMPA, FL  33604-3409                                                                                               
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        28 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        E1/2 LOT 1 OF BLK 10 IN L T &                                                                                       
        COS S/D                                                                                                             
        ** (LEGAL CONT. NEXT PAGE)                                                                                          

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   37
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    671  ****03310-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             671
          2020 Final Assmt # R 0940200              1000 0005         20.57         72.70  18.00                               
        GHENT CLARA BELL                                      Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % TYRONE BRAZELL                                          .62     1.06    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        8215 N 17TH ST                                                                        STARKE, FL  32091             
        TAMPA, FL  33604-3409                                                                                               
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        28 6S 22                                                22.00                                                       
        E1/2 LOT 1 OF BLK 10 IN L T &                                                                                       
        COS S/D                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    874  ****03311-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             874
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0929800              2000 0005         41.06         87.97  18.00                               
        DADE BERTHA L ESTATE                                  Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % LILLIAN L TAYLOR                                       1.23     2.11    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        2906 OXON PARK ST                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
        TEMPLE HILLS, MD  20748                                                                                             
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        28 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        LOT 1 OF BLK 11 IN L T & COS                                                                                        
        S/D                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    830  ****03311-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             830



          2017 Final Assmt # R 0930600              2000 0005         40.35         87.21  18.00                               
        DADE BERTHA L ESTATE                                  Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % LILLIAN L TAYLOR                                       1.21     2.08    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        2906 OXON PARK ST                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
        TEMPLE HILLS, MD  20748                                                                                             
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        28 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        LOT 1 OF BLK 11 IN L T & COS                                                                                        
        S/D                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    838  ****03311-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             838
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0934100              2000 0005         41.36         88.33  18.00                               
        DADE BERTHA L ESTATE                                  Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % LILLIAN L TAYLOR                                       1.24     2.13    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        2906 OXON PARK ST                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
        TEMPLE HILLS, MD  20748                                                                                             
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        28 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        ** (LEGAL CONT. NEXT PAGE)                                                                                          

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   38
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
        LOT 1 OF BLK 11 IN L T & COS                                                                                        
        S/D                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    845  ****03345-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             845
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0935200              3500 0005         70.59        119.92  18.00                               
        RANDOLPH ARTHUR                                       Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        10345 BAYLOR AVE                                         2.12     3.64    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        HASTINGS, FL  32145                                                                   STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        28 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        BLK 26 IN L T & COS S/D.                                16.00                                                       
        EX: E1/2 OF LOT 1  EX: S25' OF                                                                                      
        E1/2 OF LOT 2 OF BLK 26                                                                                             
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    888  ****03345-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             888
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0934500              1000 0005         20.52         65.77  18.00                               
        GROUND UP LLC                                         Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        935 N BENEVA RD                                           .62     1.06    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        SUITE 609-17                                                                          STARKE, FL  32091             
        SARASOTA, FL  34232                                                                                                 
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        28 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        E1/2 OF LOT 1 & S25' OF E1/2                                                                                        
        OF LOT 2 BLK 26 LT & CO'S S/D                                                                                       
                                                                                                                            



                                                                                                                            
    846  ****03345-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             846
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0935300              1000 0005         20.16         65.37  18.00                               
        GROUND UP LLC                                         Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        935 N BENEVA RD                                           .60     1.04    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        SUITE 609-17                                                                          STARKE, FL  32091             
        SARASOTA, FL  34232                                                                                                 
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        28 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        E1/2 OF LOT 1 & S25' OF E1/2                                                                                        
        OF LOT 2 BLK 26 LT & CO'S S/D                                                                                       
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    853  ****03345-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             853
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0938800              1000 0005         20.67         65.95  18.00                               
        GROUND UP LLC                                         Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        935 N BENEVA RD                                           .62     1.06    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        SUITE 609-17                                                                          STARKE, FL  32091             
        SARASOTA, FL  34232                                                                                                 

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   39
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        28 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        E1/2 OF LOT 1 & S25' OF E1/2                                                                                        
        OF LOT 2 BLK 26 LT & CO'S S/D                                                                                       
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    813  ****03345-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             813
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0940600              1000 0005         20.74         66.06  18.00                               
        GROUND UP LLC                                         Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        935 N BENEVA RD                                           .62     1.07    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        SUITE 609-17                                                                          STARKE, FL  32091             
        SARASOTA, FL  34232                                                                                                 
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        28 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        E1/2 OF LOT 1 & S25' OF E1/2                                                                                        
        OF LOT 2 BLK 26 LT & CO'S S/D                                                                                       
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    892  ****03353-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             892
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0935400              1000 0005         20.52         65.77  18.00                               
        WILLIAMS DIVETA L                                     Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        922 FLORIDA ST                                            .62     1.06    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        28 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        N50' OF E1/2 OF LOT 2 BLK 28                            16.00                                                       
        LT & COS S/D                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                            



                                                                                                                            
    849  ****03353-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             849
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0936200              1000 0005         20.16         65.37  18.00                               
        WILLIAMS DIVETA L                                     Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        922 FLORIDA ST                                            .60     1.04    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        28 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        N50' OF E1/2 OF LOT 2 BLK 28                            16.00                                                       
        LT & COS S/D                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    854  ****03353-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             854
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0939700              1000 0005         20.67         65.95  18.00                               
        WILLIAMS DIVETA L                                     Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        922 FLORIDA ST                                            .62     1.06    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   40
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
        28 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        N50' OF E1/2 OF LOT 2 BLK 28                            16.00                                                       
        LT & COS S/D                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    818  ****03353-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             818
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0941500              1000 0005         20.74         66.06  18.00                               
        WILLIAMS DIVETA L                                     Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        922 FLORIDA ST                                            .62     1.07    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        28 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        N50' OF E1/2 OF LOT 2 BLK 28                            16.00                                                       
        LT & COS S/D                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    685  ****03353-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             685
          2020 Final Assmt # R 0945900              1000 0005         20.57         72.70  18.00                               
        WILLIAMS DIVETA L                                     Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        922 FLORIDA ST                                            .62     1.06    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        28 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        N50' OF E1/2 OF LOT 2 BLK 28                            22.00                                                       
        LT & COS S/D                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    898  ****03389-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             898
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0939400              1000 0005         20.52         65.77  18.00                               



        REID TERACENA                                         Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        707 FLORIDA ST                                            .62     1.06    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091-2323                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        28 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        LOT 3 OF BLK 44 IN L T & COS                            16.00                                                       
        S/D                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    854  ****03389-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             854
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0940000              1000 0005         20.16         65.37  18.00                               
        REID TERACENA                                         Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        707 FLORIDA ST                                            .60     1.04    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091-2323                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        28 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        LOT 3 OF BLK 44 IN L T & COS                            16.00                                                       
        ** (LEGAL CONT. NEXT PAGE)                                                                                          

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   41
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
        S/D                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    862  ****03389-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             862
          2018 Final Assmt # R 0943500              1000 0005         20.67         65.95  18.00                               
        REID TERACENA                                         Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        707 FLORIDA ST                                            .62     1.06    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091-2323                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        28 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        LOT 3 OF BLK 44 IN L T & COS                            16.00                                                       
        S/D                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    823  ****03389-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             823
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0945300              1000 0005         20.74         66.06  18.00                               
        REID TERACENA                                         Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        707 FLORIDA ST                                            .62     1.07    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091-2323                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        28 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        LOT 3 OF BLK 44 IN L T & COS                            16.00                                                       
        S/D                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    689  ****03389-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             689
          2020 Final Assmt # R 0949700              1000 0005         20.57         72.70  18.00                               
        REID TERACENA                                         Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        707 FLORIDA ST                                            .62     1.06    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                



        STARKE, FL  32091-2323                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        28 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        LOT 3 OF BLK 44 IN L T & COS                            22.00                                                       
        S/D                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    871  ****03486-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             871
          2017 Final Assmt # R 0949400              4500 0005         90.76        141.72  18.00                               
        TYSON JESSIE BELL                                     Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % ELAINE ASKINS                                          2.72     4.67    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        1500 LOCELIE DR                                                                       STARKE, FL  32091             
        FT WASHINGTON, MD  20744                                                                                            
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        28 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        LOTS 4,6,7 & 11 & FRACL LOTS                                                                                        
        8 & 9 BLK 21 L T & COS ADD                                                                                          
        ** (LEGAL CONT. NEXT PAGE)                                                                                          

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   42
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    838  ****03486-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             838
          2019 Final Assmt # R 0954400              4500 0005         93.34        144.58  18.00                               
        TYSON JESSIE BELL (DECEASED)                          Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % ELAINE ASKINS                                          2.80     4.81    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        1500 LOCELIE DR                                                                       STARKE, FL  32091             
        FT WASHINGTON, MD  20744                                                                                            
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        28 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        LOTS 4,6,7 & 11 & FRACL LOTS                                                                                        
        8 & 9 BLK 21 L T & COS ADD                                                                                          
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    942  ****03973-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             942
          2016 Final Assmt # R 0999800              2250 0005         46.18         93.52  18.00                               
        SYLVAIN FRANCIUS                                      Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        3691 NW 21ST ST                                          1.39     2.38    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        APT #109                                                                              STARKE, FL  32091             
        LAUDERDALE LAKES, FL  33311                                                                                         
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        29 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        COM AT SE COR OF NE1/4 OF                                                                                           
        NW1/4 & RUN W 210FT, N 110FT                                                                                        
        FOR A POB, RUN W 50FT, N                                                                                            
        100FT, E 50FT, S 100FT TO POB                                                                                       
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    899  ****03973-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             899



          2017 Final Assmt # R 1000500              2250 0005         45.38         92.65  18.00                               
        SYLVAIN FRANCIUS                                      Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        3691 NW 21ST ST                                          1.36     2.34    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        APT #109                                                                              STARKE, FL  32091             
        LAUDERDALE LAKES, FL  33311                                                                                         
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        29 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        COM AT SE COR OF NE1/4 OF                                                                                           
        NW1/4 & RUN W 210FT, N 110FT                                                                                        
        FOR A POB, RUN W 50FT, N                                                                                            
        100FT, E 50FT, S 100FT TO POB                                                                                       

                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   43
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
    906  ****03973-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             906
          2018 Final Assmt # R 1003600              2250 0005         46.54         93.94  18.00                               
        SYLVAIN FRANCIUS                                      Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        3691 NW 21ST ST                                          1.40     2.40    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        APT #109                                                                              STARKE, FL  32091             
        LAUDERDALE LAKES, FL  33311                                                                                         
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        29 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        COM AT SE COR OF NE1/4 OF                                                                                           
        NW1/4 & RUN W 210FT, N 110FT                                                                                        
        FOR A POB, RUN W 50FT, N                                                                                            
        100FT, E 50FT, S 100FT TO POB                                                                                       
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    867  ****03973-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             867
          2019 Final Assmt # R 1005200              2250 0005         46.66         94.09  18.00                               
        SYLVAIN FRANCIUS                                      Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        3691 NW 21ST ST                                          1.40     2.40    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        APT #109                                                                              STARKE, FL  32091             
        LAUDERDALE LAKES, FL  33311                                                                                         
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        29 6S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        COM AT SE COR OF NE1/4 OF                                                                                           
        NW1/4 & RUN W 210FT, N 110FT                                                                                        
        FOR A POB, RUN W 50FT, N                                                                                            
        100FT, E 50FT, S 100FT TO POB                                                                                       
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    720  ****03973-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             720
          2020 Final Assmt # R 1009500              2250 0005         46.29        100.51  18.00                               
        SYLVAIN FRANCIUS                                      Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        3691 NW 21ST ST                                          1.39     2.38    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        APT #109                                                                              STARKE, FL  32091             
        LAUDERDALE LAKES, FL  33311                                                                                         
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        29 6S 22                                                22.00                                                       
        COM AT SE COR OF NE1/4 OF                                                                                           



        NW1/4 & RUN W 210FT, N 110FT                                                                                        
        FOR A POB, RUN W 50FT, N                                                                                            
        100FT, E 50FT, S 100FT TO POB                                                                                       

                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   44
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
   1005  ****04369-A-00303                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1005
          2016 Final Assmt # R 1065900               450 0005          9.23         53.56  18.00                               
        RANDOLPH PAULINE                                      Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        15565 SE CR 100A                                          .28      .48    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091-8042                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        33 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        THAT PART OF 30' PLATTED ST                             16.00                                                       
        BNDED ON S BY POWELL ST, BNDED                                                                                      
        ON N BY WILSON RD, BNDED ON E                                                                                       
        BLK 1 OF J M JOHNS S/D, BNDED                                                                                       
        ON W BY BLKS 2 & 3 J M JOHNS                                                                                        
        S/D.                                                                                                                
        EX: THAT PORT LYING SLY OF E                                                                                        
        PROLONGATION OF C/L OF PLATTED                                                                                      
        ALLEY (PAT RAY STREET) & N ON                                                                                       
        NLY R/W POWELL ST.                                                                                                  
        EX: E1/2 OF 30' PLATTED STREET                                                                                      
        LYING N OF W PROLONGATION OF W                                                                                      
        BNDY OF LOT 3 BLK 1 & S OF SLY                                                                                      
        BNDY OF R/W WILSON RD.                                                                                              
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    959  ****04369-A-00303                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             959
          2017 Final Assmt # R 1066200               450 0005          9.07         53.38  18.00                               
        RANDOLPH PAULINE                                      Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        15565 SE CR 100A                                          .27      .47    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091-8042                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        33 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        THAT PART OF 30' PLATTED ST                             16.00                                                       
        BNDED ON S BY POWELL ST, BNDED                                                                                      
        ON N BY WILSON RD, BNDED ON E                                                                                       
        BLK 1 OF J M JOHNS S/D, BNDED                                                                                       
        ON W BY BLKS 2 & 3 J M JOHNS                                                                                        
        S/D.                                                                                                                
        EX: THAT PORT LYING SLY OF E                                                                                        
        PROLONGATION OF C/L OF PLATTED                                                                                      
        ALLEY (PAT RAY STREET) & N ON                                                                                       
        NLY R/W POWELL ST.                                                                                                  
        EX: E1/2 OF 30' PLATTED STREET                                                                                      
        LYING N OF W PROLONGATION OF W                                                                                      
        BNDY OF LOT 3 BLK 1 & S OF SLY                                                                                      
        BNDY OF R/W WILSON RD.                                                                                              

                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS



      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   45
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
    957  ****04369-A-00303                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             957
          2018 Final Assmt # R 1069800               450 0005          9.31         53.67  18.00                               
        RANDOLPH PAULINE                                      Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        15565 SE CR 100A                                          .28      .48    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091-8042                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        33 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        THAT PART OF 30' PLATTED ST                             16.00                                                       
        BNDED ON S BY POWELL ST, BNDED                                                                                      
        ON N BY WILSON RD, BNDED ON E                                                                                       
        BLK 1 OF J M JOHNS S/D, BNDED                                                                                       
        ON W BY BLKS 2 & 3 J M JOHNS                                                                                        
        S/D.                                                                                                                
        EX: THAT PORT LYING SLY OF E                                                                                        
        PROLONGATION OF C/L OF PLATTED                                                                                      
        ALLEY (PAT RAY STREET) & N ON                                                                                       
        NLY R/W POWELL ST.                                                                                                  
        EX: E1/2 OF 30' PLATTED STREET                                                                                      
        LYING N OF W PROLONGATION OF W                                                                                      
        BNDY OF LOT 3 BLK 1 & S OF SLY                                                                                      
        BNDY OF R/W WILSON RD.                                                                                              
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    920  ****04369-A-00303                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             920
          2019 Final Assmt # R 1071600               450 0005          9.33         53.72  18.00                               
        RANDOLPH PAULINE                                      Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        15565 SE CR 100A                                          .28      .48    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091-8042                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        33 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        THAT PART OF 30' PLATTED ST                             16.00                                                       
        BNDED ON S BY POWELL ST, BNDED                                                                                      
        ON N BY WILSON RD, BNDED ON E                                                                                       
        BLK 1 OF J M JOHNS S/D, BNDED                                                                                       
        ON W BY BLKS 2 & 3 J M JOHNS                                                                                        
        S/D.                                                                                                                
        EX: THAT PORT LYING SLY OF E                                                                                        
        PROLONGATION OF C/L OF PLATTED                                                                                      
        ALLEY (PAT RAY STREET) & N ON                                                                                       
        NLY R/W POWELL ST.                                                                                                  
        EX: E1/2 OF 30' PLATTED STREET                                                                                      
        LYING N OF W PROLONGATION OF W                                                                                      
        BNDY OF LOT 3 BLK 1 & S OF SLY                                                                                      
        BNDY OF R/W WILSON RD.                                                                                              

                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   46
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               



          Description of Property                                                                                           
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

    763  ****04369-A-00303                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             763
          2020 Final Assmt # R 1075900               450 0005          9.26         60.47  18.00                               
        RANDOLPH PAULINE                                      Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        15565 SE CR 100A                                          .28      .48    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091-8042                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        33 6S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        THAT PART OF 30' PLATTED ST                             22.00                                                       
        BNDED ON S BY POWELL ST, BNDED                                                                                      
        ON N BY WILSON RD, BNDED ON E                                                                                       
        BLK 1 OF J M JOHNS S/D, BNDED                                                                                       
        ON W BY BLKS 2 & 3 J M JOHNS                                                                                        
        S/D.                                                                                                                
        EX: THAT PORT LYING SLY OF E                                                                                        
        PROLONGATION OF C/L OF PLATTED                                                                                      
        ALLEY (PAT RAY STREET) & N ON                                                                                       
        NLY R/W POWELL ST.                                                                                                  
        EX: E1/2 OF 30' PLATTED STREET                                                                                      
        LYING N OF W PROLONGATION OF W                                                                                      
        BNDY OF LOT 3 BLK 1 & S OF SLY                                                                                      
        BNDY OF R/W WILSON RD.                                                                                              
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
   1009  ****04699-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1009
          2018 Final Assmt # R 1148700  HX             0 0006         75.00        124.71  18.00                               
        TATE TRACY                       25000                 Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        13837 SE 43RD PL                                         2.25     3.86    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        ORB-1240 P-0223        1.24 AC                        OnlineTS                                                      
        5 7S 22                                                 16.00                                                       
        COM NE COR OF SW1/4 OF NE1/4.                                                                                       
        S0*13'38"E 529.64' TO POB. RUN                                                                                      
        S0*13'38"E 296.63' TO N EDGE                                                                                        
        RD, N84*26'50"W 207.10', RUN                                                                                        
        N09*15'38"E 295.78', THENCE                                                                                         
        S84*26'50"E 158.17' TO POB.                                                                                         
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    821  ****04699-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             821
          2020 Final Assmt # R 1155000  HX             0 0006         75.00        131.56  18.00                               
        TATE TRACY                       25000                 Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        13837 SE 43RD PL                                         2.25     3.86    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        ORB-1240 P-0223        1.24 AC                        OnlineTS                                                      

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   47
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
        5 7S 22                                                 22.00                                                       
        COM NE COR OF SW1/4 OF NE1/4.                                                                                       
        S0*13'38"E 529.64' TO POB. RUN                                                                                      
        S0*13'38"E 296.63' TO N EDGE                                                                                        
        RD, N84*26'50"W 207.10', RUN                                                                                        
        N09*15'38"E 295.78', THENCE                                                                                         
        S84*26'50"E 158.17' TO POB.                                                                                         
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
   1096  ****04801-0-00400                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1096
          2016 Final Assmt # R 1172900               250 0006          4.10         48.00  18.00                               
        WAGGONER MARION L (DEC)                               Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % DONNA SUE SELLERS                                       .12      .21    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        21931 NW SR 16                                                                        STARKE, FL  32091             
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                                                   
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        ORB-     P-             .05 AC                          16.00                                                       
        10 7S 22                                                                                                            
        COM NE COR OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4                                                                                        
        OF NW1/4. S00*18'24"W 230.10'                                                                                       
        TO POB. S00*18'24"W 119.52' TO                                                                                      
        E R/W SR-100, RUN N18*03'34"W                                                                                       
        111.90', N69*36'48"E 37.69' TO                                                                                      
        POB. BEING .05 ACRES.                                                                                               
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
   1051  ****04801-0-00400                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1051
          2017 Final Assmt # R 1173100               250 0006          4.01         47.91  18.00                               
        WAGGONER MARION L (DEC)                               Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % DONNA SUE SELLERS                                       .12      .21    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        21931 NW SR 16                                                                        STARKE, FL  32091             
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                                                   
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        ORB-     P-             .05 AC                          16.00                                                       
        10 7S 22                                                                                                            
        COM NE COR OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4                                                                                        
        OF NW1/4. S00*18'24"W 230.10'                                                                                       
        TO POB. S00*18'24"W 119.52' TO                                                                                      
        E R/W SR-100, RUN N18*03'34"W                                                                                       
        111.90', N69*36'48"E 37.69' TO                                                                                      
        POB. BEING .05 ACRES.                                                                                               

                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   48
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
   1031  ****04801-0-00400                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1031
          2018 Final Assmt # R 1176900               250 0006          3.96         47.88  18.00                               
        WAGGONER MARION L (DEC)                               Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % DONNA SUE SELLERS                                       .12      .20    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        21931 NW SR 16                                                                        STARKE, FL  32091             
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                                                   



                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        ORB-     P-             .05 AC                          16.00                                                       
        10 7S 22                                                                                                            
        COM NE COR OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4                                                                                        
        OF NW1/4. S00*18'24"W 230.10'                                                                                       
        TO POB. S00*18'24"W 119.52' TO                                                                                      
        E R/W SR-100, RUN N18*03'34"W                                                                                       
        111.90', N69*36'48"E 37.69' TO                                                                                      
        POB. BEING .05 ACRES.                                                                                               
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    990  ****04801-0-00400                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             990
          2019 Final Assmt # R 1179100               250 0006          3.92         47.87  18.00                               
        WAGGONER MARION L (DEC)                               Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % DONNA SUE SELLERS                                       .12      .20    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        21931 NW SR 16                                                                        STARKE, FL  32091             
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                                                   
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        ORB-     P-             .05 AC                          16.00                                                       
        10 7S 22                                                                                                            
        COM NE COR OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4                                                                                        
        OF NW1/4. S00*18'24"W 230.10'                                                                                       
        TO POB. S00*18'24"W 119.52' TO                                                                                      
        E R/W SR-100, RUN N18*03'34"W                                                                                       
        111.90', N69*36'48"E 37.69' TO                                                                                      
        POB. BEING .05 ACRES.                                                                                               
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    844  ****04801-0-00400                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             844
          2020 Final Assmt # R 1183200               250 0006          3.87         54.64  18.00                               
        WAGGONER MARION L (DEC)                               Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % DONNA SUE SELLERS                                       .12      .20    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        21931 NW SR 16                                                                        STARKE, FL  32091             
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                                                   
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        ORB-     P-             .05 AC                          22.00                                                       
        10 7S 22                                                                                                            
        COM NE COR OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4                                                                                        
        OF NW1/4. S00*18'24"W 230.10'                                                                                       
        TO POB. S00*18'24"W 119.52' TO                                                                                      
        ** (LEGAL CONT. NEXT PAGE)                                                                                          

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   49
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
        E R/W SR-100, RUN N18*03'34"W                                                                                       
        111.90', N69*36'48"E 37.69' TO                                                                                      
        POB. BEING .05 ACRES.                                                                                               
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
   1129  ****04900-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1129



          2016 Final Assmt # R 1201500               500 0002          8.36         52.61  18.00                               
        WADSWORTH WALDEN B EST                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1333 OAK RIDGE RD                                         .25      .43    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        BAXLEY, GA  31513-7136                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        19 7S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        E 346' OF SW1/4 OF SE1/4 OF                             16.00                                                       
        SE1/4 EX LOTS SOLD                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
   1061  ****04900-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1061
          2018 Final Assmt # R 1205500               500 0002          8.16         52.42  18.00                               
        WADSWORTH WALDEN B EST                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1333 OAK RIDGE RD                                         .24      .42    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        BAXLEY, GA  31513-7136                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        19 7S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        E 346' OF SW1/4 OF SE1/4 OF                             16.00                                                       
        SE1/4 EX LOTS SOLD                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
   1026  ****04900-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1026
          2019 Final Assmt # R 1207900               500 0002          8.21         52.51  18.00                               
        WADSWORTH WALDEN B EST                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1333 OAK RIDGE RD                                         .25      .42    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        BAXLEY, GA  31513-7136                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        19 7S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        E 346' OF SW1/4 OF SE1/4 OF                             16.00                                                       
        SE1/4 EX LOTS SOLD                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    873  ****04900-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             873
          2020 Final Assmt # R 1212200               500 0002          8.24         59.36  18.00                               
        WADSWORTH WALDEN B EST                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        1333 OAK RIDGE RD                                         .25      .42    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        BAXLEY, GA  31513-7136                                                                STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        19 7S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        E 346' OF SW1/4 OF SE1/4 OF                             22.00                                                       
        ** (LEGAL CONT. NEXT PAGE)                                                                                          

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   50
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
        SE1/4 EX LOTS SOLD                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
   1222  ****05477-0-00103                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1222
          2016 Final Assmt # R 1321000              3815 0004         62.15        110.78  18.00                               
        COSTELLO JANE YOUNG (TRUST)                           Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               



        7089 IMMOKALEE RD                                        1.86     3.20    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        KEYSTONE HEIGHTS, FL                                                                  STARKE, FL  32091             
                            32656-9513                                                                                      
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        13 8S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        1/5TH INT IN LOT 1 OF                                                                                               
        LAKEVIEW S/D                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
   1171  ****05477-0-00103                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1171
          2017 Final Assmt # R 1320900              3542 0004         56.40        104.56  18.00                               
        COSTELLO JANE YOUNG (TRUST)                           Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        7089 IMMOKALEE RD                                        1.69     2.90    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        KEYSTONE HEIGHTS, FL                                                                  STARKE, FL  32091             
                            32656-9513                                                                                      
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        13 8S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        1/5TH INT IN LOT 1 OF                                                                                               
        LAKEVIEW S/D                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
   1135  ****05477-0-00103                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1135
          2019 Final Assmt # R 1327500              3542 0004         55.00        103.11  18.00                               
        COSTELLO JANE YOUNG (TRUST)                           Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        7089 IMMOKALEE RD                                        1.65     2.83    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        KEYSTONE HEIGHTS, FL                                                                  STARKE, FL  32091             
                            32656-9513                                                                                      
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        13 8S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        1/5TH INT IN LOT 1 OF                                                                                               
        LAKEVIEW S/D                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    945  ****05477-0-00103                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             945
          2020 Final Assmt # R 1331800              3542 0004         54.34        109.22  18.00                               
        COSTELLO JANE YOUNG (TRUST)                           Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        7089 IMMOKALEE RD                                        1.63     2.80    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        KEYSTONE HEIGHTS, FL                                                                  STARKE, FL  32091             
                            32656-9513                                                                                      
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   51
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
        13 8S 22                                                22.00                                                       
        1/5TH INT IN LOT 1 OF                                                                                               
        LAKEVIEW S/D                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
   1223  ****05477-0-00104                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1223
          2016 Final Assmt # R 1321100              3815 0004         62.15        110.78  18.00                               



        COSTELLO BILL E ESTATE                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        7089 IMMOKALEE RD                                        1.86     3.20    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        KEYSTONE HEIGHTS, FL                                                                  STARKE, FL  32091             
                            32656-9513                                                                                      
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        13 8S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        1/5TH INT IN LOT 1 OF                                                                                               
        LAKEVIEW S/D                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
   1172  ****05477-0-00104                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1172
          2017 Final Assmt # R 1321000              3542 0004         56.40        104.56  18.00                               
        COSTELLO BILL E ESTATE                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        7089 IMMOKALEE RD                                        1.69     2.90    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        KEYSTONE HEIGHTS, FL                                                                  STARKE, FL  32091             
                            32656-9513                                                                                      
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        13 8S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        1/5TH INT IN LOT 1 OF                                                                                               
        LAKEVIEW S/D                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
   1146  ****05477-0-00104                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1146
          2018 Final Assmt # R 1325100              3542 0004         55.53        103.66  18.00                               
        COSTELLO BILL E ESTATE                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        7089 IMMOKALEE RD                                        1.67     2.86    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        KEYSTONE HEIGHTS, FL                                                                  STARKE, FL  32091             
                            32656-9513                                                                                      
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        13 8S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        1/5TH INT IN LOT 1 OF                                                                                               
        LAKEVIEW S/D                                                                                                        

                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   52
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
   1136  ****05477-0-00104                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1136
          2019 Final Assmt # R 1327600              3542 0004         55.00        103.11  18.00                               
        COSTELLO BILL E ESTATE                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        7089 IMMOKALEE RD                                        1.65     2.83    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        KEYSTONE HEIGHTS, FL                                                                  STARKE, FL  32091             
                            32656-9513                                                                                      
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        13 8S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        1/5TH INT IN LOT 1 OF                                                                                               
        LAKEVIEW S/D                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    946  ****05477-0-00104                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             946
          2020 Final Assmt # R 1331900              3542 0004         54.34        109.22  18.00                               
        COSTELLO BILL E ESTATE                                Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        7089 IMMOKALEE RD                                        1.63     2.80    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                



        KEYSTONE HEIGHTS, FL                                                                  STARKE, FL  32091             
                            32656-9513                                                                                      
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        13 8S 22                                                22.00                                                       
        1/5TH INT IN LOT 1 OF                                                                                               
        LAKEVIEW S/D                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
   1210  ****06013-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1210
          2019 Final Assmt # R 1434000               500 0006          7.83         52.09  18.00                               
        BYRD GABE & REBECCA SMITH                             Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        %ROBERT SMITH & CAREATHA WILLI                            .23      .40    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        1049 SE OLD COUNTY CAMP RD                                                            STARKE, FL  32091             
        MADISON, FL  32340                                                                                                  
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        25 8S 22                                                16.00                                                       
        S1/2 OF NW1/4 OF NW1/4 EX                                                                                           
        ABOUT 11A ON E END & 2A IN SW                                                                                       
        COR OF N1/2 OF NW1/4 OF NW1/4                                                                                       
        EX: PARCELS SOLD                                                                                                    
        *****BALANCE SHOULD BE APPROX                                                                                       
        104' E&W M/L BY 208' N&S M/L                                                                                        
        IN SW COR OF S1/2 OF NW1/4 OF                                                                                       
        NW1/4.*******                                                                                                       

                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   53
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
    995  ****06013-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             995
          2020 Final Assmt # R 1438500               500 0006          7.74         58.82  18.00                               
        BYRD GABE & REBECCA SMITH                             Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        %ROBERT SMITH & CAREATHA WILLI                            .23      .40    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        1049 SE OLD COUNTY CAMP RD                                                            STARKE, FL  32091             
        MADISON, FL  32340                                                                                                  
                                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        25 8S 22                                                22.00                                                       
        S1/2 OF NW1/4 OF NW1/4 EX                                                                                           
        ABOUT 11A ON E END & 2A IN SW                                                                                       
        COR OF N1/2 OF NW1/4 OF NW1/4                                                                                       
        EX: PARCELS SOLD                                                                                                    
        *****BALANCE SHOULD BE APPROX                                                                                       
        104' E&W M/L BY 208' N&S M/L                                                                                        
        IN SW COR OF S1/2 OF NW1/4 OF                                                                                       
        NW1/4.*******                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
   1311  ****06016-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1311
          2016 Final Assmt # R 1426800               300 0006          4.91         48.88  18.00                               
        AAMES CAPITAL CORPORATION                             Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % AAMES HOME LOAN                                         .15      .25    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        350 S GRAND AVE                                                                       STARKE, FL  32091             
        43RD FLOOR                                                                                                          



        LOS ANGELES, CA  90071                                OnlineTS                                                      
                                                                16.00                                                       
        ORB-0830 P-0392         .06 AC                                                                                      
        25 8S 22                                                                                                            
        COM NE COR OF NW1/4 OF NW1/4.                                                                                       
        S330', S122' TO POB. RUN S100'                                                                                      
        W50', N100', E50' TO POB.                                                                                           
        EX: PORTION LYING IN R/W BEING                                                                                      
        .05 ACRE PER SURVEY.  SEE FILE                                                                                      
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
   1254  ****06016-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1254
          2017 Final Assmt # R 1426600               300 0006          4.81         48.77  18.00                               
        AAMES CAPITAL CORPORATION                             Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % AAMES HOME LOAN                                         .14      .25    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        350 S GRAND AVE                                                                       STARKE, FL  32091             
        43RD FLOOR                                                                                                          
        LOS ANGELES, CA  90071                                OnlineTS                                                      
                                                                16.00                                                       
        ORB-0830 P-0392         .06 AC                                                                                      
        25 8S 22                                                                                                            
        COM NE COR OF NW1/4 OF NW1/4.                                                                                       
        ** (LEGAL CONT. NEXT PAGE)                                                                                          

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   54
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
        S330', S122' TO POB. RUN S100'                                                                                      
        W50', N100', E50' TO POB.                                                                                           
        EX: PORTION LYING IN R/W BEING                                                                                      
        .05 ACRE PER SURVEY.  SEE FILE                                                                                      
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
   1220  ****06016-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1220
          2018 Final Assmt # R 1431800               300 0006          4.74         48.72  18.00                               
        AAMES CAPITAL CORPORATION                             Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % AAMES HOME LOAN                                         .14      .24    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        350 S GRAND AVE                                                                       STARKE, FL  32091             
        43RD FLOOR                                                                                                          
        LOS ANGELES, CA  90071                                OnlineTS                                                      
                                                                16.00                                                       
        ORB-0830 P-0392         .06 AC                                                                                      
        25 8S 22                                                                                                            
        COM NE COR OF NW1/4 OF NW1/4.                                                                                       
        S330', S122' TO POB. RUN S100'                                                                                      
        W50', N100', E50' TO POB.                                                                                           
        EX: PORTION LYING IN R/W BEING                                                                                      
        .05 ACRE PER SURVEY.  SEE FILE                                                                                      
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
   1215  ****06016-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1215



          2019 Final Assmt # R 1434800               300 0006          4.70         48.71  18.00                               
        AAMES CAPITAL CORPORATION                             Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % AAMES HOME LOAN                                         .14      .24    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        350 S GRAND AVE                                                                       STARKE, FL  32091             
        43RD FLOOR                                                                                                          
        LOS ANGELES, CA  90071                                OnlineTS                                                      
                                                                16.00                                                       
        ORB-0830 P-0392         .06 AC                                                                                      
        25 8S 22                                                                                                            
        COM NE COR OF NW1/4 OF NW1/4.                                                                                       
        S330', S122' TO POB. RUN S100'                                                                                      
        W50', N100', E50' TO POB.                                                                                           
        EX: PORTION LYING IN R/W BEING                                                                                      
        .05 ACRE PER SURVEY.  SEE FILE                                                                                      
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
    998  ****06016-0-00000                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999             998
          2020 Final Assmt # R 1439300               300 0006          4.64         55.47  18.00                               
        AAMES CAPITAL CORPORATION                             Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        % AAMES HOME LOAN                                         .14      .24    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        350 S GRAND AVE                                                                       STARKE, FL  32091             
        43RD FLOOR                                                                                                          

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   55
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
        LOS ANGELES, CA  90071                                OnlineTS                                                      
                                                                22.00                                                       
        ORB-0830 P-0392         .06 AC                                                                                      
        25 8S 22                                                                                                            
        COM NE COR OF NW1/4 OF NW1/4.                                                                                       
        S330', S122' TO POB. RUN S100'                                                                                      
        W50', N100', E50' TO POB.                                                                                           
        EX: PORTION LYING IN R/W BEING                                                                                      
        .05 ACRE PER SURVEY.  SEE FILE                                                                                      
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
   1316  ****06023-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1316
          2016 Final Assmt # R 1428800              5034 0006         82.61        132.91  18.00                               
        CARRINGTON JOSEPH D EST                               Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        GENERAL DELIVERY                                         2.48     4.25    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        25 8S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM AT SW COR OF NW1/4. N197'                           16.00                                                       
        TO POB. CONT N80', E80', S80',                                                                                      
        W80' TO POB.                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
   1263  ****06023-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1263
          2017 Final Assmt # R 1428600              5176 0006         83.11        133.45  18.00                               



        CARRINGTON JOSEPH D EST                               Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        GENERAL DELIVERY                                         2.49     4.28    27.57       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        25 8S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM AT SW COR OF NW1/4. N197'                           16.00                                                       
        TO POB. CONT N80', E80', S80',                                                                                      
        W80' TO POB.                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
   1227  ****06023-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1227
          2018 Final Assmt # R 1433800              5317 0006         84.09        134.54  18.00                               
        CARRINGTON JOSEPH D EST                               Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        GENERAL DELIVERY                                         2.52     4.33    27.60       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        25 8S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM AT SW COR OF NW1/4. N197'                           16.00                                                       
        TO POB. CONT N80', E80', S80',                                                                                      
        W80' TO POB.                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                            

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS
      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   56
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                                                                                                            
   1221  ****06023-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1221
          2019 Final Assmt # R 1436800              5459 0006         85.53        136.14  18.00                               
        CARRINGTON JOSEPH D EST                               Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        GENERAL DELIVERY                                         2.57     4.41    27.63       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        25 8S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM AT SW COR OF NW1/4. N197'                           16.00                                                       
        TO POB. CONT N80', E80', S80',                                                                                      
        W80' TO POB.                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                            
   1004  ****06023-0-00100                 ****                     Roll Amt     Cert.Amt       Buyer No. 9999            1004
          2020 Final Assmt # R 1441300              5648 0006         87.45        145.02  18.00                               
        CARRINGTON JOSEPH D EST                               Penalty     Comm      Adv       BRADFORD COUNTY               
        GENERAL DELIVERY                                         2.62     4.50    28.45       P O DRAWER 969                
        STARKE, FL  32091                                                                     STARKE, FL  32091             
                                                                                                                            
        25 8S 22                                              OnlineTS                                                      
        COM AT SW COR OF NW1/4. N197'                           22.00                                                       
        TO POB. CONT N80', E80', S80',                                                                                      
        W80' TO POB.                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                            

                                                  S T A T E   O F   F L O R I D A
                                                                                                   By: TERESA G. PHILLIPS



      LIST OF CERTIFICATES SOLD FOR TAXES IN THE COUNTY OF BRADFORD       ON THE  1ST DAY OF JUNE       2023      PAGE   57
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cert.#    Name/Address of Owner               Non-Exmpt Dist         Taxes/Expenses       Int  To Whom Sold           Cert.# 
          Account Number/Parcel Number        Asd Value                of Sale           Rate                               
          Description of Property                                                                                           

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                           For ALL :                                  ORIGINAL      PAYMENTS      REMAINING
                                           COUNTY-HELD      TAX ROLL AMOUNT            5,571.80
                                                            PENALTY                      167.05
                                                            ADVERTISING COSTS          4,968.25
                                                            TAX SALE COMMISSION          286.91
                                                            CERTIFICATE AMOUNT        14,062.01                     14,062.01
                                                            INTEREST                  10,903.53                     10,903.53
                                                            PURCHASE CHARGES                .00
                                                            REDEMPTION CHARGES         1,118.75                      1,118.75
                                                            ONLINE TAX SALE            3,068.00                      3,068.00
                                                            OTHER CHARGES                   .00
                                           INDIVIDUAL-HELD  TAX ROLL AMOUNT                 .00
                                                            PENALTY                         .00
                                                            ADVERTISING COSTS               .00
                                                            TAX SALE COMMISSION             .00
                                                            CERTIFICATE AMOUNT              .00
                                                            INTEREST                        .00
                                                            PURCHASE CHARGES                .00
                                                            REDEMPTION CHARGES              .00
                                                            ONLINE TAX SALE                 .00
                                                            OTHER CHARGES                   .00
                                           ALL              # CERTIFICATES                  179
                                                            TAX ROLL AMOUNT            5,571.80
                                                            PENALTY                      167.05
                                                            ADVERTISING COSTS          4,968.25
                                                            TAX SALE COMMISSION          286.91
                                                            CERTIFICATE AMOUNT        14,062.01                     14,062.01
                                                            INTEREST                  10,903.53                     10,903.53
                                                            PURCHASE CHARGES                .00
                                                            REDEMPTION CHARGES         1,118.75                      1,118.75
                                                            ONLINE TAX SALE            3,068.00                      3,068.00
                                                            OTHER CHARGES                   .00



Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET 
 
 
 
DATE:     9/21/2023   
    
AGENDA ITEM Used Fire Engine   
 
DEPARTMENT:    Fire Rescue  
 
PURPOSE: Replace aging fleet  
 
ASSOCIATED COST(S): $50,000 (Utilizing funds that were budgeted for grant match.  

All grants we have received have had the associated match 
waived).  

 
BUDGET LINE (G/L #): 111-54-526-64000-00 
  



Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET 
 
 
 
DATE:     September 21, 2023    
    
AGENDA ITEM Approval of Contract between Bradford County Board of 

County Commissioners and State of Florida Department of 
Health for Operation of the Bradford County Health 
Department, 23-24 Fiscal Year ($82,500) 

 
DEPARTMENT:    Finance 
 
PURPOSE: Bradford County Health Department Services 
 
ASSOCIATED COST(S): $82,500 
 
BUDGET LINE (G/L #): 001-20-563-81300-00; 001-20-563-81300-01 
  



CONTRACT BETWEEN
BRADFORD COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

AND
STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

FOR OPERATION OF THE
BRADFORD COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT

CONTRACT YEAR 2023-2024

This contract is made and entered into between the State of Florida, Department of Health
("State"), and the Bradford County Board of County Commissioners ("County"), through their
undersigned authorities, effective October 1 , 2023. State and County are jointly referred to as
the "parties".

RECITALS

A. Pursuant to Chapter 154, Florida Statutes, the intent of the legislature is to
"promote, protect, maintain, and improve the health and safety of all citizens and visitors of this
state through a system of coordinated county health department services."

B. County Health Departments were created throughout Florida to satisfy this
legislative intent through the "promotion of the public's health, the control and eradication of
preventable diseases, and the provision of primary health care for special populations."

C. Bradford County Health Department ('CHD') is one of the created County Health
Departments.

D. lt is necessary for the parties hereto to enter into this contract to ensure
coordination between the State and the County in the operation of the CHD.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, the
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. RECITALS The parties mutually agree that the foregoing recitals are true and correct
and incorporated herein by reference

2. TERM. The parties mutually agree that this contract shall be effective from October 1,
2023, through September 30,2024, or until a written contract replacing this contract is entered
into between the parties, whichever is later, unless this contract is otherwise terminated
according to the termination provisions outlined in paragraph 8. below.

3. SERVICES MAINTAINED BY THE CHD The parties mutually agree that the CHD shall
provide those services as outlined in Part lll of Attachment ll hereof, to maintain the following
three levels of service pursuant to section 154.01(2), Florida Statutes, as defined below:

a. "Environmental health services" are those services that are organized and operated to
protect the health of the general public by monitoring and regulating activities in the
environment that may contribute to the occurrence or transmission of disease. Environmental
health services shall be supported by available federal, state, and local funds and shall include

1



those services mandated on a state or federal level. Examples of environmental health
services include but are not limited to, food hygiene, safe drinking water supply, sewage, and
solid waste disposal, swimming pools, group care facilities, migrant labor camps, toxic material
control, radiological health, and occupational health.

b. "Communicable disease control services" are those services that protect the health of
the general public through the detection, control, and eradication of diseases that are
transmitted primarily by human beings. Communicable disease services shall be supported by
available federal, state, and local funds and shall include those services mandated on a state
or federal level. Such services include, but are not limited to, epidemiology, sexually
transmissible disease detection and control, HIV/AIDS, immunization, tuberculosis control, and
maintenance of vital statistics.

c. "Primary care services" are acute care and preventive services that are made available
to well and sick persons who are unable to obtain such services due to lack of income or other
barriers beyond their control. These services are provided to benefit individuals, improve the
collective health of the public, and prevent and control the spread of disease. Primary health
care services are provided at home, in group settings, or in clinics. These services shall be
supported by available federal, state, and local funds and shall include services mandated on
a state or federal level. Examples of primary health care services include but are not limited to
first contact acute care services; chronic disease detection and treatment; maternal and child
health services; family planning; nutrition; school health; supplemental food assistance for
women, infants, and children; home health; and dental services.

4. FUNDING. The parties further agree that funding for the CHD will be handled as follows:

a. The funding to be provided by the parties and any other sources is outlined in Part ll of
Attachment ll hereof. This funding will be used as shown in Part I of Attachment ll.

The State's appropriated responsibility (direct contribution excluding any state fees,
Medicaid contibutions, or any other funds not listed on the Schedule C) aS provided in
Attachment ll, Part ll is an amount not to exceed $1,300,292 (state cenerat
Revenue, State Funds, Other State Funds and Federal Funds listed on the Schedule C).

The State's obligation to pay underthis contract is contingent upon an annual
appropriation by the Legislature.

. The County's appropriated responsibility (direct contribution excluding any fees,
othercash, or local contributiont as provided in Attachment ll, Part ll is an amount
not to exceed $82,500 (amount listed under the "Board of County Commissioners
Annual Appropriations secfion of the revenue attachment).

b. Overall expenditures will not exceed available funding or budget authority, whichever is
less, (either the current year or from surplus trust funds) in any service category. Unless
requested otherwise, any surplus at the end of the term of this contract in the County Health
Department Trust Fund that is attributed to the CHD shall be carried fonrvard to the next contract
period.

2

i.



c. Either party may establish service fees as allowed by law to fund activities of the CHD.
Where applicable, such fees shall be automatically adjusted to at least the Medicaid fee
schedule.

d. Either party may increase or decrease funding of this contract during the term hereof by
notifying the other party in writing of the amount and purpose for the change in funding. lf the
State initiates the increase or decrease, the CHD will revise Attachment ll and send a copy of
the revised pages to the County and the State's Office of Budget and Revenue Management.
lf the County initiates the increase or decrease, the County shall notify the CHD in writing. The
CHD will then revise Attachment ll and send a copy of the revised pages to the State's Office
of Budget and Revenue Management.

e. The name and address of the official payee to whom payments shall be made is:

County Health Department Trust Fund
Bradford County Health Department
1801 North Temple Avenue
Starke, FL 3209'1

5. CHD DIRECTOR oTADMINISTRATOR. Both parties agree the director or administrator
of the CHD shall be a State employee or under contract with the State and will be under the
day-to-day direction of the State's Deputy Secretary for County Health Systems. The director
or administrator shall be selected bythe State with the concurrence of the County. The director
or administrator of the CHD shall ensure that non-categorical sources of funding are used to
fulfill public health priorities in the community and the Long-Range Program Plan.

6 ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES. The parties hereto agree that the
following standards should apply in the operation of the CHD:

a. The CHD and its personnel shall follow all State policies and procedures, except to the
extent permitted for the use of County purchasing procedures as outlined in subparagraph b.,
below. All CHD employees shall be State or State-contract personnel subject to State
personnel laws, rules, and procedures. Employees will report time in the Health Management
System compatible format by program component as specified by the State.

c. The CHD shall maintain books, records, and documents following the Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, and the requirements of federal or state law. These records shall be maintained as

3

b. The CHD shall comply with all applicable provisions of federal and state laws and
regulations relating to its operation with the exception that the use of County purchasing
procedures shall be allowed when it will result in a better price or service and no statewide
purchasing contract has been implemented for those goods or services. ln such cases, the
CHD director or administrator must sign a justification, therefore, and all County purchasing
procedures must be followed in their entirety, and such compliance shall be documented. Such
justification and compliance documentation shall be maintained by the CHD following the terms
of this contract. State procedures must be followed for all leases on facilities not enumerated
in Attachment lV.



required by the State's Policies and Procedures for Records Management and shall be open
for inspection at any time by the parties and the public, except for those records that are not
othenarise subject to disclosure as provided by law which is subject to the confidentiality
provisions of paragraphs 6.i. and 6.k., below. Books, records, and documents must be
adequate to allow the CHD to comply with the following reporting requirements:

The revenue and expenditure requirements in the Florida Accounting
lnformation Resource System; and

. The client registration and services reporting requirements of the minimum
data set as specified in the most current version of the Client lnformation
System/Health Management Component Pamphlet; and

t Financial procedures specified in the State's Accounting Procedures
Manuals, Accounting memoranda, and Comptroller's memoranda; and

The CHD is responsible for assuring that all contracts with service providers
include provisions that all subcontracted services be reported to the CHD in
a manner consistent with the client registration and service reporting
requirements of the minimum data set as specified in the Client lnformation
System/Health Management Component Pamphlet.

d. AII funds for the CHD shall be deposited in the County Health Department Trust Fund
maintained by the state treasurer. These funds shall be accounted for separately from funds
deposited for other CHDs and shall be used only for public health purposes in Bradford County.

e. That any surplus or deficit funds, including fees or accrued interest, remaining in the
County Health Department Trust Fund account at the end of the contract year shall be credited
or debited to the State or County, as appropriate, based on the funds contributed by each and
the expenditures incurred by each. Expenditures will be charged to the program accounts by
State and County based on the ratio of planned expenditures in this contract and funding from
all sources is credited to the program accounts by State and County. The equity share of any
surplus or deficit funds accruing to the State and County is determined each month and at the
contract year-end. Surplus funds may be applied toward the funding requirements of each
party in the following year. However, in each such case, all surplus funds, including fees and
accrued interest, shall remain in the trust fund until accounted for in a manner that clearly
illustrates the amount which has been credited to each party. The planned use of surplus funds
shall be reflected in Attachment ll, Part I of this contract, with special capital projects explained
in Attachment V.

4

f. There shall be no transfer of funds between the three levels of services without a contract
amendment unless the CHD director or administrator determines that an emergency exists
wherein a time delay would endanger the public's health and the State's Deputy Secretary for
County Health Systems have approved the transfer. The State's Deputy Secretary for County
Health Systems shall fonrard written evidence of this approval to the CHD within 30 days after
an emergency transfer.



g. The CHD may execute subcontracts for services necessary to enable the CHD to carry
out the programs specified in this contract. Any such subcontract shall include all
aforementioned audit and record-keeping requirements.

h. At the request of either party, an audit may be conducted by an independent certified
public accountant on the financial records of the CHD, and the results made available to the
parties within 180 days after the close of theCHDfiscal year. Thisauditwill follow requirements
contained in OMB CircularA-133, as revised, and may be in conjunction with audits performed
by the County government. lf audit exceptions are found, then the director or administrator of
the CHD will prepare a corrective action plan and a copy of that plan and monthly status reports
will be furnished to the contract managers for the parties.

i. The CHD shall not use or disclose any information concerning a recipient of services
except as allowed by federal or state law or policy.

j. The CHD shall retain all client records, financial records, supporting documents,
statistical records, and any other documents (including electronic storage media) pertinent to
this contract for five years after termination of this contract. lf an audit has been initiated and
audit findings have not been resolved at the end of five years, the records shall be retained
until the resolution of the audit findings.

k. The CHD shall maintain the confidentiality of all data, files, and records that are
confidential under the law or are otherwise exempted from disclosure as a public record under
Florida law. The CHD shall implement procedures to ensure the protection and confidentiality
of all such records and shall comply with sections 384.29,381 .004, 392.65, and 456.057,
Florida Statutes, and all other state and federal laws regarding confidentiality. All confidentiality
procedures implemented by the CHD shall be consistent with the State's lnformation Security
Policies, Protocols, and Procedures. The CHD shall further adhere to any amendments to the
State's security requirements and shall comply with any applicable professional standards of
practice concerning client confidentiality.

l. The CHD shall abide by all State policies and procedures, which by this reference are
incorporated herein as standards to be followed by the CHD.

m. The CHD shall establish a system through which applicants for services and current
clients may present grievances over denial, modification, or termination of services. The CHD
will advise applicants of the right to appeal a denial or exclusion from services, of failure to take
account of a client's choice of service, and right to a fair hearing to the final governing authority
of the CHD. Specific references to existing laws, rules, or program manuals are included in
Attachment I of this contract.

n. The CHD shall comply with the provisions contained in the Civil Rights Compliance and
Non-Discrimination Certificate, hereby incorporated into this contract as Attachment lll.

o. The CHD shall submit quarterly reports to the County that shall include at least the
following:

5



The DE385LI Contract Management Variance Report and the DE580L1
Analysis of Fund Equities Report; and

. A written explanation to the County of service variances reflected in the year-
end DE385Ll report if the variance exceeds or falls below 25 percent of the
planned expenditure amount for the contract year. However, if the amount
of the service-specific variance between actual and planned expenditures
does not exceed three percent of the total planned expenditures for the level
of service in which the type of service is included, a variance explanation is
not required. A copy of the written explanation shall be sent to the State's
Office of Budget and Revenue Management.

p. The dates for the submission of quarterly reports to the County shall be as follows unless
the generation and distribution of reports are delayed due to circumstances beyond the CHD's
control:

March 1,2024,forthe reporting period of October 1,2023, through
December 31, 2023; and

June 1,2024,fotthe reporting period of October 1,2023, through
March 3't, 2024; and

lt.

l. September 1,2024, forthe reporting period of October 1,2023
through June 30, 2024; and

lv December 1,2024, for the reporting period of October 1,2023
through September 30, 2024.

7. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT The parties mutually agree that

a. CHD facilities shall be provided as specified in Attachment lV to this contract and the
County shall own the facilities used by the CHD unless otherwise provided in Attachment lV.

b. The County shall ensure adequate fire and casualty insurance coverage for County-
owned CHD offices and buildings and all furnishings and equipment in CHD offices through
either a self-insurance program or insurance purchased by the County.

c. All vehicles will be transferred to the ownership of the County and registered as County
vehicles. The County shall ensure insurance coverage for these vehicles is available through
either a self-insurance program or insurance purchased by the County. All vehicles will be
used solely for CHD operations. Vehicles purchased through the County Health Department
Trust Fund shall be sold at fair market value when they are no longer needed by the CHD and
the proceeds returned to the County Health Department Trust Fund.

6



8. TERMINATION.

a. Termination at \Mll. This contract may be terminated by either party without cause upon
no less than 180 calendar days' notice in writing to the other party unless a lesser time is
mutually agreed upon in writing by both parties.

b. Termination Because of Lack of Funds. ln the event funds to finance this contract
become unavailable, either party may terminate this contract upon no less than 24 hours'
notice.

c. Termination for Breach. This contract may be terminated by either party for a material
breach of an obligation hereunder, upon no less than 30 days' notice. Waiver of a breach of
any provisions of this contract shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other breach and shall
not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this contract.

9. MISCEL NEOUS. The parties further agree

a. Availabilitv of Funds. lf this contract, any renewal hereof, or any term, performance, or
payment hereunder, extends beyond the CHD fiscal year beginning July 1 , 2024, it is agreed
that the performance and payment under this contract are contingent upon an annual
appropriation by the Legislature, under section 287.0582, Florida Statutes.

b. Contract Manaqers. The name and addresses of the contract managers for the parties
under this contract are as follows:

For the State:

Darlene Moran

For the County:

Scott Korneoav
Name Name

Busrnesq Maraser Countv Manaqer
Title Title

1801 North Temple Avenue 945 North Temple Avenue

Starke FL 32091 Starke, FL 32091
Address Address

(904\ 964-7732 (904) 966-6327
Telephone Telephone

lf different contract managers are designated after the execution of this contract, the name,
address, email address, and telephone number of the new representative shall be furnished in
writing to the other parties and attached to the originals of this contract.

c. Caotions. The captions and headings contained in this contract are for the convenience
of the parties only and do not in any way modify, amplify, or give additional notice of the
provisions hereof.

7



d. Notices. Any notices provided under this contract must be delivered by certified mail,
return receipt requested, in person with proof of delivery, or by email to the email address of
the respective party identified in Section 9.b., above.

ln WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this eight page contract, with its
attachments as referenced, including Attachment I (two pages), Attachment ll (six pages),
Attachment lll (one page), Attachment lV (one page), and Attachment V (one page), to be
executed by their undersigned officials as duly authorized effective the 1"t day of October 2023.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
FOR BRADFORD COUNTY

SIGNED BY:

NAME: Diane Andrews

TITLE: Chairwoman

ATTESTED TO:

SIGNED BY:

STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

SIGNED BY:

TITLE: State Surqeon G neral

SIGNED BY:

NAME: Amie Oodv. MPH. BSN

TITLE: CHD Administra tor

8

NAME: Joseph A. Ladapo. M.D.. Ph.D.

DATE: DATE:

NAME: Dennv Thompson

TITLE: Clerk of Court



ATTACHMENT I

BRADFORD COUNTY HEALTH OEPARTMENT

PROGRAM SPECIFIC REPORTING REQUIREMENTS AND PROGRAMS REQUIRING

COMPLIANCE WTH THE PROVISIONS OF SPECIFIC MANUALS

Some health servic€s must comply with specific program and reporting requirements in addition to the Personal Health
Coding Pamphlet (DHP 5G20), Environmental Health Coding Pamphlet (DHP 50-21) and FLAIR requirements because of
federal or state law, regulatjon or rule. lf a munty health department is funded to provide one of these services, it must
comply with the special reporling requirements for that service. The services and the reporting requirements are listed
below:

2

3

Service

Sexually Transmitted Disease
Program

Dental Health

Special Supplemental Nutrition
Program for Women, lnfants and
Children (including the WIC
Breastfeeding Peer Counseling
Program)

5. Family Planning

6. lmmunization

Periodic financial and programmatic reports as specified by the
program office.

Service documentation and monthly financial reports as specified in
DHM '150-24- and all federal, state and county requirements
detailed in program manuals and published procedures.

Requirements as specified in the 2007 Healthy Start Standards and
Guidelines and as specified by the Healthy Start Coalitions in
contract with each county health department.

Requirements as specified in Public Law 91-572, 42 U.S.C. 300, et
seq., 42 CFR part 59, subpart A, 45 CFR parts 74 & 92, 2 CFR 215
(OMB Circular A-110) OMB Circular A-102, F.S. 381.0051, F.A.C.
64F-7, F.A.C.64F-16, and F.A.C.64F-19. Requirements and
Guidanc€ as specifled in the Program Requirements for Title X
Funded Family Planning Projects (Title X Requirementsx2ol4) and
the Providing Quality Family Planning Services (QFP):
Recommendations of CDC and the U.S. Ofrlce ot Population Affairs
published on the Otfice of Population Affairs website. Programmatic
annual reports as specified by the program office as specified in the
annual programmatic Scope of Work for Family Planning and
Maternal Child Health Services, including the Family Planning
Annual Report (FPAR), and other minimum guidelines as specified
by the Policy Web Technical Assistance Guidelines.

Periodic reports as specified by the department pertaining to
immunization levels in kindergarten and/or seventh grade pursuant
to instructions contained in the lmmunization Guidelines-Florida
Schools, Childcare Facilities and Family Daycare Homes (DH Form
150$15) and Rule 64D-3.046, F.A.C. ln addition, periodic reports
as specified by the department pertaining to the
surveillance/investigation of reportable vaccine-preventable
diseases, adverse events, vacaine accountability, and assessment
of immunization

4

ATTACHMENT I (Continued)

Attachment_l - Page 1 of 11

Healthy StarU lmproved Pregnancy
Outcome

Reouirement

Requirements as specified in F.A.C.64D-3, F.S. 381 and F.S.384.



7. EnvironmentalHealth

8. HIV/AIDS Program

9. School Health Services

10. Tuberculosis

11

12. Refugee Health Program

'or the subsequent replacement if adopted during the contract period

levels as documented in Florida SHOTS and supported by CHD
Guidebook policies and technical assistanc€ guidance.

Requirements as specified in Environmental Health Programs
Manual 150-4* and DHP 50-2'l -

Requirements as specified in F.S.384.25 and F.A.C.64D-3.030
and 64D-3.031. Case reporting should be on Adult HIV/AIDS
Confidential Case Report CDC Form DH2139 and Pediatic
HIV/AIDS Confdential Case Report CDC Form DH2140.

Requirements as specified in F.A.C.64D-2 and 64D-3, F.S. 381 and
F.S. 384. Socio-demographic and risk data on persons tested for
HIV in CHD clinics should be reported on Lab Request DH Form
1628 in accordance with the Forms lnstruction Guide.
Requirements for the HIV/AIDS Patient Care programs are found in

the Patient Care Contract Administrative Guidelines.

Requirements as specified in the Florida School Health
Adminastrative Guidelines (May 2012). Requirements as specified
in F.S. 381.0056, F.S. 381.0057, F.S. 402.3026 and F.A.C. 64F6

Tuberculosis Program Requirements as specified in F.A.C. &D-3
and F.s. 392.

Carry out surveillance for reportable communic€ble and other acule
diseases, detect outbreaks, respond to individual cases of
reportable diseases, investigate outbreaks, and carry out
communication and quality assurance functions, as specified in
F.A.C. 64D-3, F.S. 381 F.S. 384 and the CHD Epidemiology Guide
to Surveillanc€ and lnvestigations.

Programmatic and financial requirements as specified by the
program offlce.

General Communicable Dasease
Conaol

Attachment_l - Page 2 of 11



ATTACHMENT II

BRADFORD COUNTY HEALTH OEPARTMENT

PART I. PLANNED USE OF COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TRUST FUND BALANCES

Estimated State
Share of CHD Trust
Fund Balance

Estimated County
Share of CHD Trust
Fund Balance Total

1. CHD Trust Fund Ending Balance 09/30/23 '198

-198

'1571606

-572024

15714O4

-5722222 Drawdown for Conlract Year
Octobe|I , 2023 to September 30, 2024

3. Special Capital Project use for Contract Year
October 1, 2023 to September 30, 2024

000

04 Balance Reserved for Contingency Fund
October 1 , 2023 to Sepiember 30, 2024

999582

Special Capital Projects are new construction or renovation projects and new furniture or equipment associated with these projects, and mobile health vans

999582

Attachment_ll_Part_l - Page 3 of 11



2. NON GENEBAI REVENUE . STATE

016010 TOBACCO STATE & COMMTINITY HEALTITY BABY

NON GENERAL BEVENUE TOTAI

r0,000

10,000

r0,000

10,000

1. GENEML BEVENIJE . SIATE

OT5O4O CIID . TB COMMUMTY PROGRAM

0160.() DENTAL SPECIAL TNITIATIVE PROJECTS

OT5O,{O FAMILY PLANNING GENERAI, REVENlJE

O15O4O PRJMARY CARE PROCRAM

OT5O4O RACIAL & ETHNIC DISPARITIES . CHD EXPENSES

OT5O4O SCHOOL HEAITH SEBVTCES

OT5O5O CHD GENERAL RE!'ENUE NON.CATEGORJCAL

GENEBAI NEVENI'E TOTAI

3,ofi)

6,934

34,836

8i,,538

52.m0

72,187

5r8,367

770,86r

3. FEDEBAL FI'NDS . STA1T

OO?O@ COMPRE}IENSIVE COMMIJMTY CATDIO . PIIBG

OO?O@ FAMILY PI,{NNING TITLE X . GRAN'T

OOTOOO HEAITH DISPARITIES GRANT CO!ID.Tg

OO?OOO PUBUC ELTH INTRASTRUCTUFJ & WORKFORCF,/CENTRAL 1

OOTOOO IMMUNZATION & VACCINES CHILDREN COVID 19 RESPON

0O70O0 IMMUN@-TION ACTION PLAN

OO?OOO MCH SPEC P&I SOCIAL DETERMINANTS HLTH COMM EDU

OOTOOO MCH SPECIAL PROJCT DENTAL

OOTOOO BASE COMMUNITY PRDPA.BDDNESS CAPABILITY

0T6075 SCEOOL HEALTH SERVICES

FEDEf,AL FT'NDS TOTAL

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3,000

6,934

34,835

83,538

52,000

72,187

5r8,367

770,461

3,000

6,93{

34,836

83.538

52,000

72,181

518,367

770,861

r0,000

10,000

32,413

30,288

50,r64

116,81r

871

4,930

r2,636

7,813

87,891

175,626

519,431

0

0

0

0

32,413

30,288

60,r64

116,811

8?r

{,930

r2,635

7,813

87,89r

116,625

519,431

32,413

30,244

50, r54

116,811

871

4930

12,635

7,813

8?,89r

l?5,625

519,431

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

4. FEES ASSESSED BY STATE OR FEDERAL RI,'I-ES . STATE

rEES ASSESSED BY STATE OR FEDERAL RI]LES TOTAI

?. AI-I,oCABI-E REIENUE . STATE:

6. OTEER CASE CONTBIBUTIONS . STATE:

O31OO5 GENERAL CLINIC RABIES SERVICES & DRUG PURCHASES

O9OOO1 DRAW DOWN FROM PUBLIC HEALTH LIMT

OTIIEN CASII CONIRIBUIION TOTAL

r5,802

r98

r6,000

15,802

198

16,000

t5.ao2

198

16,000

6. MEDICND . STAI'E/COUNIY:

OOTO57 FEDERALLY QUALIFIED I{EAITH CENTER FELS

OOI1.T8 FEDERALLY QUALTT'IED HEAITH CENTER FEES

OO 1 I 49 FEDERALLY QUALIFIED I{EAITH CENTER FEES

MEDICND TOTAI

68,671

36r.197

651,153

68.671

361, r97

22t,243

651,r53

68,671

36r,r9?

22t,246

66r.,163

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

rl

o

0

0

00

0

0

0

0

0

0

0 0AILOCABLE NEVENIJE TOTAI

Attachment_ll_Pa.t_l - Page 4 or l1

AITACHMENTtr

BRADFORD COUNTY IiEATTH DEPAITMENT

Psrt fl, Source. of CoafibutiqEs to Couity Heqlth Dopartmeut

Octobet 1, 2o2ti to Septeobc. 30, 2024

St{te CIID
T?urt E End

Totd CIID
Tru,et FIrnd

County
CiID

'I'rust Flrnd
Other



E. CYItsU, STATE CONIBIBI'TIONA NOT IN CED TBUST FI,INI) . STAIE

ADAP

PI{ARMACY DRUG PROGRAM

WIC PBOGRAM

BUREAU OF PUBLIC 1IEAITH I,ABORATORIES

IMMUNIZATIONS

OTEEB STATI CONTtsIBTIfiONS TMAL

r7,370

2,t20

697,896

3,19r

205,124

926,701

17,370

3,t20

697,896

3,191

205,124

926,70t

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

9, DIRECT IOCAL CONTRIBUTIONS . BCC/TAX DISTRIC"T

OO8OO5 CHD LOCAI, REVENUE & EXPENDITURES

DInECT COI'NTY CONTBIBIIUONS TOTAL

82,500

82,500

82,500

82,500

0

o

0

0

82,500

82,500

0

6,000

0

6,000

10. FEES ATTEORIZED BY COI'NTY OBDINANCE OB &&SOLUUON ' COI'NTY

OO1O77 CHD CLIMC FEES

OO1O77 FEDEMILY QUAIIF'IED HEALTH CENTER FEES

OO1O77 CIID SAI-E OF SERVICES IN OR OI-]"TSIDE OF STATE CO!'T

OOIITO !'ITAL STATTSTICS CERTIFMD RECORDS

FEES AIIIEORIZED BY COUNTY TOTAL

3r1,052

53,515

340

,lo,l25

405,O32

311,052

53,515

340

{.0,125

405,032

311,052

53,516

340

40,125

{06,032

11. oTIIEE c.AsE AND LOCAL CONTRIBTmONS ' COIINIY

OOTO99 FEDERALLY QUALIFIED HEALTH CENTER FEES

OO1O9O TEDERALLY QUAI-IFIED HEALTH CENTER FEES

OOTOTO HEALTH CENTER CLUSTER GRANT . DIRECT TO CHD

OO?OTO IIEA.LTH CENTER CLUSTER GRANT . DIBECT TO CHD

OI IOOT CI{D HEALTIIY START COALIflON CONTRACT

O9OOO2 DRSW DOWN FROM PLTBLIC I{EALTH UMT

OTEEB CASE AND IOCAL CONTBIBIMONS TOTAI

128,816

53,013

594378

I
r30,409

512,024

\474,641

r2a,8r6

53.013

594,378

I
130,409

572,O24

1,478,641

128,816

53,013

594,378

I

130,409

572.O24

1,478,641

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

12. AII.OCABIJ REVENIJE . COIJNTY

COUNTY AILOCABM REVENIJE TOTAI

1l

00

0

0

0

0

0

0

r,. BI'II,DINCS . COI'NTY

ANNUAL RENIAL EQUIVALENT VALUE

OTHER Gp€ci&)

LTTLITIES

BUII,DING MAINTENANCE

GROIJNDS MAINTENANCE

INSURANCE

oTHER (SpeciB,)

OTIIER (Specify)

BI'IIJINGS TOIAL

72,N
o

0

0

600

5,400

0

0

?8,000

72,0@

o

0

0

600

5,400

0

0

78,000

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

l-)

0

0

0

0

0

14. OTEER COIINIY CONTRIBI,'TIONS NOT IN CED TRUST FI'ND . COIJNTY

EQUIPMENT / !'EI{ICLE PURCHASES

\EHICLE INSLM.ANCE

Atlachm€nt_ll-Parl_ll - Page 5 of 11

ATTACHMENTtr

BRADFORD COU}NY HEALfE DSPAATMENI

Part II, So'rrcee of CotrtributioDs to County Hes]th DepartEetrt

Ost ber I,2023 to Sept 6ber 30,2024

State CIID
Trust Furd

(cash)

County
cED

Tlust Flrld

Total CIID
ThBt !'uDd

(caah)
other

Contt*ution Tot l



VEI{ICLE MAINTENANCE

OTHER COI]NTT CONTRIBUTION (SPECIFD

OTHEB COUNTT CONTRIBU'NON (SPECIIY)

OTEEB COI,NTY CONTBIBI,ITIONS TOTAI

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

6,000

0

0

0

6,000

GRAN'D TOTAL CI{D PROGRAM 3,933,6182,677,3261,316,292 1,010,701 4,944,319

Atracimenr_|_Pa(_fl , Paga 6 ot l1

ATTACEMENTII

BBADFOBD COI'IET HEALTII DEPAEIA{ENT

Part I1, Sourcee of Coatributbrs to Couty Eealttr Dep8ltEeEt

fuobe! 1, 204, to SopteDbor m, m2.1

Stst€ CI'ID
l}uet Furd

Total CIID
?rust Fund

Courty
CIID Other



A @r|XT,N!CAAI.E DIAEAAE CON1IOL

IMMUMZATION (TOD

SEXUALLY TRANS. DIS, (102)

HIV/AIDS PREVENNON OSAT)

HIV/AIDS SIJRVEILIANCE (O3A2)

HIY/AIDS PA'I'TENT CARE (03A3)

ADAP (03A4)

TTJBEBCULo6TS (TO4)

coMM. DIS. SURV. (106)

HEPATITIS (TOO)

PREPAREDNf,SS AND RESPONSE (TT6)

REFUGEE HEALTII (IT8)

VITAL BECORDS (T8O)

COUMI'NICABI,E DISEAAE AUBIOTAL

B. PAIXAETCA'E:

CHBONIC DISEASE PREVENfiON PRO OIO)

wlc (21W1)

TOBACCO USE INTBBVENIION O12)

WIC BREASTEEEDTNG PEER COTJNSEUNG (2TWD

FAMILY PI.ANNING E23)

IMPROIED PREGNANCY OTJ'rcOME (225)

HEAITITY START PBENATAL 827)

COMPAIMNSIVE CHIID T{EALTH O29)

HEALTEY START CHII' (231)

sct{ool- HEALllt (23,

COMPBEMNSNE A.DI]LT HEALTH (23?)

COMMUNTTY HEALTII DEVEI'PMENT (238)

DENIAL HEAI-TH O4O)

PRIMART CAAE SUECOIAI,

C. ENVINONXETITALEEALTE:

W.t r.!io'.it 8.'ra! Prog.Dt

COSTAL BEACH MOMMRJNG (34?)

UMITED USE PUBLIC WATER SYSTEMS (357)

PTJBLIC WATER SYSTEM (35A)

PRIVAIE WATER SYSIEM (359)

ONSI'IE SE]VAOE TRIATMENT & DISPOSAL (361)

OreD Tot l

LdtrEPlorlrE

TATIOO FACIUTY SEBVICES (344)

FOOD HYGIENE (34O

0.64

0.61

0.m

0.m

0.m

0.01

0.r8

0.m

0.05

0.82

0.00

0.49

2.80

0

0

0

0

1,035

297

505

6,2SS

413

62,816

g,N

0

33,396

r08,0r9

19,274

0

5,5r3

0

54,810

It,390

25,9e0

204,$r

2442r

92,553

38r,529

96.359

50,2m

971,074

23,2'i4

r3,r80

0

0

0

215

4196

0

32,90:l

0

4,723

43,922

rq525

0

4,726

0

50 4r2

9,7U

zzn9

176,aog

2\,2't7

?9,336

327,U5

82,59S

.rs,()3r

832,403

r9,?78

0

5,613

0

54.6r0

n,390

26,S€O

20{,681

2\A2t

92,563

361,529

96.359

50.2m

971.074

,264

r3,180

0

0

0

276

4,196

0

32,903

0

a.729

83,922

r6,8{p

0

4,804

0

51,211

9,926

2,,U7

r78,307

2r,824

80,648

3:]2.{5r

83,964

8,742

84{i,160

?1,881

0

20,556

0

t4l,85I

0

0

0

0

346,090

16:],r93

368,94r

14,747

I,116,059

66,698

0

0

0

0

1,O25

l5,8lt

0

5,191

1n,679

0

0

2(n,281

0

0

0

0

77,625

42,469

96,906

762,57a

92,541

0

r,259,36r

340

172,46

2,504.632

7l,6Er

0

m,566

0

2r9,n6

42,69

96,905

76\94

92,517

345,0€0

\122,661

359.24r

r8?,r73

3,6m,711

86,70S

49, r43

0

0

0

1,025

15,6:ll

0

5,19r

r22,6't9

0

32,525

312,90?

ar19

2b

0

0

0

0

34

0

3

0

0

\n1
8,650

,,619

288

0

0

0

0

39

0

0

0

r0 665

r3,606

19,93:'

u,298

0

0

0

236

3,536

0

t,193

,2U

0

7.177

71,93?

n,2
1r,135

0

0

0

3,665

0

t,2t1

,J,669

0

7,*2

73.t24

3r,m6

4S, r$
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

s2.625

rr2,gt3

l.0l

0.00

o25

0.m

1.95

0.38

1.15

7-72

1.I5

1.12

1t.75

,ll8

t-8t

35.r8

0

0

0

0

688

85

89

r.s4

88

0

\421

o

r9,9{O

2{,088

0.m

0.00

0.00

0.m

0.m

0.m

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

o

o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

00000

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0 0 0 0

0.00

o00 0

attadr,1Mr-ll_Pan lll - Pag€ 7 ol i

ATTACSMENT tr

BBADFORD COT,\TYEEALIE DEPATT},IENI

PaIt m, Phrnod Sta6!8. CtiaEts, Ssreices snd ElpsnditEos By Ploeram S€rvrc€ Area Withi-u EsaL Iav€t ofsofiia€
Octob€! 1, 2023 to Sopt€Ebe.30, 2024

trTE'3

(o,oo)

Clioats Soreicee/

Utrits Visit8

Quafiarb e!€udituro Pla!
16t hd 3d ,lt-h

(Wbole dollals o.ly) Stat6 County

G.and

Totd



0.m

om

o(rc

om

om

0.m

0.m

0.00

0.m

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

o

0

0

0

0

0

0.m

0.m

0.m

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

om

0.m

0.m

0.@

0.00

0.00

o00

om

0.00

0.m

0.m

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

o

0

0

0

0

o

o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

o

0

0

0

0

0

o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0.00

0.m

0.m

0.m

37.9a

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

o

0

0

00

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

o

0

0

0

r,316,29:t

0 0 0 0 0

2.61?,325 3,933,61830,744 121,625 1,054,996 9043l() 1,054,996 919,286

An cnfil€nr_rr_Pa.l-rrr . Pag6 8 ot

ATTACEMENT II
BB.ADFOP.D COI,,N]Y EEALTE DEPARTIdENT

Pert m, Pb.D.u€d Stalina. Cli6ats, S6rvic€6 rrd ErporditE €e By Pmgras Serics &oa Withid EscL Iavel ol S6rei.s

octob€! l, 2029 t6 SoDt€hb6r 30. 2024

qusrtrrly Ex!€ fftute Plsn

tr'I!'s Clioota S6rsiced lsr 2Dd Srd 4th
(0.0O Units visits (whole &[ars oDly) Stats Coudy

Grtld
Total

BODY PIf,BCING FACIIITIES SEBVICES (349)

GROI'P CAAE FACILNY G61)

MIGRAI.II LAAOR CAMP (35,

HOUSING & PI,IB. BLDC. (353)

MOBILE HOME AND PANX (354)

POOI,SBATHING PIACES (360)

BIOMEDTCAL WASTE SDNI/ICES (364

TANMNG FACIUfi SENVICES (369)

Gtory Tot I

GEuDAr .! CoDi.EiutiD

SIORAGE TANX COM?IIANCE SERVICTS (355)

SUPER ACT SERVTCES (356)

GloID Tohf

CoDirnlty EytiD

COMMUNITY ENVIR HEALTIT (345)

IN.IURY PBEVENTION (346)

I,EA.D MOMTORTNG SERVICES (350)

PIJBUC SEWACE (362

SOUD WASTE DISPqSAL SERVTCE (36:])

SANITARY NIJISANCE (365)

MBIES SURVEILI,ANCE (366)

A.RBOBVIBUS SUR}DIL (367)

RODEI.IT/ARTHROPOD CONTBOL (368)

WATEB POLLUIION (370)

INDOOR AIR (3?T)

MDIOI.OCICAL HIALTII (37D

loxrc st BstTANcEs 673)

OItq Totd

ENVIIONMETTT& Ef,ALlq SI'BTOIT',

D. NON.OPEBATIO}IALCOSITS:

NON'OPERATIONAL COSTS (599)

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SI,'RCTIARGE (39O)

IMDICAID BIJYBACK (5I 1)

NON.OPEBAI'IONTL COSTS SI'BIOTAL

TOTIL @NIBACI



1

?

ATTACHMENT III

BRADFORD COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT

CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE AND NON.DISCRIMINATION GERTIFICATE

The CHD agrees to complete the Civil Rights Compliance Questionnaire, DH Forms 946 A and B (orthe subsequent
replacement if adopted during the contract period), if so requested by the Department.

The CHD assures that itwillcomply with the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1981, P.L. 97-35, which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex and religion in programs and activities receiving or benefiting from federal financial
assistance.

Assurance of Civil Rights Compliance: The CHD hereby agrees that it will comply with Title Vl of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seg.); Title lX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seg.);
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794); the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 6101
ef seq.); Title Il and Title lll of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, as amended by the ADA
Amendment Act of 2008 (42 U.S.C. 12131-12189) and as implemented by Department of Justice regulations at 28
CFR Parts 35 and 36; Executive Order 13166, "lmproving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English
Proficiency" (August 11 , 2000); all provisions required by the implementing regulations of the U.S. Department of
Agriculture (7 CFR Part 15 et seq.); and FNS directives and guidelines to the effect that no person shall, on the
ground of race, color, national origin, age, sex, or disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits
of, or otheMise be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which the agency receives Federal
financial assistance from FNS; and hereby gives assurance that it will immediately take measures necessary to
effectuate this agreement.

By providing this assurance, the CHD agrees to compile data, maintain records and submit records and reports
as required to permit effective enforcement of the nondiscrimination laws, and to permit Department personnel
during normal working hours to review and copy such records, books and accounts, access such facilities, and
interview such personnel as needed to ascertain compliance with the non-discrimination laws. lf there are any
violations of this assurance, the Department of Agriculture shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this
assurance.

This assurance is given in consideratlon of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal flnancial
assistance, grants, and loans of Federal funds, reimbursable expenditures, grant or donation of Federal property
and interest in property, the detail of Federal personnel, the sale and lease of, and the permission to use Federal
property or interest in such property or the furnishing of services without consideration or at a nominal
consideration, or at a consideration that is reduced for the purpose of assisting the recipient, or in recognition of
the public interest to be served by such sale, lease, or furnishing of services to the recipient, or any improvements
made with Federal financial assistance extended to the Program applicant by USDA. This includes any Federal
agreement, arrangement, or other contract that has as one of its purposes the provision of cash assistance for the
purchase of food, and cash assistance for purchase or rental of food service equipment or any other financial
assistance extended in reliance on the representations and agreements made in this assurance.

This assurance is binding on the CHD, its successors, transferees, and assignees as long as it receives or retains
possession ofany assistance from the Department. The person or persons whose signatures appear below are
authorized to sign this assurance on the behalf of the CHD.

Confldentiality of Data, Files, and Records: The CHD agrees to restrict the use and disclosure of confldential USDA,
Women, lnfant, and Children (WC) applicant and participant information as specified in 7 CFR S 246.26(d)(1)(i) in

accordance with 7 CFR S 246.26(d)(1)(ii), as applicable.

3

4



Attachment lV

Fiscal Year - 2023 - 2024

Bradford County Health Department

FacilitieE Utilized by the County Health Department

Facility - a tixed site managed by DOH/CHD personnel for the purpose ol ptovkJing or suppoding public healh seNices. lncludes county-owned, stale-owned, and

leased facilites. lncludes DOH/CHD wa@house and administative sites. lncludes facilities managed by DOH/CHD that may be shared wilh other oryanizations.

Does not include schools, jails ot other lacilitios wherc DO|I/CHD staff arc out-posted or sites where services are provided on an episodic basis.

Complete Location
(Slreel Address, City, zip)

Facility Descriptlon
And Omc.l Buildlng

Namo lll sppllc.blo)

(Admin, Cllnlc, Envn Hllh

Lease/
Agreement

Number

Type of
Agreement

Slale or Colnly, other -

Complete
Legal Name

of Owner

Employee
Count

(FTE,/OPS/

Conrracr)

l80l North Templo Ave, Starko,
FL 32054 Administration, Clinlc & EH County

Board of County
Commlaaioners 7642 31.19

Attachmeol-lv - Page 10 of 11

SQ
Feet



ATTACHMENT V
BRADFORD COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT

SPECIAL PROJECTS SAVINGS PLAN

CASH RESERVED ORANIICIPATEO TO BE RESERVEO FOR PROJECTS

STATE COUNW

0$

TOTAL

0$ 0

0$ 0$ 0

CONTRACT YEAR

2022-2023.

202U2024*

202+2025"

2025-2026*"

PROJECT TOTAL

0

$

$

$

$

$

0$ 0$
0$ 0$ 0

0$ 0$ 0

SPECIAL PROJECTS CONSTRUCTION/RENOVATIO}I PLAN

PROJECT NUMBER:

PROJECT NAME:

LOCATION/ADDRESS

PROJECT ryPE: ROOFING

PLANNING STUDY

OTHER

SQUARE FOOTAGE:

PROJECT SUMIVARY:

0

Describe scope of wotk in rcasonable detail.

START DATE (hithl expeactitute oftuds) :

COMPLETION DATE:

DESIGN FEES: $

CONSTRUCTION COSTS: $

FURNITURE/EQUIPIIENT: $

IOTAL PROJECT COST: $

COST PER SO FOOT| $

0

0

0

0

0

Special Capital Proiects aae now construction o, rcnovation proiqcts and new lumiturc or 6quipmont associatod with these proiects and
mobile health vans.

' Cash balance as of 9/30/23

" Cash lo be Iransferred to FCO account

"'Cash anticipated for future conlract years.

Attacnmenr-V, Page 11 of 11

NEW BU'LDING

RENOVATION

NEW ADDITION



Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET 
 
 
 
DATE:     September 21, 2023    
    
AGENDA ITEM Approval of Agreement between Bradford County and 

NCFRPC for Annual Monitoring of Hazardous Waste 
Generators ($7,882) 

 
DEPARTMENT:    County Manager 
 
PURPOSE: Hazardous Waste Monitoring 
 
ASSOCIATED COST(S): $7,882 
 
BUDGET LINE (G/L #): 113-65-534-31000-00 
  



Flegional
Plenning
Council

Senving Alachua
Bnadfond . Columbia

Dixie. Gilchnist. HErnilton
Lafayette . Levy . Madison

SuwanneB . Taylon . Union Counties

2OOg N\N Ei7th Pl6ce, GaineBville, FL 32653 - 1 60g . BSe . S55 . 22OO

August 25, 2023

Mr. Scott Kornegay
Count) Manager
Bradford County
945 North Temple Avenue
Starke. FL 32091- I 286

RE: Fiscal Year 2024
Agreement Between the County and the Planning Council
for Annual Monitoring of Hazardous Waste Generators

Dear Scott:

Please find enclosed two copies, with original Planning Council signatures. ofthe above referenced
proposed agreement between the County and the Planning Council for the Planning Council to continue ils
monitoring ofhazardous waste generators located in the Counr-v for Fiscal Y ear 2024 in the amount of
$7,882. Please note that the method ofcompensation for services provided pursuant to this Agreement is
on a fixed fee basis.

Subsequent to approval ofthe above referenced agreement by the Board ofCounty Commissioners. olease
have both cooies dated on Pase 1 ands t!:ned on P 4. retain one coDv ofthe Asreement rvith orisinal

North
Central
Florida

a

signatures for the Countv files and return one sisned copt of the Agreement rvith orisinal simatures to me
for the Plannin Council's files.

Ifyou have any questions conceming this Agreement, please do not hesitate to contact me at 352.955.2200.
ext. l0l.

Sincerely'.

Scott R. Koons. AICP
Executive Director

Enclosures

o:\koonsurarardous *aste monitorhg aBreementsuo24u024 sqg agreemenls letler merge docx

Eedicated Eo irnpnovrng ihe quality of lrfe of Ehe Fleg,on's crtstzens,
by enhanc,ng publc BafeEy, paoteclring neqional nesounceE,

pnornoErng economic daveloprnsnE and pnoviding technrcBl senvices to local govennrnenEs



FISCAL YEAR 2024

HAZARDOUS WASTE MONITORING AGREEMENT BEIWEEN

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OF BRADFORD COLNTY. FLORIDA

AND THE

NORTH CENTRAL FLORIDA RECIONAL PLANNING COLNCIL

This Agreement made and entered into this day of 2023. bv and

between the Board of County Commissioners of Bradford County. Florida. hereinafter referred to as the
"Purchaser" and the North Central Florida Regional Planning Council. hereinafter referred to as the
"Planning Council".

This AGREEMENT/CONTRACT IS ENTERED INTO BASED UPON THE FOLLOWING
FACTS: The Purchaser desires to engage the Planning Council to render certain technical or professional
services: and

The Planning Council possesses the qualifications and expertise to perform the services required.

NOW THEREFORE. THE PURCHASER AND THE PLANNING COUNCIL DO MUTUALLY
AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

The Planning Council agrees to provide services to the Purchaser in accordance with the terms
and conditions set forth in Appendix A, Scope olServices, of this Agreement which is incorporated by
reference herein and considered as an integral part ofthis Agreement.

ARTICLE II . COMPENSATION

Tlre Planning Council shall be paid by the Purchaser a fixed fee of Seven Thousand Eight
Hundred Eighty-Tu'o Dollars and No Cents ($7.882.00) for services provided in completing the Scope of
Services described in Appendix A, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Payment Io the Planning Council for services rendered in accordance with the Scope of Services
as set forth in Appendix A. Scope ofServices. ofthis Agreement. which is incorporated by reference
herein and considered as an integral part ofthis Agreement. uill become due rlithin thirty 130) da1's

following receipt by the Purchaser ofa requisition ofpa)ment. Requisitions ma1' be made on a monthll
basis.

Page I of 5

ARTICLE I - SCOPE OF SERVICES



This Agreement shall begin on October 1. 2023 and shall end on September 30. 202.1. Anl
allowable costs incurred by the Planning Councilduring the period covered b1 this Agreement in
providing ser"ices in performing the *,ork described in Appendix A. Scope ofServices. ofthis
Agreement, which is incorporated by reference lrerein and considered as an integral pafi ofthis
Agreement are eligible expenses chargeable to the Purchaser. However, if this Agreement is not executed
by all parties- the Purchaser shall not be liable lor an;'such costs incurred b1'the Planning Council.

Each party may terminate this Agreement without cause providing fifteen ( I 5) days rvritten notice
to the other. Written notice shall be via U.S. Mail. first class mail, postage prepaid, by certified mail,
retum receipt requested. In such an event- all finished or unfinished documents and other materials
prepared bl the Planning Council pursuant to this Agreement shall become the propertl ofthe Purchaser.

Upon termination as provided in this Article. the Planning Council shall be reimbursed for all of its actual
costs incurred in providing services hereunder this Agreement as the same are defined in Article Il of this
Agreement.

The failure ofeither part] to compl) rvith anl provision ofthis Agreement shall place that pa4'
at default. Prior to terminating this Agreement. the nondefaulting paq shall notiry the defaulting panl in
writing. Wrinen notice shall be via U.S. Mail, first class mail. postage prepaid, by certified mail, return
receipt requested. The notification shall make specific reference to the provision which gave rise to the

default. The defaulting party shall then be entitled to a period often ( 10) days in which to cure the
default. In the event said default is not cured within the ten ( l0) da1' period. the Agreement ma) be

terminated. The failure ofeither paq to exercise this right shall not be considered a uaiver ofsuch right
in the event ofany further default or noncompliance. Upon default and termination as provided in this
Article, the Planning Council shall be reimbursed for all of its actual costs incurred in providing serr ices

hereunder this Agreement as the same are defined in Article II ofthis Agreement and all finished or
unfinished documents and other materials prepared by the Planning Council pursuant to this Agreement
shall become the propery* of the Purchaser.

ARTICLF, VI . NONDISCRIMINATION

Page 2 of 5

ARTICLE III - TIME COMPLETION

ARTICLE IV . TERN{I}iAI'ION WITHOUT CAUSE

ARTICLE V - DEFAULT AND TERMINATIoN

In carrying out the work ofthis Agreement, the Planning Council shall not discriminate against
any employee or applicant for employment because of race. creed. color, sex. national origin or
handicapped status. The Planning Council shall take affirmative action to ensure thal applicants are

employed and that emplolees are treated during emplo)ment. uithout regard to lheir race, creed. color.
sex, national origin or handicapped status. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the follou ing:
employment. upgrading, demotion. or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoffor
termination: rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including
apprenticeship. The Planning Council agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and
applicants for employment. notices setting forth the provisions ofthis non-discrimination clause. The
Planning Council shall. in all solicitations or adverrisements for employees placed by' or on behalfofthe
Planning Council. state that it is an Equal Opponunity/Affirmative Action Employer. The Planning
Council shall incorporate the foregoing requirement of this paragraph in all subcontracts for services
covered by this Agreement.



ARTICLE VII . LIABILITY

The Planning Council herebl agrees to hold harmless the Purchaser. to the extenl alloued and
required by law. from all claims. demands. liabilities and suits of third persons or entities not a paq'to
this Agreement arising out of. or due to an) act. occurrence. or omission ofthe Planning Council. its
subcontractors or agents. if an1. that is related to the Plann ing Council's performance under th is

Agreement.

The Planning Council shall not assign any interesl in this Agreement and shall not transfer an)-

interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation)" without the prior consent ofthe Purchaser.

ARTICLE IX - REPRESENTATIVES FOR THE PARTIES

In all matters relating to the performance of this Agreement. the Count_v Manager of the
Purchaser shall represent and act for the Purchaser and the Executive Director ofthe Planning Council
shall represent and act for the Planning Council.

ARTICLE X . VENUE AND JURISDICTION FOR LITIGATION BETWEEN THE PARTIES

This Agreement shall be construed according to the laws ofthe State ofFlorida. Venue shall be
exclusively in Bradford Coun4', Florida for all litigation between the parties and all issues litigated
between the parties shall be litigated exclusivell in a court of competent jurisdiction of Bradford County.
Florida. Ifany provision hereof is in conflict u,ith any applicable statute or rule, or is otheruise
unenforceable, then such provision shall be deenred nulland void to the extent ofsuch conflict, and shall
be deemed severable, but shall not invalidate any other provision ofthe Agreement.

ARTICLE XI - AMENDMENT OF AGREEMENT

The Planning Council and the Purchaser by mutual agreement may amend, extend. or modifl this
Agreement. Any such modification shall be mutually agreed upon by and between the Planning Council
and Purchaser and shall be incorporated in a writlen amendment to this Agreement. dull' signed by both
parties.

ARI'ICLE XII . COMPLETE CONTRACT

This Agreement. including Appendix A. Scope of Services. ofthis Agreement. u hich is
incorporated bl reference herein and considered as an integral part of this Agreement. constitutes the
entire contracl between the parties, and anv changes. amendments. or modifications hereof shall be void
unless the same are reduced to writing and signed by the parties hereto.

Page 3 of 5

AItTlCt-1, VIII - ASSIGNABILITY



IN WITNESS WHEREOF. the parties herelo have caused this Agreement to be executed b1'their
undersigned officials as duly authorized on the date first above written.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OF BRADFORD COUNTY

Attest:

Seal

Seal

Dennl Thompson
County Clerk

Aflest:

Scott R. Koons
Executive Director

Diane Andrews
Chair

NORTH CENTRAL FLORIDA
REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL

Jani . Mortimer
Chai

Page 4 of 5



APPENDIX A

SCOPE OF WORK

The Council rvill complete the annual verification ofhazardous $aste management praclices for t\\ent\
(20) percent ofthe potential small quantitv generators located u,ithin lhe Coun$,as required b1'Sections
403.7234 and 403.7236. Florida Statutes. All verifications u ill be made b1. on-site visits to the places of
business ofpotential smallquantity" generators. The verification inlbrmation will be entered into the
Florida Department of Environmental Proteclion on-line database as required b), the Depanment.

The Council will notify all identified known and potential small quantity generators oftheir legal
responsibilities concerning proper $aste management practices. including used oil management. The
notification information rvill be provided to small quantir_v" generators during the site visits and u,ill
include information on \\ho to contacl at the Council if a facilitl needs additional information concerning
compliance assislance.

o:\koons\harardous waste monitoring agreements\2024\2024 sqg agreemenls merge.docx

Page 5 of 5



Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET 
 
 
 
DATE:      09/21/2023      
    
AGENDA ITEM:   NEFEDC Contract for Bradford County EDC funding from 

BCDA funds  
 
DEPARTMENT:    
 
PURPOSE:  Documentation of transfer of funds being held from BCDA 

assets to NEFEDC to continue economic development 
efforts. 

 
ASSOCIATED COST(S):  
 
BUDGET LINE (G/L #):  
  



SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE NORTHEAST FLORIDA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
AND  

BRADFORD COUNTY. 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this 23RD day of September 2023, by and between the NORTHEAST 
FLORIDA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, a not-for-profit Florida corpora�on (herea�er 
referred to as "NEFEDC"), and BRADFORD COUNTY.  
 

WITNESSETH  

WHEREAS, NEFEDC exists to promote 1) economic development by serving as an effec�ve private sector 
partner with the community in u�lizing resources with greater flexibility; 2) marke�ng of the geographic 
area as defined in the By Laws of NEFEDC at large in local and out-bound promo�onal programs; and 3) 
development by serving as an important voice in suppor�ng development projects in a cost effec�ve and 
independent manner; and  

WHEREAS, prior to the dissolu�on of the Bradford County Development Authority, the BCDA had 
solicited the professional services of NEFEDC for contracted services in order to provide such services 
and/or programs as are set forth in Exhibit "A" a�ached hereto (hereina�er “Services”) and incorporated 
a�er the BCDA terminated on June 30, 2023 and  

WHEREAS, the Authority and NEFEDC have determined that the public will benefit from such Services in 
order to promote economic development  and that the provision of such Services is in the best interests 
of the Authority, and, to that end, the Authority has appropriated funds to be paid to NEFEDC for such 
Services; and  

WHEREAS, NEFEDC commits to making available the necessary qualified and trained personnel, 
resources, materials and supplies to perform such Services as set forth in this Agreement; including, but 
not limited to, a coordinator, professional economic development consul�ng, and an independent Board 
of Directors; and  

WHEREAS, the Authority desired to enter into an agreement with NEFEDC whereby NEFEDC will receive 
and disburse said funds of the Authority which as ordered by Florida State Stature were turned over to 
Bradford County upon BCDA dissolu�on for the purpose of providing the Services in accordance with the 
terms and condi�ons set forth herein;  

NOW, THEREFORE, in considera�on of the premises, the mutual covenants, and agreements herein 
contained, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the par�es hereby agree as 
follows:  

1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated 
herein and made a part of this Agreement.  

2. FUNDING. The Authority has appropriated for the period commencing September 23rd, 2023, and 
ending September 30th, 2025, the lump sum of $175,000.00 (hereina�er “Funds”) to be administered 
and disbursed by NEFEDC solely for the purpose of and in furtherance of providing the Services, which 



shall include salaries, and incidental expenses such as, but without limita�on, forma�on and filing 
expenses, website and social media development and hos�ng, insurance, travel expenses, 
promo�onal material design and duplica�on, rental expenses for office space, and all other expenses 
reasonably and commercially necessary to provide the services. NEFEDC will con�nue to solicit 
financial contribu�ons, grants, appropria�ons, sponsorships, public and private government funding, 
and in-kind contribu�ons to support the organiza�on, with a long-term goal to generate majority 
funding from those sources. 

3. PAYMENTS. Under the terms and condi�ons of this Agreement, Bradford County agrees to contribute 
the Funds to NEFEDC on or before September 23rd, 2023  for con�nuing faithful performance of all 
the provisions of this Agreement by NEFEDC.  

4. PERFORMANCE MEASURES; PROGRESS AND FINANCIAL REPORTS.  NEFEDC agrees to submit 
progress and/or financial reports on a quarterly basis beginning no later than for the first quarter of 
2024.  

5. BOARD MEETINGS. A person designated by Bradford County, shall be provided no�ce of and be 
permi�ed to a�end board mee�ngs, upon request to do so. The designee of Bradford County shall 
receive electronic copies of NEFEDC Board Mee�ng minutes a�er each mee�ng (normally monthly).  

6. NONPROFIT STATUS. NEFEDC shall maintain its corporate, non-profit status in the State of Florida and 
will pursue and secure 501(c)6 status with the Federal Internal Revenue Service for the term of this 
Agreement. If NEFEDC should, during the term of this Agreement, lose its corporate or non-profit 
status, it shall immediately no�fy Bradford County within ten (10) days of the event. Upon such an 
event, Bradford County reserves the right to immediately terminate this Agreement and NEFEDC shall 
return to Bradford County all funds not expended pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.  

7. NONDISCRIMINATION. NEFEDC agrees to provide the Services without regard to race, color, creed, 
sex, age, na�onal origin, or disability.  

8. ACCOUNTING. NEFEDC shall u�lize and maintain such records and prac�ces regarding receipts and 
disbursements of the Funds as to be in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles. 
NEFEDC shall retain all records rela�ng to this Agreement for a period of at least two (2) years a�er 
final payment is made. All records shall be kept in such a way as will permit their inspec�on pursuant 
to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. In addi�on, Bradford County reserves the right to examine and/or 
audit such records.  

9. MONITORING. NEFEDC shall permit Bradford County to monitor the Services and NEFEDC’s records 
as provided monthly and quarterly via minutes and financial reports.  

10. TERM. Unless earlier terminated, this Agreement shall remain in effect for the period commencing 
September 23rd, 2023 and termina�ng September 30th, 2025. This agreement will be reviewed 
annually with the poten�al for reapplica�on for support in Bradford County’s budget cycle.  



11. TERMINATION. This Agreement may be terminated by either party for cause upon no less than thirty 
(30) days’ no�ce in wri�ng to the other party. Cause for termina�on of this Agreement shall be a 
failure of a party hereto to deliver the Services or fulfill any other obliga�on set forth herein a�er 
no�ce of such failure is provided by a party hereto to the party responsible for providing such Service 
or obliga�on and such failure not being cured on or before 120 days following such no�ce.  Said no�ce 
shall be delivered by cer�fied mail or in person to the business address of the party upon whom such 
no�ce is served.  

12. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. NEFEDC shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, 
ordinances, rules and regula�ons in the performance of its obliga�ons under this Agreement, 
including the procurement of permits and cer�ficates where required, and including but not limited 
to laws related to Workers Compensa�on, Americans with Disabili�es Act (ADA), Sec�on 504 of the 
Rehabilita�on Act of 1973, Minority Business Enterprise (MBE), occupa�onal safety and health and 
the environment, equal employment opportunity, privacy of medical records and informa�on, as 
applicable. Con�nuing failure to comply with any of the above provisions shall be considered a 
material breach of the Agreement.  

13. DEFAULT. The following shall cons�tute an Event of Default under this Agreement:  

a. NEFEDC’s failure to provide the Services in accordance with the terms and condi�ons of this  
Agreement;  

b. NEFEDC makes a material representa�on in any cer�fica�on or communica�on submi�ed by 
NEFEDC to the Authority that is later determined by the Authority to be false, misleading, or 
incorrect in any material manner; or  

c. NEFEDC’s failure to comply with any of the terms and condi�ons in this Agreement.  

Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default and the failure of the defaul�ng party to cure such 
default following no�ce of such default within 120 days following delivery of such no�ce, or any other 
breach of this Agreement, the Authority shall have the authority to terminate this Agreement and/or 
exercise all rights and remedies available to it under the terms of this Agreement under statutory law, 
or under common law.  

14. PUBLIC RECORDS. NEFEDC shall generally comply with Florida’s public records laws, and specifically 
NEFEDC shall:  

a. Keep and maintain public records required by the Authority to perform and/or provide the 
service or services contracted for herein.  

b. Upon request from the Authority’s custodian of public records, provide the Authority with a copy 
of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable �me 
at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise 
provided by law.  

c. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confiden�al and exempt from public records 
disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the dura�on of the 



term of this Agreement and following comple�on of this Agreement if NEFEDC does not transfer 
the records to the Authority.  

15. E-VERIFY. As a condi�on precedent to entering into this Agreement, and in compliance with Sec�on 
448.095, Fla. Stat., NEFEDC and its subcontractors shall, register with and use the E-Verify system to 
verify work authoriza�on status of all employees hired a�er January 1, 2021.  

a. NEFEDC shall require each of its subcontractors to provide NEFEDC with an affidavit sta�ng that 
the subcontractor does not employ, contract with, or subcontract with an unauthorized alien.  
NEFEDC shall maintain a copy of the subcontractor’s affidavit as part of and pursuant to the 
records reten�on requirements of this Agreement.  

b. The NEFEDC, or any subcontractor who has a good faith belief that a person or en�ty with which 
it is contrac�ng has knowingly violated Sec�on 448.09(1), Fla. Stat. or the provisions of this 
sec�on shall terminate the contract with the person or en�ty.  

c. The NEFEDC, upon good faith believes that a subcontractor knowingly violated the provisions of  

this sec�on, but NEFEDC otherwise complied, shall immediately terminate the contract with the 
subcontractor.  

d. NEFEDC or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in this sec�on, 
including this subsec�on, requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower �er 
subcontracts. NEFEDC shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower �er 
subcontractor with the clauses set forth in this sec�on.  

16. NO WAIVER. The con�nued performance by either party hereto, pursuant to the terms of this  
Agreement, a�er an Event of Default shall not be deemed a waiver of any rights by the NEFEDC. 
Furthermore, the waiver of any default by the NEFEDC shall in no event be construed as a waiver of 
rights with respect to any other default, past or present.  

17. CONSTRUCTION; SEVERABILITY. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Florida. It is agreed by and between the par�es that if any covenant, condi�on or 
provision contained in this Agreement is held to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdic�on, 
such invalidity shall not affect the validity of any other covenants, condi�ons or provisions herein 
contained.  

18. NON-ASSIGNABILITY. NEFEDC may not assign its rights hereunder without the prior wri�en consent 
of Bradford County. Failure to comply with this sec�on may result in immediate termina�on of this 
Agreement.  

19. NO JOINT VENTURE. It is mutually understood and agreed that nothing contained in this Agreement 
is intended, or shall be construed, as in any way crea�ng or establishing the rela�onship as partner 
or joint ventures between the par�es hereto or as cons�tu�ng Bradford County as the agent or 
representa�ve of the NEFEDC for any purpose or in any manner whatsoever.  



20. VENUE. Any li�ga�on occurring because of this Agreement shall be held in the courts of Bradford 
County, Florida and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. NEFEDC agrees to no�fy 
Bradford County of an occurrence of any incident or ac�on filed against NEFEDC, such as but not 
limited to, lawsuits, injuries, or allega�ons of abuse or neglect.  

21. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement cons�tutes the en�re agreement between the par�es hereto 
with respect to the subject ma�er hereof; any representa�ons or statement heretofore made with 
respect to such subject ma�er, whether verbal or wri�en, are merged herein. No other agreement, 
whether verbal or wri�en, regarding the subject ma�er hereof shall be deemed to exist. This  
agreement may only be modified in wri�ng, signed by both par�es.  

22. NOTICE. Any no�ces to be delivered hereunder shall be in wri�ng and be deemed to be delivered 
when (i) hand delivered to the person hereina�er designated, or (ii) deposited in the United States 
Mail, addressed to a party at the addresses set forth opposite the party’s name below, or at such 
other address as the applicable party shall have specified, from �me to �me, by wri�en no�ce to the 
other party delivered in accordance herewith:  

 Authority: Northeast Florida Economic Development Corpora�on  
A�n: Sandra Kahle, Chairman  
 415 East Call Street  
Starke, FL 32091  

   NEFEDC: Northeast Florida Economic Development Corpora�on 
Patricia Evans, Director/Treasurer 
 415 E Call St 
Starke, FL 32091   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the par�es hereto have executed these presents and have set their hands and 
seals the day and year first above wri�en.  

NORTHEAST FLORIDA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CO    BRADFORD COUNTY    
    
    
    
________________________________________  ________________________________________  
By: Patricia Evans, Director  By:  
  



EXHIBIT “A”  
SCOPE OF SERVICES AND PERFORMANCE MEASURES  

  

Areas of Service and Performance Measures  

Three broad areas of service have been iden�fied to be offered as a value-added benefit to Bradford 
County, par�cularly, NEFEDC will develop programs and provide services in support of and in furtherance 
of Economic Development by:  

a. Business reten�on and expansion that will include a business and site selector visita�on program 
to include, as appropriate, coordinated mee�ngs with the Bradford County Manager and N.E Fl. 
Regional Chamber of Commerce;  

b. Marke�ng/Promo�on via electronic means on designated websites and social media pla�orms 
in addi�on to various venues including special events, business conven�ons, publica�ons, and 
public rela�ons presence; and  

c. Tourism related ac�vi�es in coordina�on and coopera�on with the Bradford County Tour 

  

Other Efforts  

NEFEDC will document efforts toward increasing funding resources. NEFEDC will provide in its quarterly 
reports its use of funds and other revenue generated by NEFEDC to improve funding leverage (for example, 
in grant-wri�ng, etc.).  

EXHIBIT “B”  
REPORTING  

NEFEDC will report progress toward the services in this agreement monthly at its regular NEFEDC board 
mee�ngs.  

NEFEDC will have a representa�ve appear as needed at the Bradford County Commission mee�ngs. 
Wri�en quarterly reports, as noted, will also be shared with Bradford County.  

Commencing no later than first quarter 2024, a quarterly wri�en ac�vi�es summary is due to Bradford 
County and a corresponding quarterly NEFEDC appearance will be made at such mee�ngs, or at another 
designated mee�ng as arranged with Bradford County.  

The quarterly reports shall include informa�on on services provided and ac�vi�es undertaken. Addi�onal 
regular contact with Bradford County’s designee will occur during business hours to provide for monitoring 
of services, and to coordinate shared efforts. The designee of Bradford County may engage the NEFEDC 
board as necessary regarding services.   

Mail or deliver the quarterly progress reports by mutually agreed means to Bradford County designee 
and/or the Bradford County Manager. 

 



 



Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET 
 
 
 
DATE:     September 21, 2023    
    
AGENDA ITEM Retroactive Approval of George Roberts Insurance Invoice 

230360 for Renewal of General Star Indemnity Policy 
 
DEPARTMENT:    County Manager 
 
PURPOSE: Medical Professional Liability Policy for Dr. Kemp 
 
ASSOCIATED COST(S): $31,500 
 
BUDGET LINE (G/L #): 001-26-569-45050-00 
  



VLn lo.+ 233
G/.+ rc r lG- 51"1' 49# - c: o

GEORGE ROBERTS INS II{C
986 N. TEMPLE AVE
STARKE. FL 32001

B.rdford Count, BOCC
PO Dr.rlf B
Strrte, FL 3AXlt

Btadbrd Courry BOCC

4401

0904/2023
G€oage RoberB lnsur
Ssrdre Luke

I of I

3r,500 m$

I nvoio*230360

IJG928T36F

Cuslomer: Bradbrd Cwnty BOCC

3{),0m.00
18.m

1,/l82.00

09109/2023 Renfl polacy

Policy ,HJG928336F 09i0912023-09/092024
GENERAL STAR INDEMNITY

M€d/Proiessbnsl Ljab - Re{tav polrcry

Slamping Oftce Fee - Renew policy
Sfdus Lin€s Tax - Renff policy

230360

31.fln.m$

09/04/2023

GEORGE ROBERTS INS INC
986 N, TEMPLE AVE

(9O.1)364-7826

. FL 32091

CuraorG

A.C,
D.tB

Customer
SerYice

lnvoice

Amountlnvoice Effective Transaction Deacription

Total

x

D.te
{



Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET 
 
 
 
DATE:      09/21/2023      
    
AGENDA ITEM:   Public Works 2023 Hamm HD70i VV Double Drum Asphalt 

Roller 
 
DEPARTMENT:    Public Works – Road Department 
 
PURPOSE:  Gas Tax Paving Project Rolling Asphalt; Currently Public 

Works rents one. 
 
ASSOCIATED COST(S): $139,400  
 
BUDGET LINE (G/L #): 105-29-541-63110-00 (Gas Tax) 
  



 

September 14, 2023 
 
Mr. Jason Dodds 
Bradford County Road Department 
 
 
Jason, thank you for the opportunity to provide the following quotes for your consideration. Please let me know if you have 
any questions or need additional information. The following equipment is represented in the Florida Sheriffs Association 
2023 Statewide Contract -FSA Bid #FSA23- EQU21.0 Heavy Equipment 
 
 
One new 2023 Hamm HD70i VV vibratory double drum asphalt roller               
 
Warranty 2 year/2000-hour comprehensive (full) machine coverage with free travel time mileage (TTM) for warranty repairs. 
 
Delivered Sell Price                        $139,400. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Best regards, 
Steve Carter 
Beard Equipment Company 
Lake City, FL 
904 769 9220 



Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET (AIIS) 
 
 
DATE OF MEETING:  9-21-2023   
    
AGENDA ITEM_       Response Vehicle (F150 4x4) 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Fire Rescue  
 
PURPOSE: Replace aging ALS1 supervisor vehicle.   
 
ASSOCIATED COSTS: Not to exceed $55,000 
 
G/L ACCOUNT: 111-54-526-64000-00 
 
 
  
 



Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET 
 
 
 
DATE:     September 21, 2023    
    
AGENDA ITEM Consider approval of Web Design and Hosting Contract, 

Three quotes provided per purchasing policy. 
 
DEPARTMENT:    County Manager 
 
PURPOSE: Website redesign 
 
ASSOCIATED COST(S): Catalis (Current Vendor) $3,060 Annually including redesign. 
 Muni Creative $4,250 Initial Investment, and $2,500 Annually  
 Civic Plus $28,301.25 Initial Investment, $5,584.95 2nd Year 
 
  



9/11/23, 8:15 AM Catalis Proposal Bradford County FL

https://pages.qwilr.com/Catalis-Proposal-Bradford-County-FL-olEJ2ayTKKtQ 1/9

Solution Pricing 

Website Management
YEARLY

$3,060.00 Select

Description Quantity Price

Implementation 1 Unit $0.00

Catalis Order Form

Prepared For: Bradford County, FL

Prepared By: Ryan Frommel

Valid Until: 2023-10-31

Accept & Sign



9/11/23, 8:15 AM Catalis Proposal Bradford County FL

https://pages.qwilr.com/Catalis-Proposal-Bradford-County-FL-olEJ2ayTKKtQ 2/9

Description Quantity Price- Up to 30 hours of Design

- Up to 300 pages migrated

- 1 hour remote training (post academy graduation)

Annual Subscription

- AWS North America Hosting

- Nightly Backups

- Content Management Software & maintenance

- SSO

- Administrator Dashboard

- Automatic feature updates

- Accessibility development & responsive designs

- SSL Certi�cates

- 5 hours paid Support (no annual rollover)

1 Unit $3,060.00 / year

Additional Email Account(s) Unit0 $0.00

Economic Development Dashboard
YEARLY

$2,600.00 Select

Mass Noti�cation Management
YEARLY

$4,995.00 Select

Meeting Management
ONE OFF

$7,500.00
YEARLY

$5,995.00 Select

Permit Process Management
ONE OFF

$7,500.00
YEARLY

$12,500.00 Select

Request Management
ONE OFF

$5,000.00
YEARLY

$12,500.00 Select

Order Form Notes

1. Initial Set-up Fee(s) are charged as a one-time fee upon acceptance of this Order Form ("Effective Date"). 

2. Annual Fee(s) are invoiced each year on the annual anniversary of the Effective Date. 

3. Fees do not include applicable Taxes. 

4. Fees associated with Grant Writing Services are payable upon acceptance of this Order Form. Items highlighted by an asterisk (*) are only

payable in the case that the Grant has been successfully awarded to the Municipality and are payable within 15 days of the Grant being

awarded.

5. Annual Fees will increase by the greater of 6% or CPI each year.

Year 1 Subscription Cost Year 2 Subscription Cost Year 3 Subscription Cost Year 4 Subscription Cost

Accept & Sign



9/11/23, 8:15 AM Catalis Proposal Bradford County FL

https://pages.qwilr.com/Catalis-Proposal-Bradford-County-FL-olEJ2ayTKKtQ 3/9

$ $ $ $

Click below to accept and move forward with the Agreement

Our implementation teams are ready to kick off this proposed solution for Bradford County, FL!

The Term of this Agreement shall commence on the date of the last signature on this Agreement (the "Effective Date") and shall continue for

four (4) years after the Subscription Start Date. At the end of the Initial Term, the Agreement shall automatically renew for subsequent periods

equal to the Initial Term, unless terminated by written notice by either party at least ninety (90) days prior to expiration.. 

Subscription Start Date: March 1, 2024

Full terms and conditions are included in the block below.

https://catalisgov.com/software-as-a-service-saas-terms-and-conditions/

If you have any questions, please reach out to me (Ryan Frommel) at ryan.frommel@catalisgov.com!

Bradford County, FL Address: 945 N Temple Ave. (Rte 17), Starke, Florida 32091

Point of Contact: Scott Kornegay, County Manager 2023

904-966-6327 | scott_kornegay@bradfordcounty�.gov

Catalis Public Works and Citizen Engagement, LLC Address: 3025 Windward Plaza, Suite 200, Alpharetta GA 30005

Accept & Sign

CAMA

CAMA is an actively innovating and modernized CAMA system that allows you to use new products immediately, connect the �eld to the of�ce,

and determine the value of property for tax assessments. Select, analyze, and export data to inform updates all within CAMA. As the

assessment industry evolves, having CAMA in place can be critical to succession planning, and ensuring the maintenance of industry best

practices.

Solution Description

CAMA Modules

CAMA Dashboard

Accept & Sign

https://catalisgov.com/software-as-a-service-saas-terms-and-conditions/


9/11/23, 8:15 AM Catalis Proposal Bradford County FL

https://pages.qwilr.com/Catalis-Proposal-Bradford-County-FL-olEJ2ayTKKtQ 4/9

Economic Development Dashboard

Catalis’ Economic Development Platform automates the collection, visualization, and updates of millions of indicators so you can view,

benchmark, and compare municipalities across the United States and Canada. With budget-friendly solutions for civic dashboards, Catalis

provides governments with software to automate data and assist with investment attraction.

COMMUNITY PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD

 Catalis’ Community Performance Dashboard is the best way to inform your citizens through customizable key performance indicators,

making it easy to foster transparent communication with your community.

COMMUNITY PROFILES

 Catalis updates your community pro�le from the most trusted and current data with the simple click of a button. Verify your pro�le to tell

your story and add in custom data to showcase your municipality. Catalis’ visitor base is global and generates real leads from entrepreneurs

to large companies.

WEBSITE DATA EMBEDS

 With only one line of code, Catalis powers your website with up-to-date data on your municipality. Add even more custom data, let site

selectors export raw data, or download charts for your next report.

Enterprise Resource Management

A powerful, highly adaptable software suite, ERP is a results-driven solution that equips municipalities with customized, relevant, and user-

friendly �nancial tools. ERP is scalable to the size and needs of your organization. Access information, customers, and pro�les between modules

to help make tasks and decisions easier.

DATABASE ACCESS 

 In order to ensure the integrity and proper use of the Software, Bradford County, FL acknowledges and agrees that Catalis shall be granted

access to Bradford County, FL database for the duration of the Agreement Term. 

MANDATORY TRAINING 

 In order to ensure the integrity and proper use of the Software, Bradford County, FL acknowledges and agrees that the license granted

hereunder for the Software shall include mandatory training for each module licensed as detailed by Catalis in the accepted quotation, or for

subsequent modules licensed in the future that form part of the Software. 

GIS - Managed Data Services

GIS is a one-stop-shop for all municipal data, enabling municipalities to access everything from one centralized database. WebMap visualizes

property, asset management, planning, emergency services data and more into one location so users across the municipality can gain access to

information either in the of�ce or the �eld. 

Citizens can also take advantage of GIS with its user-friendly public portal to view select municipal information catered to their speci�c needs.

Item Description Standard Update Schedule

Assessment Data Assessment data and points are updated into

Catalis

March update

AltaLIS Data* The AltaLIS data is updated into Catalis Monthly update

Mass Insert Files & One Property Review

Integrations

Accept & Sign



9/11/23, 8:15 AM Catalis Proposal Bradford County FL

https://pages.qwilr.com/Catalis-Proposal-Bradford-County-FL-olEJ2ayTKKtQ 5/9

Land Parcel Data* Catalis cleanses and updates the Parcel Layer data

and any additions, modi�cations and deletions

from the Client tax system

Monthly update

Ownership / Index / Address Map  Delivery of one Ownership, or Index, or

Address, Map

 One poster size Map (No Insets)

 Labels (One Scale to match Map size)

 Print�le (.pri and/or PDF)

Updates to include any changes to:

 Ownership (as per Tax System)

 Parcel Layer

 Other GIS layers (E.g., roads, boundaries,

hydrography, map points)

April & October update

AER data processing* The AER data is updated into Catalis Quarterly update

DIDS / DIDS+* The disposition data is updated into Catalis Monthly update

* Active subscriptions to non-Catalis applications may be required, at an additional cost.

Infrastructure & Asset Management Services

Catalis will provide services to assist with setting up an Asset Management Program. 

These services will involve:

1. Migrating the current Asset Management information into Catalis

2. Identifying any gaps in the Asset Management information

3. Developing the framework for an Asset Management Program, based on Catalis’ templated framework

Catalis’ Asset Management Program template is based on the following:

 Asset Management Policy

 Intent

 Scope

 Role of asset management policy

 Principles

 Responsibilities

 Asset Management Strategy

 Intent & scope

 Asset management decision-making approaches

 Asset management objectives and performance targets

 Key asset management improvement initiatives

 Asset management roles & responsibilities

 How to monitor and improve asset management

 Asset Management Plan

 Summary

 Introduction

 Methodology

 Limitations and assumptions

 Data completeness and accuracy

 Conclusions

Accept & Sign



9/11/23, 8:15 AM Catalis Proposal Bradford County FL

https://pages.qwilr.com/Catalis-Proposal-Bradford-County-FL-olEJ2ayTKKtQ 6/9

 Recommendations

Mass Noti�cation

Mass Noti�cation was developed to provide municipal administrators with one central portal to send and manage communication messages to

their residents on multiple media platforms. The Mass Noti�cation app also provides your residents with a communication link to your of�ce for

the latest municipal information, including direct feeds from your own municipal website for notices and events.

 Live Emergency Alerting

 Website Integration

 Account Management

 Communication Management

 Mobile Access

 Audio Voice and Text

Item Description

Account Data Bradford County, FL will retain sole ownership of all account data and will have access to their data

from the program or upon request of the Vendor (Catalis Public Works and Citizen Engagement,

LLC). 

Software Hosting Software hosting will be provided in a minimum Tier III Data Centre offering redundancy in:

 Data storage

 Power

 Physical locations

 Data linkages

Data Back-Ups All data and back-ups will be stored in a North American facility. 

Con�dentiality Policies Vendor staff will adhere to company con�dentiality policies and each policy can be made available to

Bradford County, FL upon request.

Data Responsibility Any data provided to the Customer from the Vendor, including phone numbers, have not been

scrubbed for “do not call” lists and use of the data is at the responsibility and risk of the Customer.

Data Sharing All data, in whole or in part, provided by Catalis is for the sole use of the Customer and cannot be

distributed to, shared, or used by an external party.

Meeting Management

Meeting Management is the most user-friendly meeting and document management system available for public administrators. The easy-to-

use interface makes the application great for the most novice user while providing advanced features such as interactive document

management, task tracking, and complete meeting management features.

 Automated Minutes

 Automated Scheduling

 Agenda Manager

 Remote & Mobile Access

 Project & Issue Tracking

 Optional Live Video Streaming

Permit Process Management

Easily handle your municipality’s permits in one centralized program - no more permits scattered across multiple systems and folders. Easily

process permits, �nd what you’re working on and what comes next.

Accept & Sign



9/11/23, 8:15 AM Catalis Proposal Bradford County FL

https://pages.qwilr.com/Catalis-Proposal-Bradford-County-FL-olEJ2ayTKKtQ 7/9

 Custom Reporting

 Custom Work�ows

 Public Portal

 Centralized workspace, document repository, & permit checklist

 Integrated with core tools, including local tax systems

 Digitization & Automation

Website Design and Maintenance Services

Website management has been our area of expertise since 1999. Our website service includes everything you need to design, develop, host,

and maintain your online presence.

Our Basic Municipal Setup Package includes hosting, design, tech support, basic municipal web applications, automatic updates, Mobile View,

data backups, and all existing and new website features.

 SSO

 Admin Dashboard

 Automatic Feature Updates

 Accessibility Development                               

 Responsive Designs

 North America Hosting

 SSL Certi�cates

About CATALIS

ftware Solutions

nd integrated payments partner powering all levels and sizes of government – municipalities, counties, states, federal agencies, and utilities. Our deep ex

s have helped public servants across the U.S. and Canada to deliver at their highest ability on behalf of their communities.

Accept & Sign



9/11/23, 8:15 AM Catalis Proposal Bradford County FL

https://pages.qwilr.com/Catalis-Proposal-Bradford-County-FL-olEJ2ayTKKtQ 8/9

OUR SOLUTIONS
Our government-focused solutions pair industry expertise with advanced technology to deliver unparalleled bene�ts. With solutions that enable

greater access to data, better citizen service, and more effective technology platforms, we drive agencies beyond the status quo of government

processes. 

Payments

Accept & Sign



9/11/23, 8:15 AM Catalis Proposal Bradford County FL

https://pages.qwilr.com/Catalis-Proposal-Bradford-County-FL-olEJ2ayTKKtQ 9/9

Tax & CAMA

Courts & Land Records

Public Works & Engagement

Regulatory & Compliance

Contact Us

catalisgov.com  |  833-781-8282

Accept & Sign

https://catalisgov.com/
tel:833 781 8282




Thank you for considering MuniCreative for your website development and administrative needs. The 
following is an overview of our capabilities, processes and philosophy. This information will help illustrate 
why MuniCreative has become a preferred provider for local governments, public safety agencies, civic 
organizations and small businesses across America.

Since 2009, we have been producing visually stimulating websites 
combined with award-winning customer service. We have hand 
crafted nearly 1,000 websites, many of them for local 
civic centers and small governments; which led us to 
develop a branch of our company dedicated to the 
development and support of websites made specifically 
for Municipal website needs.

In addition to providing products and preferred services geared toward this purpose, we construct websites 
in a manner that allows for consistent updates of the platform. This helps to ensure our clients’ websites are 
never out of date or become vulnerable to cyber-attacks. Additionally, we follow best practices in modern 
web development as a Google Certified Partner. Our remote branches of team members are as diverse as 
the clients we serve. Fielding offices in Kentucky, North Carolina, Florida, Illinois and Michigan we have 
refined our processes to engage and service our large client base. We are available to support our clients via 
phone, email, and text messaging to ensure the best possible website service.

On Purpose Design

MuniCreative's approach to website development differs from other website builders by the way we 
specialize in industry-specific, On Purpose Design. We have discovered this is the best method to truly 
produce the results our clients need. “Cookie-cutter” website builds or “one size fits all” web pricing is not 
cost-efficient nor productive for the diverse cities, counties, and municipal websites we collaborate with. 
MuniCreative understands that every website build is as unique as the people it serves. Our On Purpose 
Design mindset means that we plan, discuss and execute our builds with a specific goal in mind.

The following examples display some of our “On Purpose Design” approach.

We will be available every day to support your needs, from the 
free consultation to the 10th anniversary of your launch.

MuniCreative will professionally design, build, 
and support one of the most important aspects 

of your organization... Your Website! 

MuniCreative upGr NET The 



Nathan E. Thornton, President 
Phone: (904) 263-8356 

Nathan@MuniCreative.com 
www.MuniCreative.com 

August 9, 2023 

To: Bradford County Board of County Commissioners  
Diane Andrews, Chair
945 North Temple Avenue 
Starke, Florida 32091 
Phone: (904) 966-6320 

We want you to be able to show the best you have to offer, share your stories, and make 
meaningful connections with your community. We have provided you pricing that will 
help you do this. It includes everything you would expect in a state of the art content 
management system like responsive (mobile friendly) design, interactive calendars, 
slideshows, and more. But, the most important part of our services is the ongoing 
website management we provide. We become your webmasters. Our staff is dedicated 
to making your county websites an effective communication, public relations, and 
marketing tool. Our services include: 

● Ongoing content updates to keep your sites current and informative
● Easy access to us by your authorized staff for content submission
● Monthly reminders to your authorized staff to get those latest updates
● Proofing and editing of all editable content
● Ongoing graphic updates for website appearance and optimization, including stock

photos
● Monthly site reviews to make sure everything looks great and works perfectly
● Timely updates— almost always the same day, usually within hours
● ADA accessibility and 508 compliance to ensure that all visitors can enjoy the site
● Monthly tips to authorized staff to give them ideas for better content submission

Please review the following contract, and feel free to give us a call if you have any 
questions at 904.263.8356. 

Sincerely, 

Nathan Evan Thornton, President  
MuniCreative, Inc. 
Florida Clerk of Courts Website Services 
(904) 263-8356
nathan@municreative.com | www.MuniCreative.com



Previous Experience & References

Gilchrist County Board of County Commissioners
Bobby Crosby, County Administrator |  BCrosby@Gilchrist.Fl.Us
Phone: (352) 463-3198

Project Description: Nathan Thornton and MuniCreative, Inc. have been serving Gilchrist County for 
many years starting with a website for the Board of County Commissioners. We have now developed 
websites for many other County Departments; Veterans Services, Building Department, Emergency 
Management, Fire & Emergency Medical Services, and Hart Springs.

Gilchrist County Tourism & Economic Development 
Donna Creamer

DCreamer@Gilchrist.Fl.Us
Phone: (352) 463-3198

Project Description: Prior to serving the Gilchrist County Board of County Commissioners, Nathan 
worked with Donna Creamer on developing new Economic Development and Tourism Development 
websites. Donna currently manages those websites internally and we assist with graphic design and 
technical assistance.

In addition to providing website development and technical assistance, we also assist her with Printing 
Services and Graphic Design for marketing Gilchrist County as the Springs Capital of the World. Nathan 
Thornton designed the new Gilchrist County Springs Capital of the World logo and it is currently being 
used in Magazines, Billboards, Web Advertising, and Print.



A Letter From Barry Baker - Dated August 3, 2021  
Suwannee County - Clerk of the Circuit Court & Comptroller 

Please accept this letter as a glowing recommendation for Nathan Thornton and The 
NET Group/MuniCreative, Inc. out of Starke, Florida 

I first met Nathan in 2019 as my office was looking to revamp or replace our website 
after a recent surge in ADA-related lawsuits throughout the State. By the time I met 
him, Nathan and his company had already created and were hosting several websites 
for not only our Judicial Circuit but some of the surrounding ones as well. We found 
Nathan to be very friendly, eager to please, and having the desire and know-how to 
update our website to a much more modern and accessible look. 

Since that time, it has become clear that Nathan is looking out for our county while 
still providing a very cost-effective service for our office, going above and beyond on 
many occasions. His response time to email or phone calls is almost always measured 
in minutes, not hours or days, and he is happy to work with us while providing 
suggestions based upon his own expertise. 

Our new website went live in the middle of 2021. We have been very happy with the 
new website, and the few changes necessary because of staff and patron input have 
been enacted quickly. Nathan continues to make recommendations to further 
improve our website, and we continue to be happy with his company’s work. 

I would heartily recommend Nathan Thornton and Net Group/MuniCreative for 
website design and management. If you have questions, please feel free to contact 
me. 



Previous Experience & References

Gilchrist County Board of County Commissioners
Bobby Crosby, County Administrator |  BCrosby@Gilchrist.Fl.Us

 (352) 463-3198Phone:

Project Description: Nathan Thornton and MuniCreative, Inc. have been serving Gilchrist County for 
many years starting with a website for the Board of County Commissioners. We have now developed 
websites for many other County Departments; Veterans Services, Building Department, Emergency 
Management, Fire & Emergency Medical Services, and Hart Springs.

Gilchrist County Tourism & Economic Development Donna Creamer

DCreamer@Gilchrist.Fl.Us
(352) 463-3198Phone:

Project Description: Prior to serving the Gilchrist County Board of County Commissioners, Nathan 
worked with Donna Creamer on developing new Economic Development and Tourism Development 
websites. Donna currently manages those websites internally and we assist with graphic design and 
technical assistance.

In addition to providing website development and technical assistance we also assist her with Printing 
Services and Graphic Design for marketing Gilchrist County as the Springs Capital of the World. Nathan 
Thornton designed the new Gilchrist County Springs Capital of the World logo and it is currently being 
used in Magazines, Billboards, Web Advertising, and Print.

MuniCreative
www.MuniCreative.comSuwannee County, Florida

Shannon Roberts, Content Management/Administrator

ShannonR@SuwCountyFl.gov
Phone: (386) 590-0732

Project Description: In September of 2019, Florida became a hotbed for Website 
ADA Compliance lawsuits. Nathan was already working with many local government 
agencies under The NET Group so we had to figure out a plan to provide ADA 
compliant websites to our customers. In 2020 we reached out to Suwannee County 
who was already looking at making website enhancements.

We provided a solution to provide them with new websites that are ADA compliant. 
We developed 3 new websites for them over the last 2 years for the Sheriff, Clerk of the 
Circuit Court & Comptroller, and Board of County Commissioners. We also provide an 
ADA Compliance Audit annual to the Supervisor of Elections to ensure her website is 
in compliance. She uses a third party website vendor that interfaces with her election 
software but wanted to ensure that her website was ADA compliant. So we assisted 
her and her vendor to ensure she was in compliance.

James Williams, County Coordinator 
County
Coord@UnionCounty-FL.gov
Phone: (386) 496-4241

Project Description: Nathan has served the Union County Board of County 
Commissioners under The NET Group since 2015 and continued to serve them 
when MuniCreative was formed. We developed the Board of County 
Commissioners website as well as a website for Union County Economic 
Development. Nathan also served on the Rural Counties Day Planning Committee 
for 2021, 2022, and 2023.

In addition to the Board of County Commissioners, we also serve the Clerk of the 
Circuit Court and Sheriff in managing their websites.

Union County, Florida
A Letter From Barry Baker - Dated August 3, 2021  
Suwannee County - Clerk of the Circuit Court & Comptroller 

Please accept this letter as a glowing recommendation for Nathan Thornton and The 
NET Group/MuniCreative, Inc. out of Starke, Florida 

I first met Nathan in 2019 as my office was looking to revamp or replace our website 
after a recent surge in ADA-related lawsuits throughout the State. By the time I met 
him, Nathan and his company had already created and were hosting several websites 
for not only our Judicial Circuit but some of the surrounding ones as well. We found 
Nathan to be very friendly, eager to please, and having the desire and know-how to 
update our website to a much more modern and accessible look. 

Since that time, it has become clear that Nathan is looking out for our county while 
still providing a very cost-effective service for our office, going above and beyond on 
many occasions. His response time to email or phone calls is almost always measured 
in minutes, not hours or days, and he is happy to work with us while providing 
suggestions based upon his own expertise. 

Our new website went live in the middle of 2021. We have been very happy with the 
new website, and the few changes necessary because of staff and patron input have 
been enacted quickly. Nathan continues to make recommendations to further 
improve our website, and we continue to be happy with his company’s work. 

I would heartily recommend Nathan Thornton and Net Group/MuniCreative for 
website design and management. If you have questions, please feel free to contact 
me. 





We Use an Extended WordPress System, 

Enhanced to be Easier
We use WordPress as a base, and then we build upon 
that with various improvements. Some 
improvements make the website faster to build and 
edit, and some are additional functionalities that 
WordPress alone simply does not have. Some 
enhancements make the website have that "wow 
factor" when your visitor lands on the page. And some 
improvements make the website more secure. But all of the improvements make for a much 

more modern and advanced website for your 
organization.

One-on-one Support to Help You!
Most people do not realize how important finding a 
stellar support team is when you are choosing a web 
development company. Most companies only give you 
a nice-looking website and then either disappear or 
become exceedingly difficult to reach after the launch. 

We are greatly appreciated by all our clients for our accessibility and help in editing their 
websites. We are who they turn to for advice on how to improve, better inform, or stand out 
on their website, not just meet a need.

Web Hosting

As a hosting provider, we make sure your website is up and 
running, loads fast, and is safe for your visitors. We also have 
monitoring systems in place to let us know if there is ever a 
network problem, so we can fix it immediately.

Daily Backups
We perform daily backups both on-site and off-site. This helps ensure that your info is safe. A complete copy 
of your website is always a click away from being restored to a previous date should you ever need it.

Award Winning Support
Having a great website is only the first step, what happens after launch? Whether you are brand-new to 
editing or a seasoned professional, we are here to support you by Phone, Email, Chat, Online Video Tutorials, 
and even Screen Share! We are pleased to say that we have been awarded for our customer service for 8 
consecutive years! 



What Makes Us Different
Turnaround Time:
County information and communication with its citizens 
is extremely important in today’s culture. Securing a 
website that can handle this relationship is a must. We 
use our polished techniques and systems to produce an 
awesome website in a fraction of the time that other 
developers offer. Our team knows what it takes to stay 
on task and on time!

We Do The Updates For You:
We not only keep your website up to date with the latest 
security releases, but we also maintain all the plug-ins and 
WordPress core. This ensures that you are running the 
latest, most secure versions to thwart any attackers 
attempting to take advantage of outdated software. We 
are also available to update the content on your website 
for you whenever you need it.

 
Available When You Need Us:
When you are open, we are open! If you are working on 
a project and need some assistance, we are happy to 
assist you by phone, text, online chat, or even screen 
share if necessary. Our knowledgeable staff will be 
ready and available to add a photo to your gallery, post 
a blog article you have written, or post an urgent 
message about an upcoming event or emergency 
notification on the homepage

Expert Advice:
We pride ourselves on our ability to answer the tough 
questions. We are available to solve or offer alternative 
solutions for problems that may come up. We are 
known for going the extra mile and giving additional 
advice to improve the outcome of your request.

Strong and Dependable Relationships:
All of our client relationships are very important to us. 
Each team member is dedicated to supporting strong 
business relationships with our clients. We will assist 
you with your preparations for an upcoming event, or 
update 



Browser Certified Safe
All our hosted websites come with an SSL Certificate so that your website is 
encrypted and secure. Forms, browsing sessions, and data are all encrypted to 
ensure what your visitors' view cannot be intercepted by third parties.

Site-wide Search
Our websites come with a powerful search and filter feature. This allows a visitor 
to search by keyword or phrase to find any content on your website (including 
inside PDFs.) You can even narrow down a search inside a blog article or Agenda 
(Add-on feature.)

Back-end Security
Our websites come with a powerful security system that scans the entire website 
for malware and/or alterations to core operating files to ensure protection from 
hackers. From a strengthened login system to the ongoing scanning of activity, our 
security system will block the IP address of anyone attempting to get in.

Blog
Blog about everything that is happening in your county! Let your citizens know 
what is going on with the latest updates and events as they happen. Use this tool to 
boost your social media presence by sharing a blog on all your social media sites. 
This feature will allow you to have the latest three or four blog posts feeding on 
your homepage automatically.

ADA Compliant
Your website will be ADA compliant. Your visitors will be able to set the contrast of 
your website, adjust the font size of the content, adjust the spacing, stop animations, 
change the fonts to become legible fonts with a click, enlarge the cursor, and so much 
more.

Mobile Friendly Design
All our websites are fully mobile-friendly and optimized to resemble the desktop 
design using only the vertical format for a more fluid flow of content. This is 
particularly important as more than 50% of visitors will be using a mobile 
device.

Free Upgrades
We are always improving our websites’ performance and adding new features. This 
allows for all of our hosted clients to continue to benefit, at no additional charge, 
ensuring that you will always get the latest feature upgrades as we release them.



Free Security Updates
Free security updates are automatically completed on an ongoing basis for our hosted 
websites. These security updates are important as technology changes and new 
threats become active. We make sure your website is up to date on the latest security 
fixes as they are released.

Facebook, and other SM integration
Integrate your website with your social media pages (Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, 
YouTube, etc.).  We include links to and feeds from whichever social media platforms 
you utilized to bring the current events to your visitors.

Interactive forms
We have fully functional contact forms and survey systems for you to create, modify, 
and capture information from visitors who wish to reach out to you. Visitors will be 
able to easily ask questions or give information using these forms. They are great for 
surveys, registration forms, upcoming events, or just a simple contact form for visitors 
to request more information.

Document Center
Secure storage and ease of access can be a challenge for any organization, especially 
municipalities. Our storage allows you to upload and store thousands of Word 
Documents, PDFs, and Excel files. Your visitors can search and filter based on date, 
title, category, and/or keyword. Files are stored in their executable format, allowing 
just one click to access and work with the documents. (Associated programs may be 
needed such as Microsoft Word or Adobe Reader.)

Agendas & Minutes
Many cities need, or even require, public access to government documents, such as 
Agendas and Minutes or Fiscal Reports, but many fall short. A lot of sites only have a 
list of links that are arduous to navigate, search, or view.  Our system allows for 
government documents to be searched, filtered, and found quickly, providing an easy 
interface for your visitors.

Employees Only Area (Intranet)
An Employees Only Area add-on can increase infrastructure organization and 
communication between employees. This add-on will provide you with a completely 
private, internal area where your employees can access and search for forms, 
instructional pages, tutorials, and more. Access is set-up for employees at their hire 
and can be deactivated when they are no longer part of the organization. 

Popular Upgrades:



Mass Communication
Communication is key in any organization and the county government is not any 
different. Our mass notification system uses SMS (Texting) function on mobile devices 
and/or email to get information in the hands of the people. This system will allow you 
to send notifications to subscribers about a variety of events, alerts, and general 
information like traffic or weather conditions.

Small Business Hub
Small businesses are the backbone of any county, large or small. With our Small Business 
Hub, you can have a place to list and showcase small businesses with their company 
information, services, products, and a Google map to their location. You can also list their 
website URL, phone, fax, address, and categorize them for easy navigation. Your visitors 
will easily find businesses with a powerful search and filter tool. This will help build your 
small businesses grow, and in turn; help grow your county

Newsletter System for Local News and Updates
Provide an option for your visitors to sign up for the county newsletter. As new 
updates are published on the website, they will be notified by email with important 
news or upcoming events. With a simple signup form on your home page, they will be 
added to the system, plus they can subscribe or unsubscribe easily with one click.

Emergency Alerts on all pages
Let your citizens know about emergency topics in a noticeable way with our 
Emergency Alert System. Alerts like a water boil alert, school closings, court closings, 
and more can be easily broadcast on your website. You name it, if you need to let 
your website’s visitors know, you can do it with this add-on.

Bill Pay
We have multiple options available for bill pay services from some of the industry’s 
most trusted resources. This allows us to help you choose the right bill pay client for 
your specific needs. All of our bill pay partners have identified disciplines of high-end 
security and feature-rich service offerings. As an integrated part of your website, 
your citizens will have confidence that the payment resource is secure. Many of 
these resources can also connect with your desktop payment system.

Online Chat
Our versatile chat feature offers multiple account use so you can provide greater 
support to your visitor. Communicate with different departments within your county, 
offer live assistance on where to get the right forms to fill out, or direct them to 
useful information and resources. This add-on is perfect for communication with the 
public, especially those that cannot physically visit your offices.

Branded Emails
Add-on branded emails match your county domain name (Example: 
yourname@yourcity.gov). You can send and receive emails through your official domain 
email and at the same time promote the website itself. There is an extra charge per 
email account.

Popular Upgrades (continued):



DELIVERABLES & COSTS

Site planning and architecture
Creative direction
Project management
Client communications & phone consultations
Professional graphic design

Home page layout plan / wireframe mockup•
Website design•

WordPress installation & configuration
WordFence Security Framework configuration
Integration of text and photos provided by client or from current website
Search Engine Optimization (SEO)
Testing & programming revisions
Graphics & Content revisions
Launch
WordPress Content Management training with client

MuniCreative has developed a reputation for website project 
completion on time and on budget. Our On Purpose mind set 
works with you to complete your project as quickly as possible. This 
partnered approach helps you with time lines for information 
retrieval, images, content and styling for a smooth process. Our 
proposed schedule is as follows (all estimates in business days)

ONE-TIME

$4,250WEBSITE DESIGN, PROGRAMMING & LAUNCH:

DELIVERY SCHEDULE:

MILESTONES Estimated # Bus Days to Complete

Discovery and Planning 5

Server Setup and Design 5

5-20

5Development and Programming

5             

Total Development Production Time (# of days) 25-45 days

Launch Upon Approval, then 2-5 days

Training Ongoing

Beta Testing and Review

Content Work



WEBSITE, MAINTENANCE & HOSTING SERVICES:

Website Hosting & Maintenance Services

• 1 Domain name
• Unlimited bandwidth (website traffic) and 50GB of Storage
• Weekly Backups & Free Restore when needed (up to 5 times per year)
• Dedicated technical support with same-day response guarantee
• Yearly social media and local search checkup
• Monthly website updates & SEO maintenance (1 hour per month, 12 hours per year)
• SSL Security Certificate installation and renewal protection
• Advanced spam and virus protection, HTTPS Protocol, and DDOS Protection
• Google Analytics installation and account access & support if needed
• Regular Security Updates to WordPress Core, All Plugins and Theme

$2500.00
ANNUALLY

The NET Group Online and Nathan E. Thornton would like to thank the Bradford County Board of 
County Commissioners for the opportunity to provide website services for the year of 2023-2024. 

Term of Contract: August 2023-2024 

Bradford County Board of County Commissioners Signature 

MuniCreative, Inc. Signature 

Date



CivicPlus
302 South 4th St. Suite 500
Manhattan, KS 66502
US

 
 

 
Statement of Work

Quote #: Q-50003-1
Date: 9/13/2023 3:03 PM
Expires On: 9/30/2023
 

Client:
BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA

Bill To:
BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA

 
SALESPERSON Phone EMAIL DELIVERY METHOD PAYMENT METHOD

SteviAnn Matijevic steviann.matijevic@civicplus.com Net 30

 

QTY PRODUCT NAME DESCRIPTION PRODUCT
TYPE

TOTAL

1.00 Annual - CivicEngage Central Annual - CivicEngage Central Renewable USD 3,853.00

1.00 Hosting & Security Annual Fee -
 CivicEngage Central

Hosting & Security Annual Fee -
 CivicEngage Central

Renewable USD 1,188.00

1.00 SSL Management – CP Provided
Only

SSL Management – CP Provided Only 1
per domain (Annually Renews)

Renewable USD 89.00

1.00 DNS and Domain Hosting Setup
(http://URL)

DNS and Domain Hosting Setup (http://
URL)

One-time USD 118.50

1.00 DNS and Domain Hosting Annual
Fee (http://URL)

DNS and Domain Hosting Annual Fee
(http://URL)

Renewable USD 189.00

1.00 Premium Implementation -
 CivicEngage

Premium Implementation One-time USD 9,476.25

350.00 Content Development - 1 Page -
 CivicEngage

Content Development - 1 Page -
 CivicEngage

One-time USD 10,500.00

4.00 New Customer System Training
(3h, virtual) - Web Central

CivicEngage System Training - Virtual,
Up to 3 Hours, up to 12 Attendees

One-time USD 2,250.00

1.00 Agendas & Minutes Migration
- PDF - 100 Meetings -
 CivicEngage

Content Migration : Agendas & Minutes
- Per 100 Meetings (Approx. 1 year)

One-time USD 637.50

1.00 CivicEngage Year 1 Annual Fee
Discount

Year 1 Annual Fee Discount Renewable USD 0.00

List Price - Year 1 Total USD 35,962.00
Total Investment - Initial Term USD 28,301.25

V. PD 06.01.2015-0048
Page 1 of 3



Annual Recurring Services - Year 2 USD 5,584.95
 

Initial Term & Renewal Date 12 Months
Initial Term Invoice Schedule 100% Invoiced upon Signature Date

Renewal Procedure Automatic 1 year renewal term, unless 60
days notice provided prior to renewal date

Renewal Invoice Schedule Annually on date of signing
Annual Uplift 5% starting in Year 2

This Statement of Work ("SOW") shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the CivicPlus Master Services Agreement
and the applicable Solution and Services terms and conditions located at https://www.civicplus.help/hc/en-us/p/legal-
stuff (collectively, the "Binding Terms"), By signing this SOW, Client expressly agrees to the terms and conditions of the
Binding Terms throughout the term of this SOW.
 

V. PD 06.01.2015-0048
Page 2 of 3

https://www.civicplus.help/hc/en-us/p/legal-stuff
https://www.civicplus.help/hc/en-us/p/legal-stuff


Acceptance
 
The undersigned has read and agrees to the following Binding Terms, which are incorporated into this SOW, and have
caused this SOW to be executed as of the date signed by the Customer which will be the Effective Date:
 
 
Authorized Client Signature

 
CivicPlus

By:
 
___________________________________

By:
 
___________________________________

Name:
 
___________________________________

Name:
 
___________________________________

Title:
 
___________________________________

Title:
 
___________________________________

Date:
 
___________________________________

Date:
 
___________________________________

  
 
Organization Legal Name:
 
___________________________________
Billing Contact:
 
___________________________________
Title:
 
___________________________________
Billing Phone Number:
 
___________________________________
Billing Email:
 
___________________________________
Billing Address:
 
___________________________________
 
___________________________________
Mailing Address: (If different from above)
 
___________________________________
 
___________________________________
PO Number: (Info needed on Invoice (PO or Job#) if required)
 
___________________________________

V. PD 06.01.2015-0048
Page 3 of 3



Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET 
 
 
 
DATE:     9-21-23    
    
AGENDA ITEM Year 5 LOA MCO  
 
DEPARTMENT:    Fire Rescue  
 
PURPOSE: Year 5 Intergovernmental Transfer for the MCO/PEMT 

program.  Transfer amount is $300,763.93, but we will be 
receiving $715,423.25 in return, resulting in a Net profit of 
$414,659.32.             

 
ASSOCIATED COST(S): $300,763.93 
 
BUDGET LINE (G/L #): 001-01-511-99000-00 
  



Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET 
 
 
 
DATE:     September 21, 2023      
    
AGENDA ITEM Dedication of SR 230 as the “Dr. Peter J. Gianas Memorial 

Highway” 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, ACKNOWLEDGING AND HONORING 
THE LIFE AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS OF DOCTOR 
PETER JOHN GIANAS, MD, AND DECLARING THE 
HONORARY DESIGNATION OF A PORTION OF 
STATE ROAD 230 IN BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
AS THE “DR. PETER J. GIANAS MEMORIAL 
HIGHWAY” 

 
 
DEPARTMENT:    County Manager 
 
PURPOSE: Honoring the life and accomplishments of Dr. Gianas 
  



Resolution 2023-____ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, ACKNOWLEDGING AND HONORING THE LIFE AND 
ACCOMPLISHMENTS OF DOCTOR PETER JOHN GIANAS, MD, AND 
DECLARING THE HONORARY DESIGNATION OF A PORTION OF STATE ROAD 
230 IN BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS THE “DR. PETER J. GIANAS 
MEMORIAL HIGHWAY” 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Bradford County, Florida, wishes to 
honor the late Dr. Peter Gianas for his decades of lifesaving service to the County’s residents; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners desires to provide an honorary 
designation for State Road 230 as the “Dr. Peter J. Gianas Memorial Highway,” where Dr. Gianas 
lived off Kingsley Lake until the time of his death in July of 2021. 

 NOW THEREFORE be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Bradford 
County, Florida as follows: 

Section 1.   Honorary Designation of State Road 230 

The members of the Board of County Commissioners of Bradford County, Florida, hereby 
declares an honorary designation for the portion of State Road 230 (Call Street) in Starke, Bradford 
County, Florida from U.S. Highway 301, west to the Bradford County line as: 

Dr. Peter J. Gianas Memorial Highway 

Section 2.  Effective Date of Resolution 

 This resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption by the Board of County 
Commissioners of Bradford County, Florida. 

 

 

 

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank. 

 

 

 
 

  



RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of County Commissioners of Bradford County, 
Florida, with a quorum present and voting, this 21st day of September 2023. 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 
By: DIANE ANDREWS, its 
       Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 
By: DENNY THOMSPHON, as 
      Clerk to the Board 
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 

 

__________________________________ 
By: RICH KOMANDO, as 
      County Attorney. 
 
 



Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET 
 
 
 
DATE:     09/15/2023  
    
AGENDA ITEM FY21/22 Audit Report, presented by James Moore & Co 
 
DEPARTMENT:    Finance 
 
PURPOSE: Presentation of FY21/22 Audit Report 
 
ASSOCIATED COST(S): N/A 
 
BUDGET LINE (G/L #): N/A 
  



Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET 
 
 
 
DATE:     September 21, 2023  
    
AGENDA ITEM Consider Approval for County Manager to Engage Bryant 

Miller Olive Law Firm for Professional Services Related to 
Development of a Fire Assessment Program and Updating 
Existing Impact Fees 

 
DEPARTMENT:    County Manager 
 
PURPOSE: Development and implementation of a special assessment 

program to fund fire services as well as updating currently 
established impact fees. 

 
ASSOCIATED COST(S): Estimated Fees for Fire Assessment: 

 Legal $295/hour  
 Methodology $250/hour 
 Combined Costs estimated not to exceed $60,000 

 
Estimated Fees for Impact Fee 

 Legal – Not to exceed $15,000 
 Methodology -- $10,000 per impact fee; not to exceed 

$60,000 if all seven fees are updated. 
 
Additional costs for printing/mailing/copying/phone 
service/travel as per Section 112.061 Florida Statutes. 

 
  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

September 7, 2023 

 

VIA EMAIL ONLY 

 

Scott Kornegay, County Manager 

Bradford County 

945 North Temple Ave 

Starke, Florida 32091 

 

 

Re: Professional Services Related to Development of a Fire Assessment Program and 

Updating Existing Impact Fees 

 

Dear Mr. Kornegay: 

 

Thank you for considering Bryant Miller Olive (the "Firm") for purposes of assisting 

Bradford County (the "County") with (i) development and implementation of a special 

assessment program to fund fire protection services, and (ii) updating one or more of the County's 

existing impact fees, including the methodologies used by the County to calculate the impact fees 

and the County Code provisions related to imposition, collection and administration of impact 

fees. The Firm has extensive experience with respect to assessments and impact fees, and we 

would be pleased to provide related professional services to the County. This letter sets forth the 

terms by which the Firm will provide such services. 

 

At the outset we note that accomplishing the County's objectives will necessarily require 

more than legal expertise. We propose collaborating with the Stantec consulting firm (the 

"Methodology Consultant") for purposes of conducting the numerical calculations associated 

with developing potential fire assessment rate structures, preparing an assessment report and 

assessment roll, and updating the impact fee methodologies. In the engagement, the Firm will 

have an attorney-client relationship with the County and will collaborate with the Methodology 

Consultant as a sub-consultant hereunder.  

 

The anticipated scope of services for the fire assessment is outlined below.  

 

1. Prepare a critical events schedule including key dates for necessary actions and 

deliverables from project kick-off through initial billing.   

 



Scott Kornegay  

Bradford County 

September 7, 2023 

Page 2 of 4 

 

 

2. Confer with County staff to discuss process and identify funding and operational 

objectives and other circumstances unique to the County.  

 

3. Obtain and analyze historic call data, parcel data, prior public safety budgets and 

proposed budget information. 

 

4. Develop apportionment methodologies for allocating the costs of fire protection 

among parcels in the County. 

 

5. Appear before the Board to present an executive summary of the analysis 

including potential rate scenarios and actions required for implementation.  

 

6. Prepare resolution of intent to use the tax bill collection method for assessments 

imposed to fund fire protection and EMS services commencing in November 2024, and related 

text for published notice.  

 

7. Prepare all ordinances and resolutions required for imposition and collection of 

the assessments. 

 

8. Prepare required notices for publication and mailing, facilitate provision of notice 

with County staff and consultants. 

 

9. Draft and provide and/or review and comment upon reimbursement agreements 

between the County and the County Tax Collector and County Property Appraiser, respectively, 

as required for tax bill collection of special assessments. 

 

10. Attend and facilitate the public hearing required to implement the fire 

assessments. 

 

The anticipated scope of services for updating the impact fees is outlined below: 

 

1. Updating the methodologies used by the County to calculate the impact fees and 

the County Code provisions related to imposition, collection and administration of impact fees 

including drafting any amending ordinances and related notices. 

 

2. Research and advice regarding state law governing impact fees and any changes 

or updates thereto. 

 

3. Preparing written memoranda when necessary. 

 



Scott Kornegay  

Bradford County 

September 7, 2023 

Page 3 of 4 

 

 

Note that the scope of services for fire assessments outlined above contemplates collection 

of the assessments on the ad valorem property tax bill to be mailed in November 2024, such that 

the revenues will be available to fund the County's fiscal year 2024-25 budget. At the County’s 

direction, the Firm will also assist with direct billing of the fire assessments which would allow 

the County to obtain assessment funding for fiscal year 2023-24, if the County so desires.  

 

FEES AND EXPENSES 

 

 The Firm will provide the legal services described above at the discounted hourly rate of 

$295.00 per hour. The Methodology Consultants will bill at the hourly rate of $250.00 per hour 

for principals and $185.00 per hour for project managers and project consultants. For 

development and implementation for the fire assessment, we estimate that the fees of the Firm 

and the Methodology Consultant will not exceed $60,000. For updating the County's existing 

impact fees, we estimate that the legal fees will not exceed a total of $15,000, and the fees of the 

Methodology Consultant will not exceed $10,000 per impact fee update, subject to a maximum of 

$60,000 if all seven of the County's existing impact fees are updated.  

 

The fees and expenses incurred in developing, implementing and maintaining a special 

assessment program (including legal, consulting and notice expenses) are generally recoverable 

through proceeds of the assessment. Accordingly, such fees and expenses may be reimbursed to 

the County through the assessment. 

 

The cost estimates summarized above are for professional fees only. Such estimates do 

not include expenses associated with any required mailed and published notices, or billing of the 

assessments.  

 

Legal and consulting fees associated with developing and administering assessment 

programs can vary based on many factors including complexity of the factual circumstances, local 

familiarity with assessments and the assessment process, landowner and community acceptance, 

and the number of in-person appearances for meetings with staff and/or governing officials. In 

the current undertaking where two or more revenue programs are addressed simultaneously, 

there are typically efficiencies and economies of scale which help to minimize overall costs. While 

the cost estimates set forth above are conservative and actual costs may be less in light of cost-

efficiencies and economies of scale, the direction of the County will control and matters of outside 

influence beyond the control of the County and/or the Firm may impact the anticipated work 

effort.  

 

 In addition to hourly rates, the Firm will invoice for reimbursement for actual costs 

incurred, such as computer printing or photocopies, long distance telephone charges and travel 

expenses which will be reimbursed in accordance with Section 112.061, Florida Statutes. For 



Scott Kornegay  

Bradford County 

September 7, 2023 

Page 4 of 4 

 

 

budgeting purposes, reimbursements for actual costs are not expected to exceed 2% of the 

professional fees. We will bill periodically, but not less often than monthly, by detailed invoice 

reflecting hours and expenses with all appropriate back-up materials typically required by 

governmental entities. 

 

 The County may cancel or terminate this engagement at any time upon written notice to 

the Firm. In the event of termination of this engagement, the Firm and Methodology Consultant 

will immediately cease work and shall be reimbursed for eligible and documented time and 

reimbursable expenses incurred prior to the notice to stop work. 

 

If the terms and conditions described in this letter are acceptable, please direct us to 

proceed by returning a signed copy for our files. We look forward to working with you and 

greatly appreciate this opportunity to serve Bradford County.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Christopher B. Roe, Shareholder 

 

 

cc: Richard Komando, County Attorney 

 Peter Napoli, Stantec 

 

 

Direction to proceed this ______ day of ___________________, 2023: 

 

By: _____ 

Print:   

Title:   



Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET 
 
 
 
DATE:     September 21, 2023    
    
AGENDA ITEM Approval of Agreement between Bradford County and 

NCFRPC for Local Government Comprehensive Planning 
Services ($23,500) 

 
DEPARTMENT:    County Manager 
 
PURPOSE: Comprehensive Planning Services 
 
ASSOCIATED COST(S): $23,500 
 
BUDGET LINE (G/L #): 001-17-515-54300-00 
  



Flegion6l
Planning
Council 2OOg N\A/ 67th Pl6ce,, Gsinesville, FL 32653 -'1 E}OB . 35e . S55 . 22OO

August 25, 2023

Mr. Scott Kornegay
County Manager
Bradford County
945 North Temple Avenue
Starke. FL 32091- 1286

Dear Scott:

Subsequent to approval ofthe above referenced agreement by the Counry-, please have both cooies dated

on Page I and signed on Paqe 4, retain one copy ofthe Agreement $Ih ar!-crlaljrclalu
fit ed co of the ent \\'ith ori inal s tures to me for

Planning Council's fi les.

lf you have any questions conceming this Agreement. please do not hesitate to contact me at

3 52.955.2200. ext. l0l.

Sincerely.

Scon R. Koons. AICP
Executive Director

Enclosures

xc Randal Andrews. Director ofZoning (letter only)

l:\lga contractsv024U024 agreeletterfi nalmerge doc

North
Central
Florida

RE

DedicaEed Eo rmpnoving the quality of life of Ehe Flegion'6 crEazens,
by eahancrng public safety, pnoEecEing negronal nesounce6,

paomoting economic development and paovrdrng technic6l senvice6 to local govennrnenEs

Fiscal Year 2024
Agreement Betueen the Coung and the Planning Council
for Local Governmenl Comprehensive Planning Services

Please find enclosed tu'o copies. uith original Planning Council signatures, ofthe above referenced
proposed agreemenl between the County and the Planning Council for the Planning Council to provide
comprehensive planning services to the County for Fiscal Year 2024 in the amount of$23.500. Please

note thal the method of compensation for comprehensive planning services provided pursuant to this
Agreement is on a fixed fee basis.

Senving Alachua
Elnadfond . Columbia

Dixie . Gilchr.ist . Harnilton
LafayetEe . Levy . Madison

Suwannee . Taylon . Union Counties



FISCAL YEAR 2024

LOCAL COVERNMENT COMPREHENSIVE PLANNlNC SERVICES

ACREEM ENT

BETWEEN THE

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OF BRADFORD COUNTY. FLORIDA

AND THE

NORTH CENTRAL FLOzuDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL

This Agreement made and entered into this _ day of 2023. by and
between the Board ofCounty Commissioners ofBradford County, Florida, hereinafter referred to as the
"Purchaser" and the North Central Florida Regional Planning Council. hereinafter referred to as the
"Planning Council".

This AGREEMENT/CONTRACT IS ENTERED INTO BASED UPON THE FOLLOWING
FACTS: The Purchaser desires to engage the Planning Council to render certain technical or professional
services: and

The Planning Council possesses the qualifications and expertise to perform the services required.

NOW THEREFORE. THE PURCHASER AND THE PLANNING COLINCIL DO MUTUALLY
AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

ARTICLE I - SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Planning Council agrees to provide services to the Purchaser in accordance with the terms
and conditions set forth in Appendix A. Scope of Sen,ices. ofthis Agreement u,hich is incorporated by
reference herein and considered as an integral part ofthis Agreement.

The Planning Council shall be paid by the Purchaser a fixed fee ofTwenty-three Thousand Five
Hundred Dollars and No Cents ($23,500.00) for services provided in completing the Scope of Services
described in Appendix A. rvhich is incorporated herein by reference.

Payment to the Planning Council for services rendered in accordance uith the Scope ofServrces
as set forth in Appendix A, Scope of Sen ices, ofthis Agreement. u'hich is incorporated b1, reference
herein and considered as an integral part ofthis Agreement. will become due u,ithin thirry" (30) days
following receipt by the Purchaser ofa requisition ofpayment. Requisitions may be made on a monthly
basis.

Page I of4

ARTICLE II - COMPENSATION



This Agreement shall begin on October 1. 2023 and shall end on September 30,2024. Any
allowable costs incurred by the Planning Council during the period covered by this Agreement in
providing sen ices in performing the u'ork described in Appendir A. Scope of Sen'ices. ofthis
Agreement. shich is incorporated bl,reference herein and considered as an integral part ofthis
Agreement are eligible expenses chargeable to the Purchaser. However. if this Agreement is nol execuled
by all parties. the Purchaser shall not be liable for any such costs incurred by the Planning Council.

ARTICLE IV - TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE

Each pag may'terminate this Agreement rvithoul cause providing fifteen ( l5) days uritten notice
to the other. Written notice shall be via U.S. Mail. first class mail. postage prepaid. b1'certified mail-
retum receipt requested. ln such an event. all finished or unfinished documents and olher materials
prepared by the Planning Council pursuant to this Agreement shall become the proper['ofthe Purchaser.
Upon termination as provided in this Article, the Planning Council shall be reimbursed for all of its actual
costs incurred in providing services hereunder this Agreement as the same are defined in Aticle ll ofthis
Agreement.

The failure of either paq' to comply u ith any provision of this Agreement shall place that party
at default. Prior to terminating this Agreement. the nondefaulting party shall notiry the defaulting partl in
writing. Written notice shall be via U.S. Mail. first class mail, postage prepaid, by certified mail, return
receipt requested. The notification shall make specific reference to the provision which gave rise to the
default. The defaulting parfy" shall then be entitled to a period often (10) days in which to cure the
default. In lhe event said default is nol cured within the ten ( l0) day period. the Agreement mal be
terminated. The failure ofeither parS to exercise this right shall not be considered a $aiver of such right
in the event ofany further default or noncompliance. Upon default and termination as provided in this
Article, the Planning Council shall be reimbursed for all of its actual costs incurred in providing services
hereunder this Agreement as the same are defined in Article ll ofthis Agreement and all finished or
unfinished documents and other materials prepared by the Planning Council pursuant to this Agreement
shall become the propeny* of the Purchaser.

ARTICT-lr VI - \ON DISCRIN'l INATION

ln carrying out the work of this Agreement. the Planning Council shall not discriminate against
any employee or applicant for employment because of race. creed, color, sex. national origin or
handicapped status. The Planning Council shall take affirrnative action to ensure that applicants are

employed and that employees are lreated during employment, without regard to their race. creed. color,
sex, national origin or handicapped slatus. Such action shall include. but not be limited to the follou ing
emplo)ment. upgrading. demotion. or transfer: recruilment or recruitment advenising. lal,off or
termination: rales ofpa)' or other fonns ofcompensation: and selection for training, including
apprenticeship. The Planning Council agrees to post in conspicuous places. available to employees and
applicants for ernployment, notices setting forth the provisions of this non-discrimination clause. The
Planning Council shall, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalfofthe
Planning Council, statethat it is an Equal Opportunity/Affirmalive Action Ernployer. The Planning
Council shall incorporate the foregoing requirement of this paragraph in all subcontracts for services
covered by this Agreement.

Page 2 of4

ARTICLE III- IIME COMPI-ETIoN

ARTICLE V . DEFAULT AND TERMINATION



AIt I'IC'LE VII - LIABILITY

The Planning Council hereby agrees to hold harmless the Purchaser, to the extenl allolved and
required by law. from all clairns, demands. liabilities and suits ofthird persons or entities not a party to
this Agreement arising out of. or due to any act. occurrence. or omission ofthe Planning Council. its
subcontractors or agents. if anl'. that is relaled to the Planning Council's performance under this
Agreement.

The Planning Council shall not assign an) interest in this Agreement and shall not lransfer an1

interesl in the same (uhether by assignment or novation). *,ithoul the prior consenl ofthe Purchaser.

In all matters relating to the performance ofthis Agreement. the Couno, Manager ofthe
Purchaser shall represent and act for the Purchaser and the Executive Director ofthe Planning Council
shall represent and act for the Planning Council.

ARTICLE X - VENUE AND JURISDICTION FOR I-ITIGATION BETWEEN THE PARTIES

This Agreement shall be construed according to the lau's ofthe State of Florida. Venue shall be
exclusively in Bradford Counq'. Florida for all litigation bet\r'een the parties and all issues Iitigated
bet$een the parties shall be litigated exclusirell in a court of competent jurisdiction of Bradford Counq,.
Florida. Ifanl' provision hereof is in conflict with an1 applicable statule or rule. or is otheru ise
unenforceable, then such provision shall be deemed null and void to the extent of such conflict. and shall
be deemed severable, but shall not invalidate any other provision ofthe Agreement.

ARTICLE XI - AMENDMENT OF AGREEMENT

The Planning Council and the Purchaser by mulual agreement may amend, extend. or modi$ this
Agreement. Any such modification shall be mutuallv agreed upon by and between the Planning Council
and Purchaser and shall be incorporated in a written amendment to this Agreement. dull signed b1 both
parties.

AR]-ICLE XII - COMPLETE CONTRACT

This Agreement, including Appendix A. Scope of Sen,ices. of this Agreement, r,r'hich is
incorporated by reference herein and considered as an integral part ofthis Agreenrent, constitutes the
entire contract between the pafties, and any changes. amendments, or modifications hereof shall be void
unless the same are reduced to uriting and signed b;,the parties hereto.

Page 3 of4

ARTICLE VIII - ASSIGNABILITY

ARTICLE IX - REPRESENI'ATIVES FOR THE PARTIES



IN WITNESS WHEREOF. the parties hereto have caused this Agreement Io be executed by their
undersigned officials as duly authorized on the date first above written.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OF BRADFORD COUNTY

Attest:

Seal

Denny Thompson
Countv Clerk

Attcst:

Diane Andrews
Chair

NORTH CENTRAL FLORIDA
REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL

a

Executive Director

l:\lga contracts\2024\2024 counties contract linal merge docx

J D. Morlimer

Page 4 of4

Seai

N



APPENDIX A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

FOR TI IE

FISCAL YEAR 2024

LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMPREHENSIVE PLANNINC SERVICES AGREEMENT

The follou,ing services u,ill be provided by the Planning Council to the Purchaser

General Technical Assistance - conducting research. answering questions and assisting with
comprehensive plan and land development regulations interpretations; and

Il. Amendment Assistance - preparing public notices. draft ordinances. data and analysis and
concurrency review for comprehensive plan text and map and land development regulations text
and zoning map amendments.

Page A-1 of A-l



Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET 
 
 
 
DATE:     September 21, 2023    
    
AGENDA ITEM Solid Waste Window Decal 
 
DEPARTMENT:    Solid Waste 
 
PURPOSE: Car window decal for identifying Bradford County Residents 

who are covered by the Solid Waste Assessment at Collection 
Sites. 

 
ASSOCIATED COST(S):  
 
BUDGET LINE (G/L #):  
  



2
0
1I

s
t6

Iw4
uts.

I





ecycl

so( /6
l.l/4

s fs-

Ir



"r"'f't'3"
CorON
SW-decal



 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

PURCHASE BETWEEN $1,001 TO $5,000 
 

TELEPHONE QUOTE DOCUMENTATION FORM 
 

1. Obtain a Purchase Order 
- Attached this form in the ADG finance system under your requisition request for a 

purchase order.  
 

2. Provide Marlene Stafford with a copy of a purchase order for new equipment over $1,000. 
 

 
 
Date: 09/14/2023  
 
Department:        Solid Waste  
 
Contact Person:  Bennie L. Jackson Jr.  
 
Item or Project:  2-inch decals for Bradford County residents that use or Collection Sites   
 
Justification: This is Sole Source, they are the only ones who can work with us on our needs  
 
G/L Number:  113-65-534-52510-00  
  
  

RECOMMENDED QUOTE  
 
Vendor:  Showcase Advertising, Inc.  
 
Quote Price: $4,195.00    Note: Sole Source, this is for 15,000 2-inch decals, they will always have more if needed  
  
County Manager (or Designee) Signature:         
        
       

QUOTE 2 
 
Vendor:   
 
Quote Price:  $   
 

QUOTE 3 
 
Vendor:   
 
Quote Price:  $   
  



1

Amanda Brown

From: Bennie Jackson
Sent: Thursday, September 14, 2023 3:54 PM
To: Amanda Brown; Scott Kornegay
Subject: FW: quote

Good Afternoon, Here is the Quote from Showcase for the decals for the Solid Waste Collection sites. It has increased 
since I last worked on this in 2018. I do believe that this will help us a lot from getting out of County slipping in on us.  
Thank You, 
 
Bennie L. Jackson Jr. 
Director, 
Bradford County Solid Waste and Mosquito Control 
925-E North Temple Ave. 
Starke, Fl. 32091 
Office: 904-966-6212 
Cell:   904-364-8533 
bennie_jackson@bradfordcountyfl.gov 
 
 
 
From: Karen <karen@goshowcase.com>  
Sent: Thursday, September 14, 2023 3:03 PM 
To: Bennie Jackson <bennie_jackson@bradfordcountyfl.gov> 
Subject: quote 
 
2" color imprinted round face adhesive gloss laminated decals 
15,000  $4195.00       20,000  $5025.00 
Let me know if pricing is approved and I will draw up proof on decal   turnaround 10-15 
production days 
 
Karen Patterson at Showcase Advertising, Inc. 

       Ph: 904.964.6463  I  904.964.7446 

         438 S. Walnut Street • Starke, FL 32091 

Mon-Fri 9 to 5 CLOSED for lunch 12-1:15 daily 

            With Christ ALL Things Are Possible 
        Colors can differ from monitor to printing 
Orders can have a 10% over/under run and you will 

                      be billed accordingly.  
 
 
 



2

On Monday, September 11, 2023 at 11:15:45 AM EDT, Bennie Jackson <bennie_jackson@bradfordcountyfl.gov> wrote:  
 
 

Good Morning, I would like a quote on some decals for put on the inside windshield of Bradford County citizens vehicles, it 
would need to be the kind that will stick on the inside with the decal picture showing so when they pull up we can see it. I 
have included two photos and the one that is round is what we are needing and we will need about 15,000 to 20,000 
printed without dates the date does not need to be on it and colors if you could put one together with some colors you 
think will be bright and something that will stick out for us that would be great. If you could give me a quote on both the 
15,000 and 20,000 and a picture so I can get this to the County Manager before our September 21, Meeting that would be 
great. Thanks for all your help with this. Its been a long time and looking forward working with you. Hope everyone has 
been doing well. Have a blessed day. 

Thank You, 

  

Bennie L. Jackson Jr. 

Director, 

Bradford County Solid Waste and Mosquito Control 

925-E North Temple Ave. 

Starke, Fl. 32091 

Office: 904-966-6212 

Cell:   904-364-8533 

bennie_jackson@bradfordcountyfl.gov 

  

This email is intended for the addressee(s) indicated above only. It may contain information that is privileged, confidential, 
or otherwise protected from disclosure. Any dissemination, review, use of the email, or its contents by persons other than 
the addressee is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please delete it immediately.  
This email is intended for the addressee(s) indicated above only. It may contain information that is privileged, 
confidential, or otherwise protected from disclosure. Any dissemination, review, use of the email, or its contents by 
persons other than the addressee is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please delete it 
immediately.  



Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET 
 
 
 
DATE:     September 21, 2023    
    
AGENDA ITEM A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, CLOSING AND ABANDONING A ROAD 
THIRTY FEET IN WIDTH; PROVIDING DIRECTION 
TO THE CLERK; PROVIDING DIRECTION TO THE 
COUNTY MANAGER; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
DEPARTMENT:    Zoning 
 
PURPOSE: Road Closure of: 

A strip of land 30.0 feet in width lying between Lots 
3, 4, 5, and 6 in Davis brothers, Truby’s subdivision 
as recorded in Deed Book E, Page 680 of the public 
records od Bradford County, Florida. Said strip 
extending East from the Easterly Boundary of the 
Right of Way of State Road 200, U.S. 301 to the 
Easterly Boundary of Section 7, Township 7 South, 
Range 22 East. 

  
ASSOCIATED COST(S):  
 
BUDGET LINE (G/L #):  
  



RESOLUTION 2023- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
CLOSING AND ABANDONING A ROAD THIRTY FEET IN 
WIDTH; PROVIDING DIRECTION TO THE CLERK; 
PROVIDING DIRECTION TO THE COUNTY MANAGER; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, at times when a county road no longer serves a public need or purpose, 

Section 336.10, Florida Statutes authorizes each County to close and abandon a road; and 

 WHEREAS, a written request was received from Mimosa Tree Investments, LLC (a copy 

of which is attached hereto) requesting the Board of County Commissioners of Bradford County, 

Florida, close a road, described as follows: 

A strip of land 30.0 feet in width lying between Lots 3, 4, 5, and 6 in Davis 
brothers, Truby’s subdivision as recorded in Deed Book E, Page 680 of the 
public records od Bradford County, Florida. Said strip extending East from 
the Easterly Boundary of the Right of Way of State Road 200, U.S. 301 to the 
Easterly Boundary of Section 7, Township 7 South, Range 22 East. 

 
as recorded in Book 2026, Page 64 of the Official Records of Bradford County, Florida. 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Bradford County, Florida considered 

the request to close and abandon the road, and the comments of the public at a duly advertised 

public hearing held on Thursday, September 21st, 2023, at 6:30 P.M., or shortly thereafter; and 

WHEREAS, the requested road closure will not result in any other property owner 

suffering a consequent loss of access to his or her property for ingress / egress. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA: 

Section 1. Adoption and Incorporation of Recitals. The Board of County 

Commissioners of Bradford County, Florida hereby adopts the above recitals and incorporates 

them herein as a part of this Resolution. 



Section 2. Road Closed.  After consideration of the request and the comments of the 

public, the Board of County Commissioners of Bradford County, Florida, hereby closes and 

abandons the above described and referenced road. Pursuant to Florida law, the abutting real 

property owners will acquire the vacated road to the center of the public's prior easement to use 

such road. 

 Section 3. Direction to Clerk.  The Clerk shall record this Resolution in the Public 

Records of Bradford County, Florida and shall transmit a certified copy to the Bradford County 

Property Appraiser. 

 Section 4. Direction to County Manager.  The adoption of this Resolution shall be 

published one time, within 30 days, in the Bradford County Telegraph. 

 Section 5. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 

adoption. 

 
 PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED with a quorum present and voting, by the Board of 

County Commissioners of Bradford County, Florida in regular session, this 21st day of September 

2023. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMISSIONERS 
BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 
 
By:  ______________________________ 
 Diane Andrews, 
 Chair 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Denny Thompson, 
Clerk of Circuit Court 


	9-21-23 Agenda
	9-21-23 Agenda Full Packet DRAFT
	AIIS CPA 23-02 (Bocc) and Ord.
	AIIS S230811A (Murray Capital Investmetns LLC) and Ord.
	AIIS Z 23-04 (Murray Capital Investments, LLC) and Ord.
	AIIS Z 23-05 (Mattox) and Ord.
	8-1-23 Reg Minutes Full Packet
	AIIS - 08-01-23 Reg
	8-1-23 Reg Minutes

	08-17-2023 BoCC Reg Full Packet
	AIIS - 08-17-23 Reg
	08-17-2023 BoCC Reg

	08-17-2023 BoCC Workshop Full Packet
	AIIS - 08-17-23 Workshop Mintues
	08-17-2023 BoCC Reg

	Library State Aid Grant App
	Library Hours
	Medical Examiner Full Packet
	AIIS - Medical Examiner
	Bradford County Medical Director
	621698 - Attachment A - Medical Examiner District 8 Budget - Supporting Docs - 8-17-2023 Stock,Tanya
	621698 - Attachment C FY 23-24 Variable Expense Fee List - Supporting Docs - 8-17-2023 Stock,Tanya
	Three Party Agreement BoCC-UF Medical Examiner 22-23

	Dual Certification 2023 Full Packet
	AIIS - Dual Certification
	Resolution for Extension of Tax Roll
	Dual Certification 2023 

	Tax Deeds Full Packet
	AIIS - Tax Deeds
	BOCC County Certificates
	Tax Deed List

	AIIS - Copy New (used) Fire Truck 9-14-23
	Health Department Contract Full Packet
	AIIS - Health Dept Contract
	Health Department Contract

	Hazardous Waste Contract Full Packet
	AIIS - Hazardous Waste Contract
	Waste

	NEFEDC Full Packet
	AIIS - NEFEDC
	NEFEDC Contract Draft

	General Star Ins Inv Full Packet
	AIIS - General Star Ins Inv
	George Roberts Ins Invoice 230360

	PW Roller Full Packet
	AIIS - PW Roller
	Bradford County Road Department Hamm HD70i VV quote

	Web Design Full Packet
	AIIS - Website Design Quotes
	Catalis Proposal Bradford County FL
	Muni BradfordCo-Web Design Proposal
	Cost .pdf
	Page 1

	Gilchrist.pdf
	Page 1

	BarryBaker.pdf
	Page 1

	Barry.pdf
	Page 1

	AnnualPage.pdf
	Page 1

	Page.pdf
	Page 1

	Page2.pdf
	Page 1

	Page3.pdf
	Page 1

	Page4.pdf
	Page 1

	page5.pdf
	Page 1

	RFP Page 01.pdf
	Page 1


	Civic Plus - Engage Without Optional Enhancements

	AIIS Year 5 MCO IGT
	SR 230 Dedication Full Packet
	AIIS - SR 230 Dedication 
	SR 230 Dedication Resolution Draft

	AIIS - Audit Report 092123
	BMO Engagement Full Packet
	AIIS - BMO Engagement
	Engagement Letter - Bradford County 2023 (02578201)

	Comp Plan Svc Full Packet
	AIIS - Comp Plan Svc
	Comp Plan

	Solid Waste Decal Full Packet
	AIIS - Solid Waste Decal
	Solid Waste Decal
	SW Decal Quote Form
	SW Decal Quote

	Road Closure Resolution Full Packet
	AIIS - Road Closure
	Resolution Road Closure Resolution Mimosa Tree Investments 2023 (002)



